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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialise in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has fully-integrated production plant in China
with around 363 staff as at 30 June 2021. Our facility is
best known for their quality with extensive capabilities in
jewellery design, direct stone sourcing, lapidary, alloying and
gold refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the fiscal year ended 30 June 2021, the Group's
consolidated revenue recorded an increase of approximately
HK$116.0 million or 27.6 % from last year's HK$420.3
million to HK$536.3 million. During the year, profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$19.9 million
as compared to last year’s loss of HK$15.3 million. The
turnaround from loss to profit for the year was mainly due
to (i) recognition of profit of approximately HK$77.7 million
arising from the change in fair value of investment properties
for the fiscal year ended 30 June 2021 which partially offset
the impairment loss on mining right of HK$59.9 million; (ii)
improvements in operating results of jewellery; and (iii) net
foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$9.3 million for
the year. The basic earnings per share was HK2.91 cents
(2020: basic loss per share of HK2.25 cents (after Share
Consolidation)).
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2020 was an unforeseen year with COVID-19 disrupting and
dampening the global economy in a big way. The pandemic
led to major lockdowns around the world and resulting in
economic restrictions and stagnation. As International trade
is at the heart of our jewellery business, cancellation of
international tradeshows, city lockdowns, travel restrictions
and social distancing have impacted the jewellery industry
throughout most of 2020. Fortunately, in the 4th quarter
of 2020, economic activities gradually resumed and few
major economies started to show signs of a recovery. Whilst
travel restrictions remained and tradeshows still being called
off, the associated impact of COVID-19 has led to shifts in
how, where and what customers purchased. The Group has
proactively adapted to the change in customer behaviour
by working more closely with e-tailers and pivoted towards
online in both sales and marketing, supporting customers
with online and digital solutions. This creates a new window
to continuously promote and sell products through different
channels and expands our presence on marketplaces.
Entering 2021, with vaccines being available in many
countries and social distancing measures relaxed, the global
economy showed a strong recovery. Jewellery retail sales in
United States (“US” or the "USA") and Europe increased
positively. As a result, the Group’s revenues of jewellery
segment recorded an increase of approximately HK$123.4
million or 30.6 % from last year's HK$403.0 million to
HK$526.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2021.
Meanwhile, with the disciplined cost management, increase
in net foreign exchange gain as well as subsidies from
government relating to COVID-19, the jewellery segment
resulted a turnaround from last year's loss of approximately
HK$20.6 million to a profit of approximately HK$34.2 million
for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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Furthermore, the previous acquisition and expansion of
subsidiaries in the USA and United Kingdom (“UK") have
strengthened the Group’s local presence and support,
allowing customers to direct contact with dedicated sales
team and offering timely replenishment lead times. These
were extremely important during the pandemic when
overseas travel was restricted and international cargo service
was limited. Localized communication and fulfillment also
mitigated the impact on global trade and positioned the
Group to serve customers with regional support, servicing
and deliveries. While tightened measures to control travel is
expected to remain, the Group will continue to leverage on
its overseas offices to penetrate the local markets and further
enhance its market positions.

In property, as Hong Kong's property market began to
see the silver lining in the first half of 2021 following the
COVID-19 pandemic and social tensions over the past
year or so, the Group continues to manage a diverse and
balanced portfolio which comprises a mix of residential and
commercial properties.

The Group currently holds 75% of the interests in a piece
of land located at No. 232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong (the
“Wan Chai Road Property”) with a site area of approximately
5,798 sqg. ft. The land is currently under redevelopment
into a premium grade office and retail composite building
of approximately 28-storey tall with a gross floor area of
approximately 86,970 sq. ft. and to hold it for long term
leasing investment purpose. The project is expected to be
completed at the end of 2021 as scheduled. The leasing
planning has begun, and the property shall start marketing
during the third quarter of 2021.
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The Group also owns 90% interests of sites at Nos. 7, 7A, 9,
and 9A of Cheung Wah Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
(the “Cheung Wah Street Property”) with a site area of
approximately 3,240 sq. ft. The plan is to redevelop the
existing buildings into a 25-storey residential development
with 2-storey of retail podium/high-rise composite building,
with a proposed gross floor area of approximately 29,147
sq. ft. The foundation works have been completed and the
superstructure works have commenced in December 2020.
The project is in good progress and the expected completion
date of the redevelopment is in late 2022.

The 12 floors of Glassview Commercial Building located
at 65 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, New Territories, with
a gross floor area of approximately 14,508 sq. ft. were
acquired in 2018. Despite of the COVID-19 pandemic and
social distancing policies, the units are currently fully let and
continue to generate a steady income to the Group. During
the year, the Group managed to enhance the overall rental
yield with renewed leases.

In May 2021, the Group has acquired Shop A and Shop B on
G/F, and Office A, B, C, D, E, F, G & H located on 1/F of Hart
Avenue Court at 19-23 Hart Avenue, Kowloon, with a gross
floor area of approximately 5,100 sq. ft. The properties are
fully let and generate a stable rental income to the Group.

In the mining segment, operation at HongZhuang Gold Mine
was minimized. The Company focusing the exploration at
the north eastern of Yuanling. Meanwhile, we will continue
developing new shaft and re-visiting the old shaft in the
Yuanling mine site.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Although the economic disruption from the pandemic
has started to ease in most countries, some continue to
experience uncertainty and volatility. With the risk of Delta
Variant of COVID-19, market conditions are expected to
remain challenging and it is still unclear how the recovery
will develop. Notwithstanding this volatility, the domestic
consumption is expected to remain steady with modest
growth. The Group’s strategic move in strengthening
local support and service will continue to be an advantage
adapting to the changing market environment. Furthermore,
with the implementation of digital and online solutions, the
Group will stay ahead of its competition and further expand
its sales reach to customers. In summary, the consumer and
market behaviour have changed even when the pandemic is
over and things are back to normal. We believe the Group
has well positioned itself for an economy recovery and the
long term growth in the industry.

In property, Hong Kong's containment of the COVID-19
pandemic and the increasing vaccination rates have stabilized
the overall real estate market. Despite the commercial
market suffering from moderate declines in rents during the
past year, the Group foresees positive momentum and the
economic recovery will support market demands in driving
growth in capital value in the medium to long term horizon.

Looking ahead the Group's broad portfolio and geographic
footprint, coupled with its leading market position will
provide a solid foundation for sustainable growth. Whilst
uncertainty remains and travelling is still severely impacted,
management remains optimistic about the growth prospects
for all of its businesses and believes the Group is well
positioned to capture the opportunities to drive long-term
growth and shareholder value.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON MINING RIGHT AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Directors
appointed an independent professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited, to perform a valuation with respect to
Hongzhuang Gold Mine situated at Henan Province, China
and impairment loss of mining right and property plant and
equipment amounting to HK$59,892,000 (2020: reverse of
impairment loss HK$17,592,000) and HK$1,168,000 (2020:
reverse of impairment loss HK$464,000) respectively has
been recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of Hongzhuang Gold Mine was estimated
based on the Market Based Approach with reference to
comparable transactions, in which such approach was
consistent with mining right valuation as at 30 June 2020.

The key inputs used in the valuation were the consideration-
to-resources multiples obtained from comparable
transactions, the adjusted contained gold metal based on
the technical review report prepared by SRK Consulting
China Limited under Chinese standard and discount due to
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Chinese standard resources estimates as reported by SRK
Consulting China Limited were risk with uncertainty. The
estimated fair value of the Hongzhuang Gold Mine has been
assigned a lower or no credit to those resources with high
resources risks.

As at 30 June 2021, the Directors also conducted an
impairment assessment on certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment under Yuanling mine site due to the
delay of the operation plan. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$4,591,000 (2020: Nil) had been recognized and included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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All the above-mentioned impairment loss on mining right
and property, plant and equipment was included in the
Group’s mining segment in the reportable and operating
segment of the Group.

ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2021:

RERS BLER HERERE HEEY E¥ A
Type of
Reporting mining Gold  Reporting
date operation resources  Standard Gold grade
() (%/%)
(t) (g/t)
“E-F T 1073 REREI22D 558
~A=TH Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2021 546 PEIRER 1.89
PRC 332
266 PERE3 446
PRC 333
T2 #F - HEREL -
~A=TH Underground PRC 122b
30 June 2021 - RERESR -
PRC 333

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VII of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2021, the Group's gearing ratio was 0.1996
(2020: 0.1344), which is calculated on net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum
of bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The cash and cash equivalents of HK$340,207,000 (2020:
HK$468,521,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Other
borrowings in respect of amounts due to joint ventures,
amounts due to related companies, loan from a controlling
shareholder, amounts due to non-controlling interests and
lease liabilities were approximately of HK$114,188,000
(2020: HK$84,347,000). Bank and other loans denominated
in HK$ and US$ were approximately HK$836,210,000 (2020:
HK$751,663,000). For details of pledge of assets in respect
of bank loans, please refer to the PLEDGE OF ASSETS section.

The decrease in the Group’s cash and cash equivalent as at
30 June 2021 were mainly due to the acquisition of a real
property located at Hart Avenue, Kowloon and payment
of the construction costs for the projects at Cheung Wah
Street and Wan Chai Road. In line with the Group's prudent
financial management, the Directors considered that the
Group has sufficient working capital to meet its ongoing
operational requirements.



Annual Report 2021 F

Chairman’s Statement m =%

EEER

R_E-_—F<A=+H" K&K
EEUBTHEZHERITERAS
813,558,000 T (T —ZT F:
719,289,000 ) ' WAEB 2 &
TYE - BELEEBE REWE-
ETHEREEEANERERDYEE
T UAR R —EHBRAR 2T
BILEE I I AR D B N IR
BRBELZ RAEREER B —
FHECAETHEZRITERESE
& 722,652,000 L (-
127,969,000/ 7T ) + AARE —
FHBARz 2 EEERE I
AR BRI 2 A AR VEE(R

BEAGEHE

REBEBEE2IMUB T ETEA
REFE-BLEEZMNEZ2RE
BIRITRAEREXRERFNERE
EETLEEZFB2BMBHIRIT
FRXFEEE MARBKEEZAF
BRIZBHEARBITZERERE
FIRE T - A %K E MR AR IMNE
B #) LA 2R (K B 2 85 T8 RO% )
EEZEXRRR -BREST(10)K
Bha R —()RERMIN AEE
CEBREERNEE T - —F /<A
StRALFETEESH BERARE
BB A2 B AR N B H IR
AEAZBERT EEEENES
W ERNEE -

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2021, the Group’s bank loans denominated
in HK$ of HK$813,558,000 (2020: HK$719,289,000)
are secured by the Group’s certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain right-of-use assets,
property under development, pledged by ordinary shares of
a subsidiary of the Company and guaranteed by corporate
guarantees executed by the Company and non-controlling
interests. Whereas, a bank loan denominated in US$ in the
equivalent amount of HK$22,652,000 (2020: 27,969,000)
is secured by all the assets of a subsidiary of the Company
and guaranteed by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined with
reference to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or Prime
Rate for Hong Kong Dollar borrowings, London Interbank
Offered Rate for US Dollar borrowings and the benchmark
lending rate of the People’s Bank of China for Renminbi
borrowings. The Group also made use of foreign exchange
forward contract in order to minimise exchange rate risk as
a result of fluctuation in British Pound. Except for the share
consolidation of every ten (10) shares to one (1) share, there
was no change to the Group's capital structure during the
year ended 30 June 2021. In light of the current financial
position of the Group and provided there is no unforeseeable
circumstance, the management does not anticipate the need
to change the capital structure.
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SHARE CONSOLIDATION

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s
general meeting on 27 May 2021, every ten (10) issued
ordinary shares of the Company has been consolidated
into one (1) ordinary share of the Company (the “Share
Consolidation”) with effective on 31 May 2021. As at 30
June 2021, 683,118,258 shares of the Company have been
issued. Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in
the Company’s announcement date 16 April 2021 and the
Company's circular date 7 May 2021.

NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTION

On 4 February 2021, the Group entered into a preliminary
sale and purchase agreement (the “Hart Agreement”)
with an independent third party relating to acquisition of
the entire issued share capital and the shareholder’s loan
of a company, which principal assets are Shop A on the
Ground Floor, including the Yard A thereof, Shop B on
the Ground Floor, Offices A, B, C, D, E, F & G on the 1st
Floor, and Office H on the 1st Floor, including the Flat Roof
appurtenant thereto, Hart Avenue Court, Nos. 19 — 23 Hart
Avenue, Kowloon, with a gross floor area of approximately
5,100 sq. ft., at a total consideration of HK$65,000,000, in
accordance with the terms of the Hart Agreement (the “Hart
Acquisition”). The Hart Acquisition constitutes a discloseable
transaction for the Company and was completed on 31
May 2021. Details of the Hart Acquisition were set out in
the announcement and supplemental announcement of the
Company dated 5 February 2021 and 10 February 2021
respectively.
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ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2021, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has
advanced a loan in the amount of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,802,000) to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the loan is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on 25 October 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company has provided guarantees
to the extent of HK$670,640,000 (2020: HK$607,158,000)
with respect to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the banks
if the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
date, no provision for the Company’s obligation under
the guarantee contracts has been made as the Directors
considered that it was unlikely the repayment of the loans
would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2021, the Group had outstanding capital
commitment of approximately HK$106,853,000
(2020: HK$318,551,000), which was mainly the capital
commitment for the investment property undertaken by the
Group.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 1 September 2021, the Group entered into six
Preliminary Agreements with five independent third parties
relating to acquisition of six properties located at (i) Ground
Floor, First Floor, Second Floor and a portion of the Roof,
No.164 Boundary Street; and (ii) Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor, No.164A Boundary Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong at a total price of HK$183,500,000 (the “Boundary
Acquisition”). The Boundary Acquisition constitutes a major
transaction for the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and completion will take place
on or before 22 December 2021. Details of the Boundary
Acquisition was set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 1 September 2021.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group employs a total of approximately 567 employees
with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration to its
employees is largely based on common industrial practice. In
order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees,
including the Directors, the Company have adopted share
option schemes.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13
July 2010 (“the “"2010 Share Option Scheme”), which was
valid for a period of ten years commencing on the date
of adoption 13 July 2010. Under which, the Company
may grant options to eligible person including directors
and employees (as explained hereinafter). The 2010 Share
Option Scheme was expired on 12 July 2020. Therefore, the
Company has adopted a new share option on 22 December
2020 (the “2020 Share Option Scheme"”). Subsequent to
the expiry of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no further
option can be granted thereunder but in all other respects,
the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme shall remain
in force and all options granted prior to such expiry shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme.

As the Share Consolidation had taken effect on 31 May
2021, adjustments were made to the exercise prices and the
number of shares of the Company falling to be issued in
respect of the outstanding share options in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
and the Listing Rules. As at 30 June 2021, there were
options for 12,200,000 shares (after Share Consolidation)
were valid and outstanding under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme. No share option has been granted under the 2020
Share Option Scheme since it has been adopted.
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Summary of the principal terms of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and 2020 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(a)

2010 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is
(i) to recruit and retain high caliber eligible persons
and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group; (ii) to recognise the contributions of eligible
persons to the growth of the Group by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest
in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to
contribute to the long-term success and prosperity of
the Group.

Under the 2010 Share Option Scheme, options might
be granted to any employee, senior executive or
officer, manager, director (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive director) or
consultant of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any invested entity who, as determined by the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth
and development of the Group or any invested entity
are eligible to participate the scheme. The number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
shares in issue at the adoption date.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified
to him or her within ten business days from the offer
date. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.
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The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for
shares of the Company shall be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

As at 30 June 2021, 13,200,000 share options
(after Share Consolidation) have been granted to
certain directors and employees of the Company at
an exercise price of HK$1.38, HK$1.21, HK$2.45,
HK$1.49 or HK$0.52 each (after Share Consolidation)
subject to the terms of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme. 1,000,000 share options (after Share
Consolidation) have been exercised during the year
ended 30 June 2015 since the grant of the 2010
Share Options.
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Details of movement of the 2010 Share Options up to

Bl —E—EEERE 30 June 2021 are set out below:
BFEEHIIWT
EREYA
Number of share options
2EEY WITZEE RZEZ-F
REnER tA-Hz ~AZTHZ
REAREY RHAH ERITEEY  RHRHE &h 3
L] (R/B/%) 174 (Rfr&ad%) (Rhass) (RBakH) REAZH RENBEY  RERTE (RBA#E)
Closing price
per Share
Name or immediately Balance Granted  Adjustment Exercised Balance
category Date of Grant  Exercisable Exercise Price before the as at During During During as at
of Grantee  (dd/mm/yyyy) Period per Share  date of grant 1 July 2020 the Year the Year the Year 30 June 2021
(after Share (after Share  (before Share (after Share
Consolidation) Consolidation) Consolidation) Consolidation)
(87) (87)
(HKS) (HKS)
REUEE 19062014 19/0672014 - 138 138 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
Mr. Chan Wai 18/06/2024
Lap, Victor
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 245 2.00 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 1.49 1.50 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
02/11/2026
REHL+ 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 138 138 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
Ms. Chan Wai 18/06/2024
IV oanots aorons - 245 200 10,000,000 - (9,000,000 - 1,000,000
06/07/2025
03112016 03/11/2016 - 1.49 1.50 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
02/11/2026
FERAE 07072015 07/07/2015- 245 2.00 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
Mr. Yam Tat 06/07/2025
Wing 03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 1.49 1.50 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
02/11/2026
HEHREE 25072014 25/07/2014 - 1.21 1.20 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
Mr. Wong 2410712024
E(\i/\\;\;anrfjhm 07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 245 2.00 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
9 06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 149 1.50 10,000,000 - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000
02/11/2026
EiEE 220062020 22/06/2020 - 052 0.51 12,000,000 - (10,800,000) - 1,200,000
Other Employees 21/06/2030
122,000,000 - (109,800,000) - 12,200,000
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(b)

Note:

(1) Due to Share Consolidation, adjustments were made
to the number of outstanding share options and the
exercise price on 31 May 2021. The exercise price per
share of the share options granted on 19 June 2014
was adjusted from HK$0.138 to HK$1.38; the exercise
price per share of the share options granted on 25 July
2014 was adjusted from HK$0.121 to HK$1.21; the
exercise price per share of the share options granted on
7 July 2015 was adjusted from HK$0.245 to HK$2.45;
the exercise price per share of the share options granted
on 3 November 2016 was adjusted from HK$0.149 to
HK$1.49 and the exercise price per share of the share
options granted on 22 June 2020 was adjusted from
HK$0.052 to HK$0.52.

2020 Share Option Scheme

The 2010 Share Option Scheme was expired on 12
July 2020. Therefore, the Company has adopted the
2020 Share Option Scheme, which should be valid
for a period of ten years commencing on the date of
adoption 22 December 2020.

The purpose of the 2020 Share Option Scheme is
(i) to provide eligible persons with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company;
(i) to encourage eligible persons to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company; (iii) shares for
the benefit of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole and (iv) provide the Company with
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to eligible persons.
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Under the 2020 Share Option Scheme, options might
be granted to any employee, senior executive or
officer, manager, director (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive director)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group.

The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme was 68,311,825
shares (after Share Consolidation) which represented
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 27
September 2021.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified
to him or her within ten business days from the offer
date. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for
shares of the Company shall be the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

No share option has been granted under the 2020
Share Option Scheme since it has been adopted.

RAFIBRETE CE— IR Further details of the Company's share option scheme are set
RErE IS mER M FE - out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGE

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries,
all transactions and the borrowings of the Group are
primarily denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and
Renminbi. During the year, the Group had entered into
foreign exchange forward contract in order to minimise the
exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound.
Management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
risk in British Pound and recent fluctuation in Reminbi and
will take appropriate actions when necessary.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Thursday, 16 December 2021 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Monday, 13 December 2021 to Thursday,
16 December 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 10 December 2021.



Chairman'’s Statement m {4

RETWEEZRRPRS ZEF -
ARAIZBRHBPELEBEN _-F
ZT—F+ZAZ+ZH(EH=)
EFE-—F+-A=-+WMA(E
) (BEEEMA)EEHE
BrhBFPELFE EZHEET
SEDEMBROER  BTE UE
ERAHBREZER ERNDE
EXMERBEEAREREEBRFE
BEARN-_E-_—F+=-A=+—
H(EBRZD) TFHEE=+9k2
Al REARRZEBRMERLE
EBPREBEHFELERAA (Hlk
REBBFERFRNEBERISIRE M
0 7H1712-171658 48 ) - LA S
BRFE-FARARERBER =
T —F+ZA+"H(E2HME)HE
T2 EERFBET RS EHEE
BEABRBEN T -_—_F—A8
+OB (E8A)SKATERN-

B

R AANZRUEEERKRES
g ROBRFRMANER TP &
EBEH - EUNRZFREELRE
B YHRRARMANEEREE
BTE N EISHTIE EEE
AR - R EAS IR - IS AEE RS
RRAKRSERE A HPIES
Z{BfE-

RKRE=ZS

B4
R {2 3T
E8 _E-_—FNA=-_++tH

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from
Wednesday, 22 December 2021 to Friday, 24 December
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the
office of the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 December 2021,
Subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming AGM which to be held on Thursday, 16
December 2021, the proposed final dividend will be paid on
or about Friday, 14 January 2022.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their
continuous supports and trust, and extend my heartiest
thanks and appreciation to our directors, to all staffs, for
their relentless efforts, dedication and resilience during this
challenging period. Looking ahead, we will continue our
endeavor to overcome the future challenges and enhance
the value of our business.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 September 2021
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, was appointed as Chairman of
the Group since 2017. He joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2006.
He currently strategises the direction of the Group and also
provides leadership to the Board. He manages and oversees
the overall Group operations and is responsible in leading
the management on various aspects of the Group such
as sales and marketing, product development, investment
and financing activities, as well as corporate and business
development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
such as Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association; a member of the 10th Executive
Committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong
China Ltd.; Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter of
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council; Member of
the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council; Executive Committee member of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He was also President
of Entrepreneurs’ Organization (Hong Kong and China
South Chapters) and Director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp, is Founder of the
Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of the Company and
holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company. He
is responsible for strategic planning, corporate development
and investment of the Group. Dr. Chan has over 60 years
of experience in the jewellery industry. He is currently the
Honorary Permanent President of the Hong Kong Jewellery
& Jade Manufacturers Association; Honorary Member of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Honorary
Court Member and Institutional Advancement and Outreach
Committee Member of the University Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology; as well as a
member of other trade associations. In community, charitable
and political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent
Honorary Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association
Ltd., and Member of The Association of Chairmen of The
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed
a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2003-2016;
and the Founding President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese
Enterprise Federation since 2006. Dr. Chan is the husband of
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director and
Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive Director
of the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for the daily operations,
financial management, corporate development, sales and
marketing as well as strategic planning of the Group. Ms.
Cheng has 50 years of experience in the jewellery industry
and has been actively involved in the business development
of the Group since the beginning. Ms. Cheng also plays
an active role in the community, currently Director and
Treasurer of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2020-2022), and Vice
Chairman, Executive Committee and Honorary Vice President
of the Hong Kong Federation of Women. In addition, she
was awarded as one of the “100 Chinese Outstanding
Women Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and was a Committee
Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan
Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of
America. She was Charter President of Zonta Club of Hong
Kong Il and Area Director of Zonta International (2010-
2012), actively involved in the Zonta Community. Ms. Chan
is Honorary Vice Presidents of the Hong Kong Federation
of Women. She is also a member of Golden Bauhinia
Women Entrepreneur Association. She is the daughter of Dr.
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in
1998, and has been appointed as Executive Director of
the Company since 1 March 2014. He is also the General
Manager of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Wong has over 30 years experience in manufacturing, sales
marketing and management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong
is responsible for overall development and management of
the Group's jewellery business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 as General
Manager — Business Development and Mining of the Group,
was appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2014
and was re-designated as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2017. Mr. Yam was educated up
to matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, he was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.
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During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an affiliated Fellow of Wu
Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong for
a term of five years. The appointment has been extended
for another five years in August 2016. Mr. Yam ceased being
an Affiliated Fellow of the Wu Yee Sun College since August
2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 40 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007. From
March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Yu was the Chairman and
an Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1557), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years' experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies and
was a Director of a private company engaging in logistics and
forwarding.



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management m EE K SR EEA S 2 EFHE

Annual Report 2021 “F ¥

MESRIRSE L 'BBS AT+ R T
NE+AZBEZERBILIENTT
BEmAER—ANRAFEER
ERHAEFARENTET DK
MEBRETEM - EtERNKER
TCEERFAEELEELER BRA
B EMARELTEBEEESR
NA (D AREE:25) 2 EEE
BAERAT (BRMDMAE:8521) B
mm3601E I B R A A (B AR5 :
2360) KRBT EREBERER A A
(B 3% :589) 2 B IEHTTE
E HHBR-_E—AESNANA
FZE-NFENAZt+—HBEET
Bl @M iR A R A A (B 5%
3778) R B ERIKERIERER A
Al (R ARSE:761) (ZA A%
ERBERE S ET B2 — )\
FENA-Z+HMOBRER) ZIFEHNTT
BEE-RNAILARAERERSE
EERARZHITEE INER
AARBHEES St AT H
ARBGAHEEZREHNEEEELE
AOBRIREZEREIEFE IR
MHRBELZ REBFEREE S
GXKRERBESR - BNEEATS
BATHRRITRREEEZESR
BeoikEDRHR _TE—FR=
T-RFEFEFNTRERNTZ
TARKFHERERAENES -

REREAE N _Z-—TFEMA+
AEZTAESSBIIFNTES
MEZZEEZHE BRENER
Fir = A &) A B 45 6 1R A% A BR A B
(B R5ER:3778) IEX I IEAREE N
NAMEB-HREFT 2R REE
FEBEAEAE_tTRAFELR YHES
MEEARETEERE - KB
BRMNEEREAEBTIHERBEL
B -BaATBSetMAees
REBEBHFARGHAAEER

=
=
=

\

23

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr.
Sze has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 25), ST International Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8521), Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2360) and lJianzhong Construction Development
Limited (Stock Code: 589), all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has resigned as Non-executive Director
of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3778) and Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 761) (listing of which shares on the Stock
Exchange has been cancelled with effect from 24 August
2018), with effect from 6 June 2019 and 21 August 2019
respectively. He is also an Executive Director of a private
company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds
directorship in various private companies. Mr. Sze is a
Deputy Director of the National Committee of the Chinese
People's Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC")
Subcommittee of Human Resources and Environment and an
Executive Director of the Beijing Committee of the CPPCC
and the Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese
Manufacturers” Association of Hong Kong. He is also elected
as a member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Sze was
appointed Justice of the Peace and awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010.
Mr. Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3778), a Company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has held senior positions
in multinational companies. He obtained his MBA from
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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From March 2016 to August 2018, Mr. Cheung was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of K. H. Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1557), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-
time tutor at the Open University of Hong Kong (now known
as Hong Kong Metropolitan University). From March 2004
to November 2007, he was an Executive Director of Sun
Innovation Holdings Limited (now known as Digital Domain
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 547), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial Officer
from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an Independent
Director of L International Inc. (NASDAQ: JADE), a company
listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007. From
January 2001 to December 2003, he was a Director of e-Lux
(Hong Kong) Limited (now known as Quants Capital (Hong
Kong) Limited), a subsidiary of e-Lux Corporation (JASDAQ:
6811) (now known as Quants Inc.), in charge of value-added
telecommunications services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
China. He was the group financial controller and a director
of New Media Corporation, a subsidiary of e-New Media
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 128) (now known as ENM Holdings Limited)
from 1995 to 1999 and 1999 to 2000, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG (Diamond),
joined the Group in 1987, is currently the Director of
Operations. With over 30 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the
jewellery industry, he also holds gemmologist qualification
— a fellow member of The Gemmological Association of
Great Britain and director of The Gemmological Association
of Hong Kong, and is appointed as RPL Assessor at
Qualifications Framework of jewellery industry by Vocational
Training Council. Mr. Choi now oversees the daily operation
in logistic support, factory production and Information
Technology, and administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge of the implementation of I1SO
Quality Management System and best practices project.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The board of directors
(the "Board”) considers shareholders can maximise their
benefits from good corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2021, the Company has complied with
the Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions
A2.1, A4.1 and C.2.5 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing
them.
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REBRE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 35 0 - " 11 i
ExerTHesRgEcER K Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
BAEFRETE - regular Board meetings.
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Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (“Mr. Victor Chan"”) an Executive
Director and also the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Victor
Chan currently strategizes the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Mr. Victor Chan is also responsible
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that all Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable,
in a timely manner.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”) is the Managing
Director of the Company. She is responsible for day-to-day
management and marketing activities of the Group.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. Non-executive directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.

As at 30 June 2021, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles (“Dr. Chan”), Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan”) and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing; one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yam Tat Wing; four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are expressly identified
by categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Victor Chan is the brother of Ms. Vicki Chan. They are
the son and daughter, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 29 to 35 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.
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A.4. Appointments, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election
at regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for
the resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’'s AGM at least once every three
years in accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Board considers
that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1 is not material
as Non-executive Directors are subjected to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years and re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company'’s Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr.
Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank have served as
Independent Non-executive Directors for more than 9 years
and all of them had met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from Mr.
Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze
Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
they have not engaged in any daily executive management
of the Group. They continue to demonstrate the attributes
of an Independent Non-executive Director by providing
independent view and advice and there is no evidence that
their tenure have had any impact on their independence.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of work
in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Chan Ping Kuen,
Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung
Chi Fai, Frank to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rule. Having considering their valuable knowledge
and experiences in the Group's business, the Board considers
the re-election of Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank as
independent Non-Executive Directors are in the best interest
of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Victor Chan. The other members are Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities
and development. Given the essential unitary nature of the
board, non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BEEREBEZT=—F A= The individual training record of each Director for the year
BIEFEMER SN 2 BRI 50 8L ended 30 June 2021 is as follows:
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Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates*/
Attending
= Directors seminar
HITEFE Executive Directors
PR{ZE S0 Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
PREESZEE L 8BS AT+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BB, Jp v
B/ N2+ Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
[REHL L Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
=ARELEA Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing v
FFHITESE Non-executive Director
FEREAE Mr. Yam Tat Wing v
HIHNTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
RIE KA o BBS MBE- AF4+ M. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP v
BoR A1 5 A Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
HESR 1 ST A » BBS » APt Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v/
SR AEIE S A Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v/
# MEAECEET aE RS HE # Reading materials concerning latest developments in
B HBAEITEREESRRE M corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory
o developments.
SEEERBRNESEEREZFR At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
REZITEHRAAAGFBEENRAARE reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to

NBISRAAE TR S E RS the Company the number and nature of offices held in
DA K2 B 88 KEHE - LA K FTH BB public companies or organisations and other significant
MR -aE D mERMN RRES commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
Eymﬁ_r EEERMARNT - also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are highly skilled professionals with
expertise and experience in the field of accounting, financial
management and business. All Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in
Board meetings to bring in independent judgement to bear
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor the
reporting of performance. They also take the lead where
potential conflicts of interest arise and serve the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Company
has received written confirmation from all the Independent
Non-executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Code Provisions A.6.7 provides that Independent Non-
executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors,
should also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, did not attend the annual general
meeting held on 22 December 2020 due to other business
engagement. Other Independent Non-executive Directors
were present at the annual general meeting and were
available to answer questions.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their
duties and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’” remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2021 to discuss remuneration related matters
and to review and approve the remuneration policy of the
Directors and of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2021 is set out below:

A#
Number of persons
& B 4H 71 Emolument bands 2021 2020
Z 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1 1
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2021, the Directors have made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to
81 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 28 under Chairman’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Risk management and Internal control

The board should ensure that the issuer establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Board requires management to establish
and maintain appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Evaluation of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems covering financial,
operational and compliance controls had been done on
an on going basis. Review of internal controls on different
systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis based
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

Code Provision C.2.5 provides that the issuer should have
an internal audit function. Issuers without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for the absence of such a
function.

The Company does not have an internal audit function
for the year ended 30 June 2021. Taking into account the
size and complexity of the operations of the Group, the
Company considers that the existing organisation structure
and the close supervision of the management could provide
sufficient internal control and risk management for the
Group. The audit committee of the Board regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk
management of the Group. The Board would review the
need to set up an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for oversight of financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, and for
reviewing the financial information of annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company's
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.
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The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company’s independent auditor.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the remuneration paid
and payable to BDO Limited is set out as below:

2021

FET

HK$°000

EE AR Audit service 1,150
FERFT IR (B EMRERS) Non-audit service (including other reporting

services) 7

1,157
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Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on
issuer’s behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.
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When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties.

The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company'’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2021, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.
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E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2020 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2020 AGM are
disclosed on page 37.

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.
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Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy on 5 September 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of its Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
meritocracy, the Company will ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board at appropriate time.

Dividend policy

The Company seeks to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the shareholders. The Company has adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount. Under the Dividend Policy, the board of Directors
(the "Board”) shall, where appropriate, take into account,
among others, the following factors (i) the Group’s overall
results of operation, financial condition, expected working
capital requirements and capital expenditure requirements,
liquidity position and future expansions plans; (ii) the amount
of retained profits and distributable reserves of the Company;
(iii) general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; (iv) interim dividend paid, if any;
(v) interests of the Shareholders; (vi) statutory and regulatory
restrictions; and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.

F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important role in
supporting the board by ensuring good information flow
within the board and that board policy and procedures are
followed. The company secretary is responsible for advising
the board through the chairman and/or the chief executive
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction
and professional development of directors.
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The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2021, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company'’s
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.

Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.
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RAFERN RNAF 2 ABERHA There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
A T E RS E) - of Association during the year.

ERETESTZNEETA Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

AR A BRAN_E T AR BIRT 81 ATk The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

2 EMBITAESETESIHH Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
BEFR] (EAARRBESEITE Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
HRGZATRFA - conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of the
Company.
RAAGEREEBESELARS The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
HOMEBEERER KEREBEZ and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
T _—FXRA=TRIFEDET the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
IERESFRIPTE < R EFLE - the year ended 30 June 2021.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CONSOLIDATION

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s general
meeting on 27 May 2021, every ten (10) issued ordinary
shares of the Company has been consolidated into one (1)
ordinary share of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”)
with effective on 31 May 2021. As at 30 June 2021,
683,118,258 shares of the Company have been issued.

Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 16 April 2021 and the
Company's circular dated 6 May 2021.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2021 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 82 to 282.

DIVIDENDS

At the Board meeting held on 27 September 2021, the
directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of HK2.00
cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil),
totaling approximately HK$13,662,365 (2020: Nil), payable
on or about Friday, 14 January 2022 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of member on Tuesday,
21 December 2021.

The proposed dividend has not been recognised as a
dividend payable as at 30 June 2021, but will be reflected as
an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 30
June 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman'’s Statement on pages 7 to 28 of
this Annual Report.
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PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

1.

Economic climate and individual market performance

As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
products, the impact of global financial and economic
conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
power would affect sales and results of the Group.
The economic growth or decline in our geographical
markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
addition, economic environment would affect the
production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.

In property side, economic climate directly affects
the value of properties and investors' interest in
our property projects and rental income. Rising
construction costs, labour costs and material prices
will affect the budget and the timing for completion
of the property projects.

The Group’s mining business requires substantial
investment and may not achieve expected financial
results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
affect prospects of the investments and impairment
of the mining business may affect the valuation of
mining assets.

Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FEMBEERE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEMBEEEERONTOT The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2021 2020 +/(-)
FET FET g
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
MHEE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
BEH Turnover 536,267 420,315 27.6%
85 E AR Cost of Sales (420,078) (328,284) 28.0%
el Gross Profit 116,189 92,031 26.2%
EFE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 21.7% 21.9% -0.2ppA DS
NG Y =N 2 ) Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners
wHl,/ (EE) of the Company 19,885 (15,341) 229.6%
B % (%) Net profit margin (%) 3.7% -3.6% 73ppEDE
HBRFE RFTEH AT &R EBIT
(TEBITJ) 26,821 (6,372) 520.9%
EBITEL (%) EBIT margin (%) 5.0% -15%  6.5ppE D
8 B (%) Return on total assets (%) 0.7% 02% 09ppEDE
ITEMBER KEY FINANCIAL INDICATOR
W KIRITHE S Cash and bank balance 340,207 468,521 -27.4%
TBEEFE Net current assets 102,919 222,458 -53.7%
EEBE Total assets 3,718,277 3,456,478 7.6%
BEES Total liabilities 1,271,769 1,090,203 16.7%
BT REMER Bank and other loans 836,210 751,663 11.2%
RARER AEIEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,244,251 2,179,583 3.0%
EHH R (HEHXR) Quick ratio (Cash ratio) 0.37 0.52 -28.8%
BN E (1F) Current ratio (times) 1.11 1.25 -11.2%
EEABLE(%) Gearing ratio (%) 19.96% 13.44% 6.52ppE 7 %
P B A 2 [ 3 (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 0.9% -0.7%  1.6ppEDE
FREREF (L) Basic earning per share (HK cents) 2.91 (2.25) 229.3%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

1.

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries
of the Company is a certified member of the
Responsible Jewellery Council (“RJC”). RIC is a not-
for-profit organization which promotes responsible
ethical, social and environmental practices, respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope conform to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.

For further information about the environment
policies and performance of the Company during
the year, please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
to be issued within five months after 30 June 2021.
The ESG Report will be available on the Company’s
website at www.continental.com.hk and the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration of its employees and ensures that it is
up to prevailing market standard.

The Group values mutually-beneficial and long-standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing mutual trust with its suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$1,230,918,000 (2020:
HK$1,469,835,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
284.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$186,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 38.5% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 17.2%. The largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 26.6% and 62.4%, respectively, of
the Group's total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.
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B=E DIRECTORS
REFEBEARERBHARGZ The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
EEREWT: date of this report were:

BITES: Executive Directors:

BRI 4 (/&) Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (Chairman)
PREEZIE L BBS AT 4+ Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 8BS, Jp
BNt (EFAAEE) Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
REHL L Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

mAEREE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

FHITES: Non-executive Director:

FiEREE Mr. Yam Tat Wing

BUFHITES: Independent Non-executive Directors:

R KA BBS - MBE+ AT+ Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, 8BS, MBE, JP

PoR A 5 A Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

MEER L A o BBS AT st Mr. Sze lIrons, BBS, JP

oR B ST A Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank



Directors’ Report m EE 2%}

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THLFE

RRABERANE AN
F-B-—THAK - Z2—8—TH
@R E—E— T TOWRE I
@I REBH L REFBE
A RRNBRBE RS LRERE
BEUHABRTRELERE
2 o

P ST ST E BB AR
HEERECEETILTS =3 Rt
MEEERAARTDRIBRE -
FEERANBIIFNTEEY
BB

MEARIES

REARBERNRE BHIEARRA]
MBAREZESMEL2RESY
ZA R R B AL ER] -

EEREREBASBZERE

ARBEERAEESHREEAR
ZEEREREINFRF29HESR
358 ¢

EEZRBEH

EERRAFAS LEEREE Y
EEMERARATLAAHAR
RAR—FRRIEMBAELRRE
CXERBERIN 2 RIFEH

In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A), 115(B) and 115(D)
of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, Dr.
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank shall
retire from office by rotation and all of them are eligible for
re-election at the AGM.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 29 to
35 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for directors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors'’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 230 to 237 and in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

The remuneration packages of the following directors
have been revised after taking consideration of their
responsibilities and the prevailing market rates:

With effect from 1 January 2021, the monthly remunerations
of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley have been revised to HK$100,000 and HK$100,000
respectively.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and
in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company’s holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests
of directors of the Company in businesses which might
compete with the Group during the year ended 30 June
2021 and as at 30 June 2021 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of property investments in Hong Kong and gold mining
activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and Indonesia.
Although some of the businesses carried out by these
companies are similar to those of the Group, they are of
different scale and/or at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
set out below:
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Name of Directors

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
("Mr. Victor Chan")

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
("Dr. Chan")

Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
("Ms. Cheng")

Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan")

Yam Tat Wing

Wong Edward Gwon-hing

ZERRARE LR
Bt H Rl %HBE35%
N35%H# & 2 R 7
Tamar Investments Group
Limited#§ & - R 1§ £
BLt+tRREEHDR
Tamar Investments Group

LimitedZ EF o

AERGRERRR B
Rt B 2 AN RIAR A AR

(L Fa

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
1. Interests in the Company
» (ZU%
KAAZLERKE (BhHEHE) aEf
Number of ordinary shares of the Company BATME
(after Share Consolidation) Percentage of
fANER DNEAER ARk R the Company's
Personal Corporate Underlying @5t issued share
interest interest interest Total capital
270,000 - 3,000,000 3,270,000 0.48%
(MEE2) (Note 2)
- 506,339,522 - 506,339,522 74.12%
(FF3E1) (Note 1)
- 506,339,522 - 506,339,522 74.12%
(FF3E1) (Note 1)
20,000 - - 20,000 0.003%
- - 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.44%
(M7E2) (Note 2)
240,000 - 2,000,000 2,240,000 0.33%
(M7E2) (Note 2)
- - 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.44%
(M7E2) (Note 2)
Note 1. Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group
Limited, which is a company owned as to 35% by
Dr. Chan and 35% by Ms. Cheng. Dr. Chan, Ms.
Cheng and Mr. Victor Chan are directors of Tamar
Investments Group Limited.
Note 2: These interests represented the interests in underlying

shares of the Company in respect of share options
granted to the Directors.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

2. Interests in associated corporation

Tamar Investments Group Limited

)

g#f

BARAR

AREEZEERYA Percentage

Number of ordinary shares of the associated corporation of the issued
AN NAER HRER share capital of
Personal Corporate Underlying @5t the associated
interest interest interest Total corporation
16 - - 16 16%

35 - - 35 35%

35 - - 35 35%

7 - - 7 7%

Except as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2021, no person, other than Mr. Victor Chan,
Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng and Ms. Vicki Chan, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
out in note 52 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 September 2021
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CONTINENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 282, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of mining right and related non-financial
assets

(Refer to notes 3.8, 3.9, 3.11, 3.13, 4, 14, 15 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements)

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had carrying amounts (before
current year's impairment) in relation to mining right and non-
financial assets of approximately HK$650.9 million and HK$38.0
million respectively relating to one of the cash-generating units
within the mining operation segment (the “Mining CGU II").

Management has performed an impairment assessment in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies and recognised
impairment losses of mining right and property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$59.9 million and HK$1.2 million
respectively for the year ended 30 June 2021. Management
engaged an independent valuation firm to estimate the recoverable
amount of the Mining CGU Il using market approach with reference
to recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry.

We identified the impairment assessment of mining right and
related non-financial assets as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because
the selection of recent comparable transactions involve significant
judgement and estimates with respect to the underlying market
approach.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of mining right and non-financial assets attributable to
the Mining CGU Il included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’'s competence,
expertise and objectivity;

- assessing appropriateness of the valuation methodology
used by management and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgement areas which underpin
the fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor’s expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimations
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.12, 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The carrying amounts of the Group's investment properties at
30 June 2021 was HK$1,928.3 million. Investment properties are
measured at cost on initial recognition, and thereafter are carried
at fair value, with any changes therein recognised in profit or loss.
During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group recognised a fair
value gain on its investment properties of HK$77.7 million. The
valuation of investment properties (including investment properties
under construction) involves significant judgement and estimates
and is underpinned by a number of key assumptions. The Group
carries out a valuation of its investment properties on the following
bases: (i) investment properties under construction are valued by
applying the residual method, which is determined by deducting the
estimated construction and other professional costs to completion,
including cost of construction, professional fees, associated costs
and an allowance for developer's profit margin from the gross
development value; and (ii) completed investment properties
(individual unit) are valued using the direct comparison method. To
assist management in this area which involves significant judgement
and estimates, the Group engaged an independent valuation firm to
perform the property valuation.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the valuation of investment properties can
be inherently subjective and requires significant judgement.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’s competence,
expertise and objectivity;

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
used by management and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgement areas which underpin
the fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor’'s expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Other Information in the Annual Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin
Practising Certificate Number P06162

Hong Kong, 27 September 2021
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2021 2020
k23 Fi#T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
I &= Revenue 6 536,267 420,315
HEMA Cost of sales (420,078) (328,284)
EA Gross profit 116,189 92,031
$HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (17,872) (18,920)
1TERE R Administrative expenses (93,339) (111,444)
E g A Other operating income 15,629 4,902
B NEMEEEIGKIEZ  Impairment loss on trade and other
BB EF R long-term receivables, net (2,389) (12,534)
KEMERNTEZEE Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 77,708 (5,257)
(5t12) / a4 HEX  (Impairment loss)/Reversal of
w2 REEE impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment 14 (5,759) 464
(FH2) / BEEKgEE 2 (Impairment loss)/Reversal of
REEE impairment loss on mining right 20 (59,892) 17,592
AR 10 BT 2 fl{E Share-based compensation 40 = (200)
& B A Al 2 Was Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 48 = 12,477
BT T% A AN Finance costs 7 4,511) (7,301)
B EEER Share of results of joint ventures (931) (26)
FE(L —EE &S QAR EE Share of results of an associate (2,523) 14,543
%m SHaEM (BE) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 8 22,310 (13,673)
BHEE, (FAx) Income tax credit/(expense) 9 11,959 (4,209)
FENER (BE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 34,269 (17,882)
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2021 2020
ifz3 FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Hit =Yz IR HIE Other comprehensive income, net
of tax
HEWNEMSBEEREZ Items that may be subsequently
HE: reclassified to profit or loss:
IAAFEFGTAHEMEEWEZ 2 Change in fair value of debt
EBETERFECE instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (945) -
& AR EFT AEAD Reclassified to profit or loss upon
ZE W 2 EB T AR disposal of debt instrument
EHOBREER at fair value through other
comprehensive income 8 -
BREBINETE 2 BN Z5 Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 45,079 (17,551)
HETEEHNMNEE Items that will not be
HEZEB: subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss:
N EAHRMEEWZZ Change in fair value of equity
HX$Iﬁ AEZ & instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,819 (9,440)
FRNHMMEE S f0RFIE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 45,961 (26,991)
FNEHEWHEEHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 80,230 (44,873)
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2021 2020
i3 F#ET FAET
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
FEAE & Mg H (B1E) : Profit/(Loss) for the year
attributable to:

KRBHEE A Owners of the Company 19,885 (15,341)

FE 17 Il 4 2 Non-controlling interests 14,384 (2,541)
34,269 (17,882)

EiEENEEW SR Total comprehensive income for

the year attributable to:

VN/NEIEZ 2= DN Owners of the Company 65,791 (42,332)

FEPE G Non-controlling interests 14,439 (2,541)
80,230 (44,873)

(Fe&E751)
(Restated)
A BN
HK cents HK cents
ANREEABIGEER Earning/(Loss) per share for
(BE)z8REN profit/(loss) attributable to the
(B518) owners of the Company 11
—HER — Basic 2.91 (2.25)

—#E — Diluted 2.91 (2.25)
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2021 2020
Hiat F#T FETT
Notes HKS$'000 HK$000
EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
VI R KR Property, plant and equipment 14 39,629 48,652
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 15 46,863 47,641
WEMEE Investment properties 16 1,928,300 1,564,100
EES Goodwill 17 8,124 8,124
| EE Intangible assets 18 8,234 8,222
FRIERE Mining right 20 591,056 594,773
P RN Interests in associates 21 29,882 32,405
REeEELHEIERS Interests in joint ventures 22 1,042 1,973
AT EFAEMEE Financial assets at fair value through
Wz eREE other comprehensive income 23 37,945 15,750
IAAFERTABZZ Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 28 11,370 =
& AR FE 5K I8 Long-term receivables 24 - =
FEETIBE = Deferred tax assets 37 2,728 5,762
2,705,173 2,327,402
MENEE Current assets
BERPYE Property under development 25 335,843 318,763
FE Inventories 26 214,417 220,522
=Y A& L] Trade receivables 27 99,943 92,687
TERTFRIE e R H A fEUR Prepayments, deposits and other
FRIE receivables 10,509 15,382
IAAFERTABRZ Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 28 12,185 13,201
BehkBeER Cash and cash equivalents 29 340,207 468,521
1,013,104 1,129,076
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 FRIE Trade payables 30 (67,725) (74,010)
HMERRIBRERE A Other payables and accruals (119,273) (44,460)
BHEE Contract liabilities 31 (720) (475)
RITRHEMER Bank and other loans 32 (707,010) (751,663)
HEBE Lease liabilities 33 (4,162) (3,976)
&S BAES A B 5K I8 Due to related companies 35 (7,225) =
B & & ERIAE Due to joint ventures 22 (1,036) (696)
FEAS I A 2 3R TE Due to non-controlling interests 34 = (29,340)
THIAR R Provision for tax (3,034) (1,998)
(910,185) (906,618)
REEEFE Net current assets 102,919 222,458
BEERTHARE Total assets less current liabilities 2,808,092 2,549,860
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2021 2020
it F#ET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EREERE Non-current liabilities
RITREMER Bank and other loans 32 (129,200) -
HEAE Lease liabilities 33 (15,167) (15,397)
FEAS RS A B 5K08 Due to related companies 35 (33,011) (30,550)
G IR IR 2 B3R Loan from a controlling shareholder 36 (4,802) (4,388)
FEAS JEIE B R e 5K T8 Due to non-controlling interests 34 (48,785) =
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 37 (130,619) (133,250)
(361,584) (183,585)
EEFE Net assets 2,446,508 2,366,275
e EQUITY
[N Share capital 38 560,673 560,673
G Reserves 39 1,683,578 1,618,910
KA B HER ANEILHE = Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 2,244,251 2,179,583
B ER Non-controlling interests 202,257 186,692
WA Total equity 2,446,508 2,366,275
REESTS On behalf of the directors
R {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
EZE Director
R = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
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2021 2020
k=3 F#ET FEIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
RETHHEERE Cash flows from operating
activities
BRATSBIATEF, (E18) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 22,310 (13,673)
B8t N5)IEE FHE Adjustments for:
BT RK AR Finance costs 4,511 7,301
HENB ARz WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries = (12,477)
[EhEEREER Share of results of joint ventures 931 26
FE(E — g E A RIEE Share of results of an associate 2,523 (14,543)
VARR 0 = B i 2 4R {8 Share-based compensation - 200
Yz B R ST E Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 4,117 4,059
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,142 4,496
FTIR (B E) HigiE 2 Impairment loss/(Reversal of
BB EE impairment loss) on mining right 59,892 (17,592)
sHHe/ (R W% BEK  Impairment loss/(Reversal of
=i R EEE impairment loss) on property,
plant and equipment 5,759 (464)
FERME Provision for inventories 7,658 2,912
B 5 W IR R Provision for trade receivables 2,389 13,234
HEWE BEMEZBEUAK  (Gain)/Loss on disposal of
FEREEEZ (K=),/ property, plant and equipment
=] and right-of-use assets (3,130) 63
S AT EF A EA Loss on disposal of debt
cEKEZEHFIAZ instruments measured at
[agi=! fair value through other
comprehensive income 8 -
WSH Y= - B K A Write-off of property,
plant and equipment 109 2
BEMENFEZEE Change in fair value of
investment properties (77,708) 5,257
AAFEEAEBZZ SR Fair value (gain)/loss on
BEZAYE (k) financial assets at fair value
518 through profit or loss (566) 223
RERINE (Uzs) BE Unrealised foreign exchange
(gain)/loss (1,228) 5,097
BLRE —[E R EsE A R 5B Gain on debt modification on
1ERETR 2 W amounts due to a related
company (1,446) (1,318)
[0l = HA FE Y SR IE 2 B Reversal of provision for
long-term receivables - (700)
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2021 2020
k23 Fi#T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BESLEHN ZKEET Operating profit/(loss) before
(B518) working capital changes 32,271 (17,897)
NBERPYE Addition to property under
development (14,731) (13,355)
FEEM Increase in inventories (6,171) (2,442)
Z S EWIE (380) 84 (Increase)/Decrease in trade
receivables (10,403) 26,830
TERFRIA - 1R e READ Decrease in prepayments,
JE W SR IR R deposits and other receivables 4,592 8,242
AR EGAERm SR Decrease in financial assets
BERD at fair value through profit or loss 1,841 =
FEM G &1 RIS Decrease in amounts due
from joint ventures - 54
B 5 N EoAth FE A5 FRIE LA & Increase/(Decrease) in trade and
FERTE ARG, () other payables and accruals 69,789 (14,934)
AHBREEM, CRd) Increase/(Decrease) in contract
liabilities 245 (752)
BERE (R ZRE Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 77,433 (14,254)
BATFE Interest paid (12,987) (25,370)
B EINTISFR Overseas income tax paid (42) -
LT R (BTA)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)
HEFHE operating activities 64,404 (39,624)
BREFRHRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
NEWE  WE &R Additions to property,
plant and equipment (1,845) (1,285)
NBEREWE Additions to investment properties (213,061) (42,513)
HEYE BENMEZMBEUAK  Proceeds from disposal of
FRAEEE S RIE property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets 9,147 280
HENATFEF AEMETE  Proceeds from disposal of financial
Wiz & EEZATSFIE  assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 14,477 -
BB A R EE 2 F3HE  Net cash outflows arising from
Vi acquisition of subsidiaries 47 (63,687) (39,806)
HEH B AR ZFTSIBF58 Net proceeds from disposal of
subsidiaries 48 - 11,085
B = BA e U 5k IE Receipts from long-term receivables = 700
—ENB AR ROEE Proceeds from dilution of shares
FriS 508 in a subsidiary 3 =
BEARAFEFAEBRZ Purchase of financial assets at fair
PRIEE value through profit or loss (11,629) =
BEUAAFEF AEMET  Purchase of financial assets
Wiz & mEE at fair value through other
comprehensive income (35,798) (5,167)
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2021 2020
ifz3 FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
REZBHAZHEEEH Net cash used in investing
activities (302,393) (76,706)
METHRERE Cash flow from financing
activities
BERRE Dividend paid = (17,078)
FEfE A Advance from non-controlling
interests 19,445 7,669
BEBERR Advance from joint ventures 340 696
) NGIEEN Advance from a related company 6,805 =
EEHERELEH Repayment of principal amount
of lease liabilities (5,205) (2,727)
FIRIT R EMERK New bank and other loans 186,988 250,100
ERBITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (102,493) (270,521)
HEFEE - (FTE)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)
HE/FH financing activities 105,880 (31,861)
ReRREE/ALER Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (132,109) (148,191)
EMZRERREER Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 468,521 621,380
IVSEREHH Y B Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 3,795 (4,668)
ERZREREEEH Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 340,207 468,521




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m ZR S E R

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THLFE

K0TREARRES
Equtyatrbutable o the owners o the Company

IAFEA

ih2E
Rt ERERE TUARER B izl ] LERE EXRERE AEEAEE Wakk REEH R 5]
Fair value
Share Non- Capial Eichange Assets through other Non-
Share opton  distibutable Other Specdl  contrbuton fluctuation revaugion  comprehensive: Retaned contoling Totd
aptdl resene fesene fesene fesene Tesene fesene fesene  ncome resene proft Total inetests quty
i FEr 7Hr FEr FET FET i FEr A 7Hr FEr AT

HSow S0 S0 S0 o S0 HSow Hsom S0 S0 Hsow S0 S0

RIF-1ELA-RZER Balance as at 1 July 2019 560,673 6409 213606 (5610) 2103 28567 (15,885) 3,385 191 1304834 2038793 183638 24081
-3 2019 Finl dhidend (note 10) - - - - - - - - - (17,078) (17078) - (17,018)
= Recogriton of she-based compensation
(note 40) - 00 - - - - - - - - 200 - 200
WEHBLA (Hmtth) Acauistion ofsubsidares (ote 471) - - - - - - - - - - - 559 5595
HEEALRS Tansacions vith owners - m - - - - - - - (17078) (16878) 5505 (11289
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - - - 5 o (15341) (1534) (2541) (1788)
EhdEka: Other comprehensive income:
HEENEHIEN 2R Bchange dfeenceson traniton of
foregn operations - - - - - - (17,551) - - - (17551) - (17551)
ATE AR ENE, Changes i fair value of financil
SHEENTEED assets at faitvlue through other
Comprefiensive income - - - - - - - - (9.40) - (9.440) - (9440)
ELES T Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - (17551) = (9.40) (15341) 03 (2541) (44873

RIBZRERAZTAZER Balance at 30 June 2020 560673 6,603+ 273606 (5610¢ (2103 185%7* (33,436* 3385 U 13045 217958 186,69 2366275
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KRAREARERE
Equity attributable to the owners o the Company

IWATE
AR

B BRERE TUAREE LhER HHRE hERE EXRBRE HEEREE SENENG REEH g FEsER Ea4E
Fair value

Share Non- Capital Exchange Assets  through other Non-
Share option ~ distrbutable: Other Specal  contnbution  fluctuation  revaluation ~ comprehensive Retained controling Total
capital Teserve reserve eserve Teserve reserve reserve Teserve  income reserve profits Total interests equity

fén i1 {23 fér i1 {21 fér féi i1 23 fén i1 {21
HSI0 WSO XSO0 HKSOND HKSOMD MKW AW AKSOW WSO WSO WSO SO ARSI

RZBZRERAZTAR Balance as at 30 June 2020
ZRCRELA-HIER and 1 July 2020 560,673 6,609 13606 (5610) (2103) 2,561 (33436) 36,385 41 1312415 217958 186,692 2,366,275
Diution ofshares i a subsicary - - - - - - 3) - - (391 (113) 1126 3
AREALRS Transactons with owners - - - - - - (13) - - (391 (113) 116 3
ENiEH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 19,885 19,885 14384 34,269
Efe2dEhs: Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on rangltion of
foreign operaions and jont vertures - - - - - - 4504 - - - 4504 5% 45019
WATEAZ 2 ENEL Chnges in fairvlue of fiencil
2TE 5D asets t fair vale trough oher
Comprehensie income - - - - - - - - 874 - 84 © 874
PDHENATEARREREL  Redasslid toprofit orloss pon
ERIARENARZER disposalofdebt instrument at
fairvale through
other comprefensive income - - - - - - - - 8 - 8 = 8
EREEREGR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - 4504 - 82 1,885 65791 14439 80,230
RIFZ-ERAZTAZER Balance at 30 June 2021 560,673 6,609* 213,606 (5,610)* (2,103 567 10,856 36,385 3359* 1331909* 2244251 02257 246,508
& ZEFBEDT ,m/\ﬁﬂ‘”zﬂﬁxﬁﬁqﬂ * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
i B E1,683,578,000/8 7T (= HK$1,683,578,000 (2020: HK$1,618,910,000) in the consolidated
— T4 :1,618,910,000/ T ) ° statement of financial position.
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— —RRER 1. GENERAL INFORMATION
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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

o Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds (“Jewellery Business”)

o Property investment and development
o Mining operation
° Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to
282 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (""HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2020

The Group has adopted the following new or revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant
to its operations and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The adoption of these new or amended HKFRSs

has no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2020 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The election to apply the concentration test is made
for each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business. If the
concentration test is failed, the acquired set of
activities and assets is further assessed based on the
elements of a business.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition,
the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2020 (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic (“COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”)
are lease modifications and, instead, account for
those rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and
explanation of “material”, aligning the definition
across all HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
Framework, and incorporating supporting
requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's
current intention is to apply these changes on the
date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabiltes as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020¢

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfllng a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle’

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
2021 Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021/

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Liabilities and
Deferred Tax Assets’
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it
refers to the revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 instead of the version
issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS
3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to
determine whether at the acquisition date a present
obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred
by the acquisition date. The amendments also add
an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o HKFRS 9, specify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current should be
based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

0] the classification should not be
affected by management intentions
or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if
the lender does not test compliance
until a later date; and
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (continued)

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-
current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.



Annual Report 2021 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THILFE

Z - FEEBUMBRE
28 @)

(b)

EEMEERERZ
IR SCHE RS
BREER (&)

BB Bi ERFE375%
(1&5]) [HEEEA—
BITE R Z A

ZEETERENZ B
TR BEEHAENE
BEHRBAIRA]-HELD
B2 ABE R RE
TAHNZIBERA (WE
BETRME)  IRA B
HETANERMARZE
AR A BE (D ECAR
BITRHZYME BER
REHEBZFEXH) -

BB IR R 2 FE
2t [ BB B EER
—EFE- N\ FE_F-FF

B FRAE]

SEFRUGEERT ST

an

. A RS A
BIZB15E [ & KR
MBEBT B RE
#8]] RFFEA
BB R E L
BIIZ515% 25D 16(a)
BB RARR
BERARBESR
BAMBRE L
AlzBE FEAE
NAIZHZEHE
AERNRE
o

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the “cost of fulfilling”
a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly
to the contract”. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs, Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

3 HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by
its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs, Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
(continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the "10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or
the lender on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that
example.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in
which an entity will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments
for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b)
hedge accounting in which an entity will not have
to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because
it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z_—F A=1THILFE

H

— - RAEEMBRE
A8 )

(b)

EEMEERERZ
IR SCHE VLR
BREER ()

BB ERE1H R
BB BB
BHFE29E (183])
[EFT B R K]

BEGHERAE IR 2 E
REFTBE: ()BRKAT]
BRERNGTBR Mk
TEEHEEK: (MEFHE
TEAR S HE ek
BREMBZ G BEARN
FMAEXR - B BARK
B R(iERLIERTA R
BEARG HEfEMHNBE
NBRZ T HERASY
EIYNCIPA 2 Y.
BXe

RIEFTZBBMBHRELE
AEBBRAESRAE S
AHERZBEBERBEAN
PR A48 51 A HTIE IR
i e

2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The key amendments to HKAS 1 include (i) requiring
companies to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting
policies; (ii) clarifying that accounting policies
related to immaterial transactions, other events
or conditions are themselves immaterial and as
such need not be disclosed; and (iii) clarifying
that not all accounting policies that relate to
material transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves material to a company’s financial
statements.

Amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 includes
guidance and two additional examples on the
application of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates: clarifying that they are
monetary amounts in the financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship
between accounting policies and accounting
estimates by specifying that a company develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out
by an accounting policy.

2021 Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 —
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The 2021 Amendment to HKFRS 16 extends
the availability of the practical expedient in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

ul
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Recognition of Deferred
Tax Liabilities and Deferred Tax Assets

The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on new standards, amendments and
interpretations, and have concluded on a preliminary
basis that these new standards and amendments
would not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in subsequent
years.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of
a business and control is transferred to the Group.
In determining whether a particular set of activities
and assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

33

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal.
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i —IA A XL HE T A& The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
B N fx > — 2 HAth 75 74 there is a contractual arrangement that confers
8 22 BE & B) < HE (R 4% joint control over the relevant activities of the
1 RIAEEAE ST HE arrangement to the Group and at least one other
Z— 75 o FLFEERIHE 2 & party. Joint control is assessed under the same
R Al B B S A ) 2 4% principles as control over subsidiaries.

il 2 FHE R RIAER -

REEBRE SR 21 The Group classifies its interests in joint

mO MR arrangements as either:

- BEbE AEE - Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
EEE=ZREEE only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
THEZ FEE 3 or

- HEKE  AEE - Joint operations: where the Group has both
EREEZEEER the rights to assets and obligations for the
eBELAER liabilities of the joint arrangement.
BEREEAE-

BREINER Yz P Epa) In assessing the classification of interests in joint

B AEEZE: arrangements, the Group considers:

- BT R - The structure of the joint arrangement;

— BB ERBAE - The legal form of joint arrangements
BRZeEERkE2 structured through a separate vehicle;
EEER

- aETHmEZ - The contractual terms of the joint
BRGT & arrangement agreement; and

= FREMEET R — Any other facts and circumstances (including
B (BEERE any other contractual arrangements).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture's
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group's presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date,
after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 3.13), and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value
in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.13). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is

calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Factory buildings Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 25 years,

whichever is shorter

Commercial buildings Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 33 years,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases or

estimated useful lives of 4 years,

whichever is shorter

10% - 33%

17% - 20%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold
land and buildings held for own use, they are carried
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value.
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and
would be under cost model. For right-of-use assets
related to interests in leasehold land where interest
in the land is held as inventory are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value in accordance with note
3.15. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Leasing (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

3.1

Leasing (continued)

Accounting as lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in note 3.13 below in respect of
impairment losses on intangible assets).

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
mining right, and interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

ul



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z_—F A=1THILFE

(o))

= XE

(&)

3.13

ERTECRIE

FTRMEERE (BB
BRON) (&)

SAHEREN S  HEE
REEEEARHM EBINE
EEZRSRA QIR
SEeRIBYIELRS
MAZ &/NEERER (B
REeELEM)EEAR
ElEE-Hit BOEE
EREITRERR - #80
AERESELBUER
TR - (R DR EE 18
VREGIEZRECEL
BUZEEMNG HEEE
REETERAREER
H & Bl 2 B R E X
A (WA 8)REME
B(WAEE) (W8S
ERE) -

HANEEEENKE S
BT HIRANEE)
AIB R EEER  EEE
Z B & FENMSHR B R I
EEDRESEERMEEZ
FRESHE (KMBRITER
) -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill) (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

~
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(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued))

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.
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314 2@ THE (&) 3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)
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EHTHA (&)

Debt instruments (continued)

AR FE AR Fair value through profit or loss: Financial
@ A FERA assets at fair value through profit or loss
BaZemEE include financial assets held for trading,
BREBIEEREZ financial assets designated upon initial
TRIEE R recognition at fair value through profit or
e SR B 38 TE /3 DA loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
NFEFAER to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
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are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,

PREEMRIM including separated embedded derivatives,
B & sk E m are also classified as held for trading unless
BA RS ERR they are designated as effective hedging
EEE - TETA instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
(BEEBZBA that are not solely payments of principal
XOTETE) NS and interest are classified and measured at
HERFIEER & fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
EERBUEH of the business model. Notwithstanding
TEREERIINRE the criteria for debt instruments to be
PRI AR =Y classified at amortised cost or at fair value
A& RHEZ through other comprehensive income, as
CPREEDEAR described above, debt instruments may be
A AFERAE designated at fair value through profit or loss
@ WEA A FE on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
FFAEm AR or significantly reduces, an accounting
T MRS mismatch.
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(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued))

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income: Financial assets that are held within
a business model whose objective is to be
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at fair value
though other comprehensive income.
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are recycled to profit or loss.
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314 £@THE (&) 3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)
() THEE (&) (i) Financial assets (continued)
ERTEA Equity instruments
R W) 48 BE R IE On initial recognition of an equity investment
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that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent

AN A JRCEH b E changes in the investment’s fair value in
T A 2 T W 5 other comprehensive income. This election is
E2IHEAFE made on an investment-by-investment basis.
LIBBEE) o RE Equity investments at fair value through
BRREZXEE other comprehensive income are measured
oo LARAFERTA at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
HEi2mEKE2 in profit or loss unless the dividend income
B ENRTF clearly represents a recovery of part of the
Bt 2 - REWA cost of the investments. Other net gains and

RIBETER - FRIE
B B U A B R

losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit

W B 38 7 1% & Bk or loss. All other equity instruments are
AN o M as K B classified as fair value through profit or loss,
BEEREME whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
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RS HER

interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(ir)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.
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314 £@THE (&) 3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)
(i)  EEEEZEE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets
BB (&) (continued)
AEBEEEER The Group has elected to measure loss

REEMBEHRSE
R 95% 2 ML
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allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

MEE={EL R
BAMES SR For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
BEMmMES - HHE based on the 12-months ECLs. However,
EEELA21ME A when there has been a significant increase
BHEEEER in credit risk since origination, the allowance
Efto-Am: B will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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314 £®THE (&) 3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) TRHEEZHE (i) Impairment loss on financial assets
B8 (& (continued)
REEEREE When determining whether the credit risk of
ZIEERREB a financial asset has increased significantly
IR HE R LA R E B since initial recognition and when estimating
B 78 = e & ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
HETEHEES supportable information that is relevant and
B AEEEE available without undue cost or effort. This
BE B R EAN includes both quantitative and qualitative
HAME Z KA information analysis, based on the Group's
o % 7 B AT 15 historical experience and informed credit
ZEBEAAEBER assessment and including forward-looking
TRHER BEE information.
REAEBEZRESL
KB kEFAE
Atz EE
EMERDNT 8
FERIEEER -
fisl & @b & &= 8 5 The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
FBIE30R - BIIARLE financial asset has increased significantly if it
BREBEZEEZ is more than 30 days past due.
EERBEBEE
e
rEERSEH The Group considers a financial asset to be
BEETIBR credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
THIREERE unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
MEBEFRADKFA Group in full, without recourse by the Group
BRI NHY to actions such as realising security (if any is
AEEZ EE % held); or (2) the financial asset is more than

- ERTERAR
£ B B E I a0
REM (NFE)
LRRTH: K
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90 days past due.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Financial Instruments (continued)

(ir)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset. For
non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classified its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. The Group's financial
liabilities are carried at amortised cost, which
include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank and other loans, lease
liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, loan from a controlling shareholder
and amounts due to related companies. They
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Gain or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the amortisation process.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial Instruments (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
9,
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)

Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss for the year.

~
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

3.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprise
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.22). Property
under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand and demand deposits.
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present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the

A 25t (RER) 2 amount initially recognised less any accumulated
ReEir=e amortisation, if appropriate.

O
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Share capital

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap.622, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or
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° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation

to transfer services to a customer for which the

Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

()

Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when
the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon
when the customers accepted the goods.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Invoices are usually payable 30 to
120 days.

Some of the Group's contracts with
customers from the sale of goods provides
customers a right of return (a right to
exchange another product). These rights
of return do not allow the returned goods
to be refund in cash. The right of return
gives rise to variable consideration. The
variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount
of revenue that will be deferred. In addition,
a refund liability and a right to recover
returned goods assets are recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

()

(ir)

Sales of goods (continued)

Some of the Group's contracts with
customers from the sale of goods provide
customers a volume rebate if the customer
purchases more than certain volume of
goods in a calendar year. The volume rebates
give rise to variable consideration. The
Group apply the expected value method to
estimate the variable consideration. A refund
liability would be recognised based on the
estimate of the expected value to be paid
for the customer’s volume-based rebated.
Any expected volume rebate provision is
recognised as refund liabilities.

Sale of property

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
held for sale is recognised in profit or loss
on the basis that control over the ownership
of the property has been passed to the
customer during the current accounting
period, which is the point in time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use
of the property and obtain substantially all
the benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under contract liabilities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method; and

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the

SBE AR BRI HEE Group operated a defined contribution retirement
Z BB R R FEHFGRIR benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
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employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group’s employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the United Kingdom (“UK") and the United States
of America (“USA") are required to participate in a
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the retirement
benefits scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Share-based compensation (continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in reserve will
be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts

“Investment Property”. Unless the
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
|loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z_—F A=1THILFE

—
N

= EEEFERBE
()

3.23 FEHERE (&)

BNEATE IR A 2 I AV EARL IR
BEESRATERAE
B2

@ AKBEHEERR
ERrR s EmIT
NS B R
THHE R

(b) FrEINFREE
HESRRZR

BERBEAE

AREBEESHRATERA
FEEIRERIREE R
BEFRIBALE

@ ERAEEZL
A 58 i B 1T 2
A % BD 3 B 1R &
EENHHIEE
BHH R

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b)

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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3.25 Segment reporting (continued)
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The Group has identified the following reportable

DEp segments:

. KRB X . Jewellery Business

. MERE RER . Property investment and development
. BRIE TS . Mining operation

. ®E . Investment

AR & B MRS 2R BT

Each of these operating segments is managed

ERRERETSHEER separately as each of the product and service lines
A EEESEZE requires different resources as well as marketing
BIT{EHRTET A approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
DEEEE(NE)RA carried out at arm'’s length prices.

FEIRHETT

$%@$§Tf§‘ﬁﬁ7ﬁ“$ﬁi The measurement policies the Group uses for

R ERBIEZH D &
REZTEHCR E@ﬁ*ﬁﬁ?
BEEVBRELENRR
SRR ANHEBEMER
MELARR 1 7 B 7 2 R 18
BTFEBRA - ST HE
AR FEE B 5 B ]
EENBIEBEHZ
RAMARFAL - I &
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=
4o

reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that share-based
compensation, certain finance costs, income tax
expense and corporate income and expenses which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment, are not included in
arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

3.26

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and cash
equivalents and deferred tax assets. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other loans,
loan from a controlling shareholder, provision for tax,
deferred tax liabilities and corporate liabilities, which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company’s
parent.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

0] that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

\e)
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment properties
are stated at the value based on the valuation performed by
an independent valuation firm. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has based its valuation on direct comparison
or the residual method, as appropriate for respective
investment properties, which involves certain estimates,
including comparable market transactions, estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development
and allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s
risk associated with the development, as appropriate. In
relying on the valuation, management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate for the relevant property and
reflective of current market conditions.

Net realisable value of property under development

Management determines the net realisable value of property
under development by using prevailing market data such as
most recent sales transactions and market valuation report
available from independent valuation firm. Such valuation
is made based on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainties and might materially different from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration
has been given to the underlying assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions exiting at the reporting
date. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the market.



Annual Report 2021 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THILFE

BRI & R R FIE

(&)

B RUHREZABEERBE
B

AEBERBREBEERETEESE
WRIBEZ EMEEER - BEE
TINEBBRUBBRRAZ AR
Fr#inizafBRSER-
BB R IAREE 2 B8
RENERER AEESRE
AR ARTRE M AR RBEELE
EBELR-

REHREAE AEESEHF
HELBRELE  WHHTAINE
MdEt 2 88 - HELERELD
L IAKBEMARARBREES
BzBzEEE T EBEKMG
FroTEHEEEBRzBHENR
R FERAE AR R 2 BB GURR o AN
SECELEEBBLERREL
AR 2 TR TR AR M B P AR K
ZEBRENBREARKRE -BH
AEBEZEZRRFEZBHEE
BB ERINRE B SRR M
—++RK%503HE -

B8 ZRE

BrmEed hREER AR
BORRECREELEMZE
REE FEEREER -EF
ALFTENREEEBUES
ZARKBEREAEBRRE
UetHEBRE-

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially based
on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information.

At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
would be reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation
among historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in notes 27 and 50.3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (except for
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made,
which is considered to be the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. All non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
as disclosed in note 3.13. In carrying out the impairment
assessment of mining right and related non-financial
assets, the directors use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique. Where appropriate, the
valuation is estimated by independent valuation firm based
on recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry which generally represent the best estimate of
the recoverable amount of the non-financial assets. Any
changes in economic conditions and mineral prices and
the availability of comparable transactions may materiality
affect the estimation of the recoverable amount of the non-
financial assets.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technigue utilised are:

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs

other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:
o Investment properties

3 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 16
and note 50.5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
have identified the Group’s four business lines as operating
segments. These four business lines are:

Jewellery Business

o Property investment and development
o Mining operation
o Investment
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- pEER @ 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@ EBoH (@)  Business segment
HEER NERERER it 3 %E &a
Property
Jewellery investment and Mining
Business development operation Investment Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

f#x T T TET Fi#r TEr fi#r TEn f#i TEr
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000

AlE: Segment revente:
HETNRRF/ Sales toRevenue from

RENREP M5 extemal parties 526,427 403,083 5463 4959 - - 4377 12313 536,267 40315
ABEE Seqment rests 34,169 (20649) 68,603 2005 (73,204) 11,097 (1,660) 6,405 27,868 (1122

Unallocated expenses (3,351) (7,149)
Share-based compensation = (200)
Finance costs (2,207) (5,202)
Profit{Loss) before income tax 2310 (13,673)

BREH DERARYR RRER RE &&
Property
Jewellery investment and Mining
Business development operation Investment Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 01 2000 bl 2020

-7 THL -2 TRL FEz TAL Féz THL 77 THL
HKSO00  HKSUD0  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO  AKSODD HKSUOD HKSOOO HKSUMD  AKSTOD

HHEE Segment assets 369,570 384,531 2,295,755 1917452 639,957 646,533 68,321 31934 3,373,603 2980456
BeRALEE Cash and cash equivalents 340,207 468521
EEREEE Deferted tax assets 218 5,762
AOBAFEE Unallocated corporate assefs 1,739 1739
BEGE Total assets 318211 3456478

AH8E Segment liabilties 113453 115,333 139,896 45993 39,057 35548 3813 886 296,219 197,760
RREMER Bank and other loans 836,210 751,663
BRRERREER Loan from a controling

shareholder 4802 4388
HERE Provision for tax 3,034 1,998
EEHAAR Defered tax abiites 130619 133250
vl G Unallocated corporate liabilties 885 1,144
Bf4E Total liabiies 1,271,769 1,090,203
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) HXBoE (& (@)  Business segment (continued)
KEEH NERERER RRER #E &
Property
Jewellery investment and Mining
Business development operation Investment Consolidated
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
FéT AT FET FET FET FAT Féx FET FET AT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
EppiHEn: Other segment information:
NE BERZERE  Deprecation of property,
plant and equipment (3,677) (3,652) - - (440) (407) - - (4117 (4,059)
FRREENE Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (4,850) (3315) - - (1,292) (1,181) - - (6,142) (4,49)
RENENTEZES  Change in fair value of
investment properties - - 771,708 (5,257) - - - - 71,708 (5,257)
IATEFABE L Fairvalue gainfloss) on
SREEZATENRE  finandal asets at
/ (E#8) fair value through
profit or loss (332) - - - - - 898 223) 566 (223)
HENATE AL Loss on disposal of debt
2ERHZEBIAZ  instruments measured at
1} fair value through
other comprehensive
income - - - - - - @) - (t) -
HEME BER&RE  GandLoss) on disposal of
WREREAEL property,
Wi/ (B8) plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets 3130 (63) - - - - - - 3130 (63)
W% BEREE  Wiite-off of property,
plant and equipment (92 (0)] - - - - (17) - (109) (0]
RERECERE Share of results of joint
ventures - - (931) (26) - - - - (931) (26)
l5—HBEQRESE  Share of result of an
associate - - (2523) 14,543 - - - - (2523) 14,543
(3H4%) /BEFEEZ  (mpaiment loss)Reversal on
AEBE impairment loss on mining
right - - - - (59,892) 17,592 - - (59,892) 17,592
(FH3) /BEME.  (mpaiment loss/Reversal
BERZEZHESE  onimpaiment loss on
property,
plant and equipment - - - - (5,759) 464 - - (5,759 464
FRER Provision for inventories (7,658) 2.912) - - - - - - (7.658) (2912)
BHRMFAREMRE Provision for trade
EMGUBRE 8 recelvables and other
long-term receivables, net (2389 (12,534) - - - - - - (2389 (12,534)
HMERA Interest income - - - - - - 3,156 9618 3,156 9618
LS Interest expenses (862) (778) - - (1,442) (1321) - - (2308) (2,09)
SER—MBEARZE Gain on debt modification
BRER K on amount due to a
related company - - - - 1,446 1318 - - 1,446 1318
REERGHPEE  Additions to non-current
segment assets 5815 7,021 278,061 4513 181 - - - 284,057 49,534
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group's segment revenue from external
customers and its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas.

ﬁ_j\ o
REMRERAZWE
Revenue from
external customers
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (FEfti) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 38,512 38,237
=M North America 278,299 202,087
B & A B Europe and Middle East 205,058 173,870
E b [E Other locations 14,398 6,121
=k Total 536,267 420,315
ERBEE
Non-current assets
2021 2020
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,965,730 1,607,413
EEM North America 28,816 30,631
=13 United Kingdom 5,522 5,334
elEy N Mainland China 653,062 662,512
&5 Total 2,653,130 2,305,890
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(b)

MEER (&)
A B ERH T ERE

FimEl D - ERBEE
(EMTARREREE
ERON) 2 3R AL B T A
REEBRAELED -

WITESEEAKEZM
WHRER MEBRAE
Bz A E R P o
BT EEFLZEH

KE—BEEEF (AR
EEWE10%A EE)

=

(b)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographic information (continued)

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
physical location of the assets.

The executive directors determine the Group is
domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
Group's principal office.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a major customer, which amounted
to 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out

Z WS below:
2021 2020
FH#E T FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEA* Customer A* 90,737 67,371
K REBRFEAZWZER * The revenue from Customer A was all derived by

HDRE (BRI
25

the segment engaging in Jewellery Business.

O
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(@)

A & 6. REVENUE
FAER 2 WEOT Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:
2021 2020
Fi#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEEZHENAXELZ  Revenue from contracts with customers
g
HE S m Sale of goods 526,427 403,043
DERE D Sl 6 Revenue from other sources
e U A Rental income 5,463 4,959
A BB A Interest income 3,156 9,618
& 2 B A Dividend income from investments 1,221 2,695
536,267 420,315

TREHBRETP ZEHNALH
EXZEFREFTARENAE

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with

2B R customers.
2021 2020
FH#E T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 EW R TE (MizE =+ 1) Trade receivables (note 27) 99,943 92,687
aHaE (fEdE=+—) Contract liabilities (note 31) 720 475

N—EZTFA=+H AH
AEFEENCHERAHES
——FARNA=THIFEZKEE
ZTEWEFRE-

RZE-_—FA=+H 1Bl
BEFERK(E720,0008 70 (— ==
T4 1 475,000787T ) RIREAS
ERESGHNHMRBITZBHNE
Bz HEBEHNARERZ
Wias o AN =B R R IR TR B AT
EIERFHERE AR FEEBR
—FRNEELE-

As at 30 June 2020, the contract liabilities mainly related to
the advance consideration received from customers which
has been recognised as revenue for the year ended 30 June
2021.

As at 30 June 2021, the advance consideration received
from customers of HK$720,000 (2020: HK$475,000)
represents unfulfilled performance obligation under the
Group’s exiting contracts. This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when performance
obligation is completed, which is expected to occur within
one year.
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+ - MHRAE 7. FINANCE COSTS
2021 2020
F#ET TF#ET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEZH: Interest charges on:
R1T R EME K Bank and other loans 12,987 24,592
HEBBEZAE Interest on lease liabilities (note 33)
(EFE=+=) 862 778
JE 1~ — i Bt & BRI 5k IR Imputed interest expenses arising from
FIEE 2 BHH SR amount due to a related company 1,442 1,321
BRIEE R : Total borrowing costs: 15,291 26,691
B B Z AR Less: interests capitalised in
—EWE — investment properties (note 16)
(B EE+7X) (8.431) (15,644)
—BRPYE — property under development
(ME=1+%) (note 25) (2,349) (3,746)
4,511 7,301
FRABRERNZEERATE R Borrowing costs capitalised during the year were calculated
HEBEREEZ X HEATFLN by applying a capitalisation rate of approximately 1.5%
15% (ZEZFF :31% ) 2 #& (2020: 3.1%) per annum to expenditure on the qualifying
FRENRLERGTH assets.
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8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

(B18)
2021 2020
FET FAT
HKS$'000 HK$°000
NEBBRFFEREATEF,  The Group's profit/(loss) before income tax
(E518) The&Hnkr is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(FrA)ATIEE EB
BEEHEFEERA Cost of inventories sold 375,239 290,473
ME BB RREBITE Depreciation of property,
(MIzE+PY) plant and equipment (note 14) 4,117 4,059
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15)
(P EE+T) 6,142 4,496
Z A B & Auditor’s remuneration 1,150 1,370
MBS N Short-term leases charges 32 305
KEEBEEHESH Low-value assets leases charges 1,663 1,916
FERE Provision for inventories* 7,658 2,912
IAAFERTABZZ Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets
TREEZATE at fair value through profit or loss
(Wzs) /BB (566) 223
FRONE (Uess) 1B Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (9,258) 5,097
HEWE BB K&K (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
FRAEEE, (W), plant and equipment and
518 right-of-use-assets (3,130) 63
TLIEN —RREH A 5]Z T8 Gain on debt modification on amount
BB 2 e due to a related company (1,446) (1,318)
WEE T - BB R Write-off of property, plant and equipment 109 2
* FAZFEREC AGE @ Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost
BakEMEERERANZ of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of

[SHEMA] o

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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L RS (Re) BxX 9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

BEMNESHUNFEFAREBEE Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
ZAhFH AR T R = A % 16.5% 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
—E_TF165% )T E-H arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
fth b [ FE FR A s M) o B IE T & assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
RARE B E X 2 ADERE rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
@2 RITER  ZEREM & operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
ZE R AERBRRER 2B EET practices in respect thereof.
o
2021 2020
F#ET TF#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN ERTR A Current tax
BB Hong Kong 88 30
SZIN Overseas 114 =
BAEFEBREES Over provision in prior years (19) (257)
183 (227)

EEFRIE (MisE=+1+) Deferred tax (note 37)
KEEZ Current year (12,142) 4,436

Fri8®i () /Bisz 4% Total income tax (credit)/expense (11,959) 4,209
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and

BMEFEZg R (BE) accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:
Z AR
2021 2020
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
BT ER AT A (E518)  Profit/Loss) before income tax 22,310 (13,673)
Hmfi%ﬁ £16.5% Tax on profit/(loss) before income tax,
ZZETF:165%) calculated at the statutory rate of

B ZBRAASTA 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)

wmAl (EE) A 3,681 (2,256)
REAM AR L E 2 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

B AR TRMRE 2 operating in other jurisdictions

-2 (5,618) 165
EihEaEhEEEL Tax effect of share of results of joint

Mg & ventures 154 4
N E - v Tax effect of share of results of associates

MR8 416 (2,400)
AR FAS 2 S 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,175 2,186
BRI A 2 BTS2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (13,996) (2,733)
) B ERER Utilisation of tax losses previously

MIBEE not recognised (1,835) (473)
REER %RIEF TP Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

%7 3,831 9,977
RIERE ET ZRz Tax effect of temporary differences

Mg 2 not recognised 263 (4)
AR SRR Over provision in prior years (30) (257)
Frs®i (%), B Income tax (credit)/expense (11,959) 4,209
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+- BRR 10. DIVIDENDS
2021 2020
F#ET TF#ET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RE—FEEMNZ Final dividend paid in respect of

REARR B & A%0.25% 11l the prior year of HK0.25 cent per share

(B&1D & BFAT) (before Share Consolidation) (note 38)

(=4 - 17,078
RZBZ—F AT ERET At the board meeting held on 27 September 2021, the
LEEEER L EEBAERE directors resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK2.00
IR AR HARR B &A% A% 2.0075 cents per ordinary share. The proposed dividend has not
fill- ZBERENR T —F<AH been recognised as a dividend payable as at 30 June 2021,
=T HERERREMNRE - 1E but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits
BERMAEHE—T - _F <A for the year ending 30 June 2022.
=THEFEZRBREFOE -

BEETEEMEBE_ST_TFX The directors did not recommend any payment of dividends
A=+tHItFERMEMRE - in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020.

RZZE—NFNA=THERE The final dividend approved on 30 September 2019
2 AEAR% 817,078,000/ L E R amounted to HK$17,078,000 was paid on 2 January 2020.

—E-_ZF—A_HIEfe
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(o))

+—- BREM A (&E) 11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

RAEHER A ERRER R The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

SERF (BB TER T attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
B E - following data:

2021 2020

F#ET FAT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FUAGTEERERNER],  Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners of
(EE) 2ARARHEAB A the Company for the purpose of
FEEm T (E18) basic earnings/(loss) per share 19,885 (15,341)

icdi 8 S g=|
Number of shares
2021 2020
(g&=E7)
(Restated)

FULGTEEREARER],  Weighted average number of ordinary

(B18) 2 E B shares for the purpose of

T2 basic earnings/(loss) per share 683,118,258 633,118,258
TF)IEE W N 2 BEEE  Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

THER TR in respect of

— BB AR (FATEEG)) — Share option (note (i)) 175,342 =

BT ESRESER T, Weighted average number of
(E1R) 2 Edm i ordinary shares for the purpose of
58K diluted earnings/(loss) per share 683,293,600 683,118,258
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+— 8BREMN (BHE) 11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

(&)

Kat - Notes:

(i) BT - —FXNA=1+ (i) For the year ended 30 June 2021, the calculation of basic
HIEFE ARAF#HAA earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
EEERERERFHER Company was based on the profit for the year attributable
ZNYNEIE RN R Ay to the owners of the Company of HK$19,885,000
#)19,885,000/8 7L (= Z — (2020: loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
TEARAQAEAR AEM Company of HK$15,341,000) and on weighted average of
F N E5 18 15,341,000/ 7T ) 683,118,258 (2020: 683,118,258) ordinary shares during
K& R B R N T 5 & the year.

683,118,258/ (=T =&
£ :683,118,2580% ) 5T & «

HE—T-——FA=+H For the year ended 30 June 2021, diluted earnings per

IEFEE BRESRNEE share amounts is based on profit for the year attributable

TERARBES AEMG to owners of the Company of HK$19,885,000 and on

A5 719,885,000/ 7T K the adjusted weight average 683,293,600 ordinary shares

FRETENEBREA outstanding during the year, being the weight average of

N #E - ¥5 £1683,293,600 number of ordinary shares of 683,118,258 used in basic

R (NFRTFEERELRR earnings per share calculation and adjusted for the effect

FIFT AR 2 & AR hn e 15 2 of deemed exercise on share options of 175,342 existing

683,118,2580% & &R IEFT{E during the year.

IHE175, 38210k 2 &8

AE)FHE-

TESRARNREERT The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

(B18) FT A 2 L mAk hn i purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

HHERR ST —_—FhHA share have been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of

=+—HEKRZRNE G share consolidation completed on 31 May 2021.

ZUEEMARE-

BHE_ZT-_FTF,A=1+H For the year ended 30 June 2020, the computation of
WEFE: EEI NS AR AE A R diluted loss per share did not assume the exercise of share
SERE MR EEREE option as they were anti-dilutive.

JE 2 IR I AR R R AR AT

fiE e
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)

2021 2020
F#ET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000

TE #He 2K Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits
B =t in kind* 99,761 95,288

REH-FORRET B H K Contributions on defined contribution

retirement plans 7,514 7,082
VARR D B B0 2 i (E Share-based compensation - 200
107,275 102,570

AR R B A 3% P 8 4 2 3 SR 02 UL
ZHR (REERENEBER
EHRBAIC MR ENEER
fEHE) Bt WEREOL IR
AHEARERARRERRERE
BAREFT N FKF

g RBEE_ZT=-—F A
=tHLFEE A£EE
HES KR FHEEER
(ZE=_ZFF:5F HH
K EE) Z BT 20 P9 42 B
11,160,000 L (ZE =F
£ : 8,038,0005 7T ) 2 B AT
BB Th R BT R20198
MRimE S ([COVID-19]) K
MITHEEEERRHEZX
B ERFERE ERKE
EAPZHEANERZE
BB FEERER(ZF
—TFE /B EEKER)
MBARRETELIE &
ZELRINEEERRES
BRARNSEEZERMEH
BXE-R_E_TF+A
2T _—FRA(ZZE=
TE T _TEPPHEN
A) AEEBEESHAMEE
FERAAEERKE
Z B9 B111,160,000/ 7T
(ZZE=_F % :7,214,000/%
TIREBT(ZT_BF:
824,000 7T ) ° % L BT
B 4B R BTk E sk A=
1A o

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers on

behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting

fully in such contributions) in the Group for both years.

Hence, there is no forfeited contribution available for the

Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to the

pension schemes in future years.

#

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group has
received government subsidies of HK$11,160,000 (2020:
HK$8,038,000) from government bodies in Hong Kong,
UK, PRC and USA (2020: Hong Kong, UK and USA) with
regards to government support towards entities during
the Coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic
situation. The purpose of these government subsidies is to
provide wage support to the subsidiaries in Hong Kong,
UK, PRC and USA (2020: Hong Kong, UK and USA) of
the Group to retain employees and to provide financial
support to the Group's operations during this period of
economic uncertainty. The Group has utilised these grants
received for compensating salary of HK$11,160,000
(2020: HK$7,214,000) and utilities expenses of Nil
(2020: HK$824,000) from July 2020 to June 2021 (2020:
April to June 2020). There are no unfulfilled and other
contingencies attaching to these government grants.
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(BFERBZ_T=ZE)5%
—ANT=KRAE (#
BESMNZER) A

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is as

(BRAZT=GE )HE follows:
ZEEEHMOT
2021 2020
Fi#T FET
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EEwe Directors’ fees 250 250
Fe 2UMREDANR Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 7,177 8,592
TE4L Bonus 369 1,150
RIREFIFT B R Contributions to retirement
benefit schemes 338 390
B < 4258 Total emoluments 8,134 10,382
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(a)

EEHM R R 13.

EeamALTZME

(&)

EsME (&)

FRAENKENSESZ

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

RN directors during the year were as follows:
BEZEZ-—% Year ended 30 June 2021
NA=ZTHLEEE
HE BMR RIAEF
2 EWFE 4 RIS st
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefit
fees in kind Bonus schemes Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
(BHEG))
(note (i)
wiTEs: Executive directors:
HEEZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 1,800 50 81 1,931
L8 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 1,740 50 78 1,868
RER Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,104 46 50 1,200
BREL Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,460 102 M 2,673
EER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1,452 121 18 1,591
FHTES: Non-executive director:
s Yam Tat Wing 50 - - - 50
BIEHTES: Independent
non-executive
directors:
ABR Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
TR e Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
BERE Sze Irons 50 - - - 50
RSB Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
HEZS (F) Waiver of salary (note (ii) - (1,379) = = (1,379)
&zt Total 250 71771 369 338 8,134
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+= EEHMERAN 13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
Ram AT ZHME EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
(&) INDIVIDUALS (continued)
() ES=Me (&) (@)  Directors’ emoluments (continued)
BE_ZE_FF Year ended 30 June 2020
AAZ+ALEE
e 2R RIRER
£ ik BNl vzl TRl e
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors' and benefits benefit
fees in kind Bonus schemes Total
FET FHET FAET FET FHET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000
(Br=EG)
(note (i)
wiTEs: Executive directors:
BEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 2,400 200 108 2,708
B Cheng Siu Yin, Shirey - 2,280 190 103 2573
REx Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,104 120 50 1,274
BREL Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,460 400 11 2,971
BER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1452 240 18 1,710
FHTES: Non-executive director:
(R3d Yam Tat Wing 50 - - - 50
BIFaires: Independent
non-executive
directors:
REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 = - = 50
IR e Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
R Sze lrons 50 - - - 50
RibE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = = = 50
HEEE (F3Ea) Waiver of salary (note (i) - (1,104) - - (1,104)
h Total 250 8592 1,150 390 10,382
et - Notes:
0] TEALAE = 2 (85l 0) The bonus is determined by the individual
BRET- performance of the directors.
(ii) & 2o FX (ii) For the year ended 30 June 2021, due to the
A = i/EJ ﬁ: E\E ’\ cost saving policy, executive directors voluntarily
HR BT 5%? A agreed to waive their entitlement to certain
B JﬁxiﬂiT;ﬁ%é remuneration of approximately HK$1,379,000
FEREMEZES (2020: HK$1,104,000).

T % B 491,379,000
BT (ZBE_FF:
1,104,000 7T ) ©
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+=

(a)

(b)

B R R
EeamALTZME

(&)

EsME (&)

FRN ARELERAES
SAHEMBEER AL
PN SR IR 2 2R sk
RERLA(E -

AfUGRSFHFAL
FAAEEBRURSH
ALTBE=R (2%

FOR)EFE WRE
MER EXF2512 5

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2020: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The

R FRERNEHRAL emoluments payable to the remaining individual
ZBemT during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ ERL R H A A E Salaries, allowances and other
benefits 5,235 1,512

ABUER T 5 B & &
(EE/IN)

The number of individuals fell within the following
emolument band (excluding the directors):

2021 2020
i & & Emolument band
1,500,000 7T Z2,000,0007% 7t HK$ 1,500,000 to
HK$2,000,000 - 1
2,000,0005% 7T £ 3,000,0007% 7t HK$2,000,000 to
HK$3,000,000 1 =
3,000,0005% 7T & 3,500,000/ 7 HK$3,000,000 to
HK$3,500,000 1 =
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+m - M - BB R 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2
G4
EFR R %8
RENEEE RERE HREHE RERRE EEIR @t
Furniture,
Buildings fixtures and
and equipment
leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
improvements structures machinery vehicles in progress Total
TET AT AT FET AT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
RZF-AELRA-A At 1July 2019
AR Cost 87,569 47,703 45,801 56,736 12,892 250,701
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (67,612) (28,951) (42,578) (53,016) (6,966) (199,123)
REFE Net carrying amount 19,957 18,752 3223 3,720 5926 51,578
BEZZZERA Year ended 30 June 2020
StHHLEE
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount 19,957 18,752 3223 3720 5926 51,578
AE Additions 337 - 141 807 - 1,285
WERHB AR (HEMT-+()) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 47(b) = = 1,081 355 = 1436
HE /i Disposals/Written off (60) - = (285) = (345)
ik Depreciation (2,403) - (259) (1,398) - (4,059)
HEEERE Reversal of impairment loss 68 234 1 1 160 464
A% Exchange realignment (624) (665) (56) (152) (210) (1,707)
EXREFH (Closing net carrying amount 17,275 18321 4132 3,048 5876 48,652
RZZZFEXAZTHR  At30June 2020 and 1 July 2020
“FZTELA-A
A Cost 85,442 46,036 46,88 57,103 12,440 247903
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (68,167) (27,115) (42,750) (54,055) (6,564) (199,251)
REFHE Net carrying amount 17,275 18,321 4132 3,048 5,876 48652
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PR ERAR FYRE

2]

+H - %k BER 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
=y L :
e (@) (continued)
EFR - RE-
HENEEE REEE ERREE RERRE ERIR @t
Furniture,
Buildings fixtures and
and equipment
leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
improvements structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
AT AT AT AT &L AT
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BE_S--%XA Year ended 30 June 2021
ZtHLEE
EURETE Opening net carrying amount 17,25 18,321 4,132 3,048 5876 48,652
e Additions - - 114 1,731 - 1,845
HE /M DisposalsWritten off (4,650) - - (92) = (4,742)
Vil Depreciation (2.222) - (215) (1,680) - (4117)
HEER Impairment loss (168) (4,607) (5) @) (937) (5,759)
ERAE Exchange realignment 1,072 1,737 50 332 559 3750
ERRETE Closing net carrying amount 11,307 15,451 4,076 3,297 5,498 39,629
R-F--£XA=1H At 30 June 2021
R Cost 77,234 47,703 46,99 58,390 12,892 243,215
ZHERRE Accumulated depreiation and
impairment (65,927) (32,252) (42,920) (55,093) (7,394) (203,586)
REFE Net carrying amount 11,307 15,451 4,076 3,297 5,498 39,629
Htat: Notes:
(a) RZZT=Z—FA=+8" (a) As at 30 June 2021, certain property, plant and equipment

7N £ [810,534,000/8 T 2 &
T BE K& #EEEK
BEXKEF—EARSEE
BA([RBERSEEEN
INE#E ERRERSE
BT EATRE T

4,591,000 7t (=T =F
F | ZETHEEEDR
T8 E SRR T BT E R (A -

of HK$10,534,000 of the Group, which are related to
one of the cash-generating units of the mining operation
("Mining CGU 1), were assessed for impairment under this
Mining CGU | and certain of these assets amounting to
HK$4,591,000 (2020: Nil) were impaired as a result of the
delay of the predetermined mining plan.
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HE-ZT—

—FRAZTHLEFE

+m - WE - BER

& ®

Hiet: (&)

(@)

(%)

ZRBERSEL B A
61 $ %8 4911,436,0007% 7L T
ERMBRRE RN (2
ERNTFHRASRERA)
B A FER & KA
E-RNEEREELBM
BEEEPd f IR e
R

—E-—fF
+EHEBER  F1522%
Tt 1% Bh3R &= 9.87%

fisat R B I B IR
BRSE LB BERR
RERBHTHER LAY
BT FRASELEMY
ATEAEIBATENE -

R=ZZF-_—FxXA=+8"
AN £2 812,124,000 7T (=
= — T4 112,446,000 7T )
ZETYE BERZER
REEHBHER —EReEE
B ([RBERSEEEN
1) B0 HARBESEL
B8 7 |12 R 3 AT R (B AT
fiy R BB 5E — T FT I B #E
BELSELEMIZAKES
B ETZEEEZREE
181,168,000 7T (=T =%
F : 8 (0] Rk (B /5 18.464,00075
TT) ERIBmIER

R-ZB-—F A=+
H ANEBBEREEFHELN
7,661,000 L (=2 =%
£ :8,279,000 5t) 2 & T
EFREEMEEE KE
RHERIA R ML R E - 3RE
RABEEER EAAEH
BRZ—RRITEEREZ
ER(WEF=+=) -

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The recoverable amount of this Mining CGU | amounting
to approximately HK$11,436,000 has been determined
based on the fair value less cost of disposal using
discounted cash flow projection which was based on the
cash flow projection for a period of 10 years. Key estimates
and assumptions used for determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU are as follows:

2021

Growth rate during the 10-year period ~ Average of 2.2%

Post-tax discount rate 9.87%

Estimates and assumptions are determined by management
based on the past performance of the Mining CGU | and
management’s expectation for the market development.
The fair value of the Mining CGU | is a level 3 fair value
measurement.

As at 30 June 2021, certain property, plant and equipment
of HK$12,124,000 (2020: HK$12,446,000) of the Group,
which are related to one of the cash-generating units of
the mining operation (“Mining CGU II”) are combined with
the mining right under the Mining CGU Il for impairment
assessment. Impairment loss of HK$1,168,000 (2020:
Reversal of impairment loss of HK$464,000) has been
recognised to profit or loss on certain of these assets
according to the recoverable amount of this Mining CGU |l
as disclosed in note 20.

As 30 June 2021, the Group’s certain buildings and
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery, and
furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor vehicles
with aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$7,661,000 (2020: HK$8,279,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
32).

ul
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(o))

+H EREEE 15.

EREEERTFRIZEBEE
BREH 2 oM T

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying assets is as follows:

HinHEE
IitiE AR HELH BRAZYE A5t
Other
properties
Land use Leasehold leased for
rights land own use Total
FET FET FET FE7T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R-F—hA&tHA—H At 1 July 2019
HEN Cost 41,686 3,538 1,645 46,869
ZEIE Accumulated
depreciation (11,815) (2,121) - (13,936)
fREFH Net carrying amount 29,871 1,417 1,645 32,933
HEZZE-FTH,xA=1H Year ended
EFE 30 June 2020
FHIBREH 5 Opening net carrying
amount 29,871 1,417 1,645 32,933
NE Addition - - 5,736 5,736
WK B A A Acquisition of
(M s ++(b)) subsidiaries
(note 47(b)) - - 14,899 14,899
HE—RERA Disposal of a subsidiary
(=R +1\) (note 48) (216) - - (216)
WEZH Depreciation charges (1,285) (50) (3,161) (4,496)
BEE 5 B Exchange realignment (998) - 217) (1,215)
FAREREFH Closing net carrying
amount 27,372 1,367 18,902 47,641
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HE_Z-_—FX A=THILFE

+hH- EREEE @ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
HinfAE1E
T R HETH BRAZYE R Et
Other
properties
Land use Leasehold leased for
rights land own use Total
FET FET FET T
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZEZEE/A=1THE At30June 2020 and

—F°_FH£EA—H 1 July 2020
B AR Cost 40,090 3,538 22,063 65,691
ZEE Accumulated
depreciation (12,718) (2,171) (3,161) (18,050)
RREFEH Net carrying amount 27,372 1,367 18,902 47,641

BZEZE-F-—%7BA=1+H Yearended

IEFEE 30 June 2021

FAAREF5E Opening net carrying

amount 27,372 1,367 18,902 47,641
NE Addition - - 4,151 4,151
FEZ Depreciation charges (1,368) (53) (4,721) (6,142)
HE Disposals (1,384) = = (1,384)
BE 5 GRB Exchange realignment 2,450 - 147 2,597
FARREFH Closing net carrying

amount 27,070 1,314 18,479 46,863

NIEZ—E7A=Z+H At 30June 2021

DN Cost 40,549 3,538 26,695 70,782
2ETE Accumulated

depreciation (13,479) (2,224) (8,216) (23,919)
REFE Net carrying amount 27,070 1,314 18,479 46,863
RZEBEZ—FA=1TH &% At 30 June 2021, certain of the Group's right-of-use assets
(%] AR M 48 882,539,000/ T (= with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$2,539,000 (2020:
T T4 :2516,00087T) 2 & HK$2,516,000) were pledged to secure general banking
THEAEEEEEH tEAEAE facilities granted to the Group (note 32).

BER —RBITEEREZE
ROFE=+=) -
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[o¢]

+x BEWE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REEIRBL ST ERFH AGRE All of the Group's property interests held under operating
Me 1EEREE EMERE leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes
MRS ERPIERKIZED or property that is being constructed or developed for
XABzMEME BERAY future use as investment properties are measured using the
BEEHE WHERRARY fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
EREWE investment properties.
RERE MBI KR ES 2 FRE S Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
BMEBH RO - consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:
2021 2020
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
FYRESRE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 1,564,100 1,511,200
NE Additions 213,061 42,513
BEREFTERZHE Interests capitalised (note 7)
(PF&E£) 8,431 15,644
AT EFHEZ W, Gain/(Loss) from fair value adjustments
(E1#E) 77,708 (5,257)
Uk B — 1 B /B 1 =) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 47(a))
(FFEEm++(a)) 65,000 -
EREEER Carrying amount at end of the year 1,928,300 1,564,100

FR-FIBEE2E CHLER
FEFEER TEAEEEAL
BHEIE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.
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HEZZ-_—FXA=-THLFE

T+

BREWME #)

RZEZ—F~A=+H'B
ERKIEE BRI ERMTT
BRARI(ZEZZF % H
B E2RITERARDKAEE
LB E(ZE_ZEF B
BE)ETHE SH2HEE
/268,300,000 L (ZE =&
£ :175,100,000/8 7T ) ° H#& Lt
BEERFEIBERYE 2K
T HESRRER  MAERET

BEBE RS R BIZEYT
BEMAET-
RIZB-—FXA=1+H R

RIREY BRI AERMTE
BRAR (ZEZZF H iz
MTAERAR)HABREE(Z
?_gi BRER)EITHE"
B~ & 18 A1,660,000,00078
71:(_7_7¢ 1,389,000,000
BIL) cBEEBBRBERE
BENRETEEEAAN (B2
LR BEEBR BB
B A A N LA K 35 IR o [ P % s
BHE)EE -

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Completed investment properties were valued at 30 June
2021 by Knight Frank Petty Limited (2020: Knight Frank
Petty Limited) at HK$268,300,000 (2020: HK$175,100,000)
by adopting the direct comparison approach (2020: direct
comparison approach). The direct comparison considers the
sales, listing or offerings of similar or substitute properties
and related market data establishes a value estimate by
processes involving comparison.

Investment property under development was valued
at 30 June 2021 by Knight Frank Petty Limited (2020:
Knight Frank Petty Limited) at HK$1,660,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,389,000,000) by adopting the residual method (2020:
residual method). The residual method is determined by
deducting the estimated total cost of the development
including costs of construction, professional fee, finance
cost, associated costs and an allowance for developer’s risk
and profit from the gross development value.

O
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(@)

T REWE &) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
REBIREME AT EBES The fair value of the Group's investment properties is a level
EBREM R TERE  FAHEF 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the
NATEGEREROT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:

2021 2020
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000

F4EH (F3BLFE M ATFE) Opening balance

(level 3 recurring fair value) 1,564,100 1,511,200

NE Additions 213,061 42,513
BEEFTEANZFE (HEt) Interests capitalised (note 7) 8,431 15,644
NEERAEZ K (BE)  Net gain/oss) from fair value

FER adjustments 77,708 (5,257)
Uk B — s B /B 1 &) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 47(a))

(MEm++@) 65,000 =
FERER (F3BERKEE/ATIE) Closing balance

(level 3 recurring fair value) 1,928,300 1,564,100

MERAFEESABRZ Change in unrealised gains or losses

FRAREHW RN EEZ for the year included in profit or
loss for assets held at the end of
the year 77,708 (5,257)
AN EFEN AR EYESE The fair value measurement is based on the above
TERSEA (HEERARL investment properties’ highest and best use, which does not
mAE) BEM differ from their actual use.
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BHE-Z——

FRA=Z+TBLEFE

+5

BREWME #)

TREHEBNAETRE DS
AFEZER

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair

values of the investment properties are determined.

AEEERBNE
HH et EXEEBEEME EXREBEBANEZEE iﬁ"ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ{%
Relationship of significant
Significant unobservable Range of significant unobservable inputs to
Description Valuation technique inputs unobservable inputs fair value
2021 2020 2021 2020
ERMRENR ERuEE  ERMSE NEEE IMELE -10% - +- 0% M%*@WTEW%%Z
Completed Direct Direct KNREE +10% -10% EEAR ATERR
investment comparison comparison Quality of properties such as location, The higher the quality of
properties approach approach size and level of the properties properties with reference
to comparables, the higher
the fair value.
ERORENZ B BEA REEZNRER CBERARE BIHR 5¥AR BYRRERRDS ATHE
Investment Residual Residual B U RNEREMENEZ  262008%- 288007 fime
property under method method MERDN NEEE HERE  520008T 5200087 The higher the price per
development = HKS26,200-  HK$28,800 - square foot, the higher the
Vialue per saleable area using direct HK$52,000 HK$52,000 fair value.
comparable and taking into per square foot  per square foot
account of the location and other
individual factors, such as size of
property, level of property, site view
etc.
B 35% 35% EREAE ATEAE
Discount rate The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
BT IRA BIHR &¥AR EHTIRARR ATE
Estimated costs to completion 4308 T 4,007 i
HK$4,230 HK$4,200 The higher the estimated
per square foot  per square foot costs to completion, the
lower the fair value.

RZEZ—FA=+H K&
R T 4 %81,838,300,000/8 7T

— T — T4 :1,564,100,000/8
T ZREMEREHR EAX
SEERZETRITEEZER
(MsE=+=) -

As at 30 June 2021,

the Group’s investment properties

with carrying amounts of HK$1,838,300,000 (2020:
HK$1,564,100,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 32).
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+t- B8 17. GOODWILL
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
F YRR E S Opening net carrying amount 8,124 =

W BB R B A R EAE Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(B ++(b)) (note 47(b)) - 8,124
FREMEFRE Closing net carrying amount 8,124 8,124

REEE GRS 2 BB R U
BOREEBERSTEKE TN 2R
PEEEMN ([EEKRBERCE
A B47 | ) Novell Enterprise LLC
(TNovell 1) - BB B R ERIH
ZEHERM T B

goodwill are disclosed in note 19.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to Novell Enterprise LLC (“Novell”) under cash-
generating unit of Jewellery Business in US (“Jewellery US
CGU"). Particulars regarding the impairment testing on
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HEZZ-_—FXA=-THLFE

+\- BREEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2021 2020
F#ET FEIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FYIRREF Opening net carrying amount 8,222 =

W R B A R E AL Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(B #EE++(b)) (note 47(b)) - 8,292
bE W AR Exchange realignment 12 (70)
FORARE 5 Closing net carrying amount 8,234 8,222

R—ZE-_—F~A=+8"
8,234,000 L (ZZE=FF:
8,222,000 L) 2 BIZ B &
F;‘J?QiﬂﬁiﬁtﬁZ%i“\
Bro B A EEMER - 57
ZEB EHR A KEEM
A5 A [Wright & Lido | &
[Lieberfarb | G 8 & 18 2 K B 4
M-EZRE ZEWEHRTE
HesRRArSEELEFRS
WA B A EEERERSE
H-FHEFEAERBRR 2
ERAMIFE+ LI EE -

R-ZE-_—FX~NA=+H"
8,234,000 L (—Z T =—F F :
8,222,000/ L) v BB E
EER ERAEBERZ —
MIBITEERE 2 ER (M=
=t+=)-

At 30 June 2021, intangible assets of trademarks
amounting to HK$8,234,000 (2020: HK$8,222,000) were
arising from a business combination in prior year. Intangible
assets represent the perpetual right to use of brand name
of “Wright & Lido” and “Lieberfarb” which takes the form
of sign, symbol, name, logo design or any combination
thereof. The directors considered these trademarks have
an indefinite useful life since they are expected to generate
net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely. Particulars of the
impairment testing on intangible assets are disclosed in note
19.

At 30 June 2021, intangible assets of HK$8,234,000 (2020:
HK$8,222,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 32).
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+h- EEEBEVNER 19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

O
Iy

ERTHERER
% 2 H{E A

RETRERNR WME+ER
TN\ RIFrE RA EEEE Al £
FHRENETEECRAT
BENEEXERERCELE
G- ZFERAEEERENES
PRt /R S TaE 2 IR & mEAl -

ERIRER S EEBEN 2D
CRNEREBEBEFEEETE %
EHEARRAERESMILER
FHMETEE 23R &M R o {F
REBEAEEZETERELAEH
BARME X BRE BHEER
%&W%%”ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%Zﬁf
MEA2% (ZE_ZFF:2%)
ZAREt B R EER M
ZIERERWNBEEERKER
RRERE -AEEGARRE
i TH 5 ¥ & SR EE 2 fHE R
CELBEMBBERRZ BRI
EAFTREER KB RE -FAE
MR RS DERBERBERE
BESTSERAHREE -

AR ERKBTIRCELS
UzTERRERZLEERAETF
17.8% (ZZE-ZF:13.7% ) °

EXZRN AR EAURERH
WL RE + 4 Ko+ \ 53 Bl Pk
LR RETEERRRE -

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, all the carrying
amounts of goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite
useful lives set out in notes 17 and 18, respectively, have
been allocated to the Jewellery US CGU. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors.

The recoverable amount of the Jewellery US CGU
is determined from value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors, covering a five-year
period. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates,
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period. Cash
flow beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated weighted average growth rate of 2% (2020:
2%), which does not exceed the long-term growth rate
for the jewelleries industry in the US. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the cash-generating unit. The growth rates,
budgeted gross margin and revenue are determined based
on the past performance and management’s expectation of
market development.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
Jewellery US CGU is 17.8% (2020: 13.7%) per annum.

In the opinion of the directors, based on the aforesaid
impairment testing, there is no impairment recognised in
respect of the goodwill and intangible assets as set out in
notes 17 and 18 respectively.
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“+ REEE 20. MINING RIGHT

2021 2020

FET FETT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FYIRREF Opening net carrying amount 594,773 598,387
FROCRAE) BERE  (mpairment)/Reversal of impairment

for the year (59,892) 17,592

PE I F 2 Exchange realignment 56,175 (21,206)

FRIREFHE Closing net carrying amount 591,056 594,773

ARE B RE Gross carrying amount 1,005,347 918,588

EETE#E Accumulated amortisation (4,551) (4,158)

TR EEE Accumulated provision for impairment (409,740) (319,657)

BREFEE Net carrying amount 591,056 594,773

RUBHE P SRABIR & E A B AL
Z A B BERDFEREE
KA E (F3BAFENE)
BE-HKBRSELEBEMIZG
ERFERA REREEER
RFT i EREE R MR AR
TR B 2 BN (ERMTT AR A B
BAEBERLAR (ZE_FF:
RMABEFEERAE)ET

R-ZZB-_—FXA=1H &E&
ReELEMIZATFEREE
RAERTZERL(ZT-F
FMSEER)RAOCHES
R E-FERBRSELE
IR FERER 2 28R KRR
DAL R {ERTT 2 SRR R K
e

The recoverable amount of the Mining CGU Il to which
the mining right belongs was determined based on the
measurement of fair value less costs of disposal, a level 3
fair value measurement. The valuation of the Mining CGU
Il was carried out by BMI Appraisals Limited (2020: BMI
Appraisals Limited), an independent valuation firm who held
recognised and relevant professional qualifications and had
recent experience in the location and category of the mining
right being valued.

The fair value less costs of disposal of the Mining CGU I
as at 30 June 2021 was measured using recent sale and
purchase transactions under the market-based approach
(2020: market-based approach). The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the Mining
CGU Il were based on the independent valuation firm’s best
estimate.

Ul
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“+- REEe

ZAEZ BERERE R AEN
T

20. MINING RIGHT (continued)

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

2021

HErEEER 2 T HEEEE
The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources

RPBRERRERH

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple

EE#km S ([COVID-2019] ) M {EH Z BL3R
Discount due to Coronavirus (“COVID-2019")

2020

A ESERZ T HETEHE

The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources
KARERKERER

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple

EE A ES ([COVID-2019]) M {EH < BEIR
Discount due to Coronavirus (“COVID-2019")

30%%100%

30% to 100%

BRAR®B43 6T (BERER24ET)E
Br ARK227T (HENERB.7ET)
RMB43.6 per gram (equivalent to HK$52.4
per gram) to RMB82.2 per gram (equivalent to
HK$98.7 per gram)

20%

20%

30% 2 100%

30% to 100%

BRARBA74AT (HERER52.08TT) 2
B AR®E89.4T (HFERERB.1ETT)
RMB47.4 per gram (equivalent to HK$52.0
per gram) to RMB89.4 per gram (equivalent to
HK$98.1 per gram)

200/0

20%

B ESE R T T &S E A
B AFERRK - KARER
REGHEAS AFERS-
ECOVID-2019if 1 i 2 Bk 25 &
& AFEAK-

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources was, the lower the fair value was. The higher
the adjusted consideration of resources multiple was, the
higher the fair value was. The higher the discount due to
COVID-2019 is, the lower the fair value is.

B ERMTTMEE BIRTHEE
MR ITE B R A - LARCE S E

By improve the valuation technique.

The independent valuation firm exercised their professional
judgement to estimate the uncertainty of resources to
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—1+- REE 20. MINING RIGHT (continued)

BE-_ZT-_—F~A=+HL
FE-2REHTH ESR
REBESEEBMIZ AT
[B] & % {f 51 /&497,927,0005% 7T

—Z = F 4 497,855,000/
70) - B UL E BRI s R X
ZRERESELBMIFBERE
(HEIE T 75 =2 2 A1) 61,060,000
BT (ZE T4 B ROREE
/&5 818,056,0007%8 7T ) < & B &
B(ZZEZZF  EOREE
BIEPEERBEALYE
BEREEB2EE2ED R
59,892,000/% 7t % 1,168,000/
T (ZZ ZF % :17,592,000/%
I % 464,00058 7T ) 1 48 B
TR 214,974,0008 L (Z 2 =
T4 14,514,000/ 70 ) AR 1B 2
FRERAMGHER (ZEZT
FREHAX) REEE (=
ToTF BEREBE) A
REBEEDE T 2 ERERET
MEEBE(ZT T F : BER
EEE)TZEEHRNESTES
BT

For the year ended 30 June 2021, with reference to
the assessment, the directors were of the view that the
recoverable amount of the Mining CGU Il was estimated
to be HK$497,927,000 (2020: HK$497,855,000) and
therefore, impairment loss before offsetting tax effect
of HK$61,060,000 (2020: reversal of impairment loss
of HK$18,056,000) in respect of the Mining CGU Il of
the mining business was identified. The impairment loss
(2020: reversal of impairment loss) was allocated to the
carrying amount of mining right and property, plant and
equipment by HK$59,892,000 and HK$1,168,000 (2020:
HK$17,592,000 and HK$464,000) respectively while the
related tax effect amounting to HK$14,974,000 (2020:
HK$4,514,000) was recognised as an income tax credit
(2020: income tax charge) in profit or loss. The impairment
loss (2020: reversal of impairment loss) was included under
mining operation of the Group's operating segment. The
impairment loss (2020: reversal of impairment loss) was
primarily due to the change in market gold price.

—t+— REEQFEZ 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
HE 25

2021 2020
Fi#&T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
G FEE Share of net assets 33,780 36,303
BB Provision for impairment (3,898) (3,898)
29,882 32,405
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0°]

“—t+— RBERXFEZ 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
A D)
RZBEZ—FA=FTHEK=Z Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2021 and
ZTEERA=TH X2HER 30 June 2020 are as follows:
BlZ BT
AMmL KEEELS
E1 BRREMERFHE A RS R BEEEZAN TEXH
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of paid-up registration and attributable to the
Name registered capital operations Group Principal activities
Metropolitan Opportunity B4R 47,582,398% T FREFHES 30 REZR
Fund SPC* Paid up capital of USD7,582,398  Cayman Islands (ZZ=Z%:30) Investment holdings

30 (2020: 30)

* FRBERB L EERETAE @ Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
BABERARS I EREZ
E MK B A alizE e
BERR LA REEE AR The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion
FEREFAEEHE QA RZEE of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’
SARRK AR EEIEBE AR FEE results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
EXRRED EERA M share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give
HiB e AR 2B 88 HEE details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
ENAVIIE= directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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“+— REERQAFAZ 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Bm )
PN F E B &£ 2 A The summarised financial information of Metropolitan
Metropolitan Opportunity Fund Opportunity Fund SPC, a principal associate of the Group,
SPCZEIBERBE (Ftra H extracted from its management accounts are as follows:

BB :

2021 2020
F#ET FEITL
HK$°000 HK$°000
®~A=+H As at 30 June
mENEE Current assets 106,606 118,241
EmBEE Non-current assets - -
mEAE Current liabilities (7,801) (11,094)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities = -
FERE Net assets 98,805 107,147
NS E iy /NG Group's share of the net assets of
HEE the associate 29,882 32,405
BEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Was Revenue = -
FN(EBE),wfl (Loss)/Profit for the year (8,538) 48,391
H 2 T s Other comprehensive income 196 (304)
FHEKEBEE Total comprehensive income (8,342) 48,087
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T+ REELEZ 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
W=
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
IR EE Share of net assets 1,042 1,973
Bt & & ERE Due to joint ventures (1,036) (696)

ENRRREER 28 RAR

S men
ERER

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

RZZE-_—FRA=+H & Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2021
BEPEZFBNT: are as follows:
ERTREERT MM
&1 A&/ EME RS Mt AEBEERBEETA DL TEXH
Particulars of issued and  Place of Percentage of ownership
paid-up share capital/ incorporation/ interest attributable Principal
Name registered capital registration to the Group activities
2021 2020
Reta Investment 10,000 ordinary shares of ~ British Virgin Islands 50 50  Investment
Holding Limited US$1 each RERIHS holding
10,000 Bk EE REZK
XL EBR
Metropolitan Capital 5,000,000 ordinary shares ~ Cayman Islands 33 33 Investment
of US$0.01 each HEHS holding
5,000,000 & B E & REZR
0.01KTT 2 BB
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REBREED®HEReta
Investment Holding Limited
([Reta Investment | » 7 2 & B2
ZRHEFMKIRRBAEE L
BUEBMEER)HEAS0% (=
T_TF :50% ) #Ea o bt A
S B R & & 1 3 Metropolitan
Capital (RF =8 S M &
NEBEEZ BN ARIEERE)
HAE33% (ZFT=_FTF:33%)
B - aNTHERAREEIRE
HEZECETHTEERR
Z TR MReta Investment
Metropolitan Capital=®= & # A ¥
EEREECEIREEGESR
FEBEZEE - RESBHBE®
HERENR  ZEEERHSR
HREERF WEFAERZE
RERE I RTR AR -

"+ REELEZ 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
A D) (continued)

The Group has 50% (2020: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Reta Investment Holding Limited (“Reta Investment”),
a separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and operating in Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group also has 33% (2020: 33%) interest in joint
ventures, Metropolitan Capital, a separate structured vehicle
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and operating in Hong
Kong. The contractual arrangement provides the Group with
only the rights to the net assets of these joint arrangements,
with the rights to the assets and obligation for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement resting primarily with Reta
Investment and Metropolitan Capital. Under HKFRS 11,
these joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
and have been accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method.

N
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N
N

—_+=-

REEEERZ

22.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

e )

AEBZEKNE YD ¥Reta
Investment 5z E [} & 2 7] ([Reta
Investment&s & | ) 2 87 7% & #HEE
B R

ZUREFAREELER S

(continued)

The summarised financial information of Reta Investment
and its subsidiaries (“Reta Investment Group”), a material
joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
amount included in the Group's consolidated financial

KZEEmeBZEEROT statements are as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RANAB=+H As at 30 June
FERENEE Non-current assets - -
MENEE Current assets 2,037 4,078
EmE AR Non-current liabilities = -
mE B & Current liabilities (223) (405)
HAEEREEREZ Recondiliation to the Group's interest in
Wz 2 ¥ER the joint venture
FEE Net assets 1,814 3,673
R IERE R A Less: Non-controlling interest = =
SEPERRFAA Net assets attributable to equity holders of
JEEFEE the joint venture 1,814 3,673
STA LI ZIER Included in the above amounts are:
ReENRRESEH Cash and cash equivalents - =
nEemasE (~eR Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
B 5 Kk EMERFRIA) and other payables) (223) (405)

FERBAE (TEEEM
e RIE K it )

Non-current liabilities (excluding other
payables and provision)
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—t+= REELEZ 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
=L = .
e (continued)
2021 2020
F#ET FET
HK$000 HK$°000
BEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Was Revenue = =
FAEE Loss for the year (1,859) -
H 2 e Other comprehensive income = =
FEWRBEE Total comprehensive income (1,859) -
FTALAFIEZIEE ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
ITE K E Depreciation and amortisation = -
FEHA Interest income = _
FEMAX Interest expense = -
FrigtiE Income tax credit = =
HASEREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's
HE AR interests in the joint venture
BEPREAFAA Net assets attributable to equity
E{FEE holders of the joint venture 1,814 3,673
REE 2 BERER Group's effective interest 50% 50%
AEEELEEPRE Group's share of net assets of
REE the joint venture 907 1,836

N
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H

—t+= REELEEZ 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
=z ,
e ) (continued)
REBBZEKRE & B FE The summarised financial information of Metropolitan
Metropolitan Capital 2 81 75 & #} Capital, a material joint venture of the Group, and
HEZ LA R BR T AR SR B4R S B 7S reconciliation to the carrying amount included in the
WMEREASE 2 EHERNOT Group's consolidated financial statements are as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R7~A=+H As at 30 June
EMENE E Non-current assets = -
MENEE Current assets 410 414
EmBARE Non-current liabilities - -
mENEE Current liabilities = -
HEE Net assets 410 414
FTALMFRIEZIEE ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
RERRESEHE Cash and cash equivalents 19 23

nEemas (T~es Current financial liabilities (excluding
B 5 R EMERRIA) trade and other payables) =

FERBEE (FEIEEM  Non-current liabilities (excluding other
FEAT FRIE R ) payables and provision) =
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“+= REELREZ 22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
=L = .
i #) (continued)
2021 2020
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
BEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue = =
FRNEE Loss for the year (@) (80)
H b2 EkEs Other comprehensive income = =
FEWEBEE Total comprehensive income (4) (80)
STALMFRIEZIHE Included in the above amounts are:
ITE K SH Depreciation and amortisation = -
AMEHA Interest income = =
FEFAX Interest expense - =
Frg i Income tax credit = -
HASEREELXZ Reconciled to the Group's
S interests in the joint venture
BEPERERFAA Net assets attributable to equity
EEFEE holders of the joint venture 410 414
REB 2 BFE#Em Group's effective interest 33% 33%
AEEELEEERE Group's share of net assets of
FEE the joint venture 135 137

N
o
Ul



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z_—F A=1THILFE

N
()}

—+= UAFEEFAN
Hit2ENEZ

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

EREE INCOME
2021 2020
k=3 F#ET FEIT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EHBEAREE Listed equity investments,
TR : at fair value:
BB Hong Kong 23,076 14,463
H i 5 Elsewhere 3,632 1,143
(a 26,708 15,606
H i 5 2 3 EmAEAS Unlisted equity investments in
& UARFE elsewhere, at fair value (a) 144 144
HEfbih 5 2 &S Listed bonds in elsewhere,
LAAFE at fair value (b) 11,093 =
st Total 37,945 15,750
Htat - Notes:

@ HRARERBZEF LM M
I LR AR A BN SR A 1
E -8B A AE i 3R TE PA
AFHERT AR R

(b) %E EMEFZEHNREM
BHRAARE XA E A
SEZEBEABBETER
WmeahBRenEHES
BMEEME N ER-

The listed and unlisted equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

The listed bonds where the contractual cash flows are
solely principal and interest and the objective of the
Group's business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
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—+= UAFEFAN

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Hit2mWHEZ THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
EMEE 7 INCOME (continued)
Htat - (&) Notes: (continued)
© LA R B iR - (© The following gains were recognised in profit or loss:
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEBREERARFEF AEM  Dividends from equity investments held at
E2EWERFEZRAKZE fair value through other comprehensive
iR E income recognised in profit or loss:
HENK R EEH Related to investments derecognised
during the year 55 -
HERNEEBRE L REEGH Related to investments held at
year end date 764 2,573
“+m REABWFIE 24. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
HteE Fi&T FEIT
Notes HKS$'000 HK$ 000
O R Promissory notes (@) 3,621 11,449
H th &= HA fE SR IE Other long-term receivables = =
3,621 11,449
B R Provision for impairment (3,621) (11,449)
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PR ERAR FYRE

N
(0]

—+m REEBWIIR

24. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

(&)

EAEBRRERE 2 EEHMT Movement on the provision for impairment of promissory

notes is as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FUEEER Balance of the beginning of the year 11,449 11,449
i1 555 Written off (7,828) =
FREE Balance at the end of the year 3,621 11,449

RSB R ERE 2 B8

Movement on the provision for impairment of long-term

T receivables is as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
FEEER Balance of the beginning of the year - 700
B R EEE Reversal of impairment loss = (700)
FREHR Balance at the end of the year - =

Htat: Notes:

() N_ZE-——EXxA=+8" (a) As at 30 June 2021, the promissory note of HK$3,621,000

3,621,000 L (=2 =%
£ 3,621,000/ 70) Z & K
ERAEERR 2B KRAR
—EE=F=-FA+RHBEH
T=FHE-ENBREE
EE B AEEBE R AT
FEEHZERE-

RZZEZTFA=1+H"
7,828,000 7T 2 7k H, 45 84
REER REREHR-T
T—F+A—HBEHSTARE
BB - ENEREEALE
B AEEERAEFERE
2 ERE °

(2020: HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable by 13 annual instalments commencing on
15 March 2003. In view of default in repayment of the
promissory note, a full impairment was made in prior years.

As at 30 June 2020, the promissory balance of
HK$7,828,000 were secured, interest-free and repayable by
15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October 2001. In
view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full
impairment was made in prior years.
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“t+HRBERPYWE 25. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FYRETE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 318,763 301,662
NE Additions 14,731 13,355
BERFTERZFE Interest capitalised (note 7)

(B EE+) 2,349 3,746
FAREESRE Carrying amount at end of the year 335,843 318,763
RZTEZ—F A=1+H EE As at 30 June 2021, property under development
4 % #9335,843,0005%8 7T (= amounting to approximately HK$335,843,000 (2020:
T T4 :318,763,0008 L) & HK$318,763,000) was not expected to be realised within
TR BRE A B REBR the next twelve months from the end of the reporting date.

K+ _—ERARNEE-

RZEBEZ—FA=1TH &% At 30 June 2021, the Group's property under development
] 48 BR [ ¥ %8 49335,843,0008 with aggregate net carrying amounts of approximately
L ( ZZF =T 4 : 318,763,000/ HK$335,843,000 (2020: HK$318,763,000) were pledged
TIZBRRMECER ER to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
REBER 2 —RRTEERE (note 32).

ZHER(ME=1T=) -

—t+rx HFE 26. INVENTORIES
2021 2020
F#T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R #L Raw materials 74,707 75,097
R Work in progress 10,382 10,337
SUAK AR Finished goods 129,328 135,088
214,417 220,522
RZZEZ—FA=+H"E&F At 30 June 2021, certain inventories with aggregate
BR A 42 5855,571,000/8 7T ( =& carrying amounts of HK$55,571,000 (2020:
— Z 4 : 54,759,000/ 7T ) Z 1% HK$54,759,000) were pledged to secure general banking
EEER EARERER Y — facilities granted to the Group (note 32).
BIBITEERE 2 EZR (K
=t+=)-

N
(@}
O
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N
(e)

—t+t- BESREWUARIE 27. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
F#ET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 fEWGRIE Trade receivables 145,795 135,653
R FEUN FRIE 2 REREE  Less: provision for impairment of receivables (45,852) (42,966)
B 5 W GRIE — 5 Trade receivables — net 99,943 92,687

NEE —MRIRRBITEE IR
EREPZEE BERLHERL
EFHRBREIRTERPZEE
B -BEEPHRERREE
HH o ZN &= B 3 AR (R R WG IR
HEFS ER IS 1R ] o 8 BAFR IR B = AR
EREEHERN- reviewed by senior management.

R|E A MRBERERH
SR A2 B P UG IERER

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of

DHTAT the sale, is as follows:
2021 2020
FH#E T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0-30H 0 — 30 days 40,742 16,928
31-60H 31 - 60 days 35,769 10,222
61-90H 61 — 90 days 15,115 3,562
90H LA Over 90 days 8,317 61,975
99,943 92,687




Annual Report 2021 F iR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE-_Z-_—FA=1HLFE

—t+t- BESEWRFKIE 27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
(&)
BEHASEEEERERE SRR Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
FIEAMEAEERR 2 E— arising from trade receivable are set out in note 50.3.

FE M FE50.3 °

RZEZ—FRA=1TH &F At 30 June 2021, certain trade receivables with
BR T 42 5832,659,000/8 7T (=& aggregate carrying amounts of HK$32,659,000 (2020:
ZZEF:26,175,0008 L) 2 & HK$26,175,000) were pledged to secure general banking
SEWHIEEER EEAEE facilities granted to the Group (note 32).
Bz —RIBITEERE 2BER
(ME=+=) -
Z+I)\ UAFEEFAN 28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
BHEZEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
et F#ET FAET
Notes HKS$°000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets
BEREREES Investment fund in Hong Kong,
ARFE at fair value (a) 11,370 =
MBEE Current assets
BB LETRAFS - Listed equity securities in
AR{E Hong Kong, at fair value (b) 4,690 5,769
HAithh 5 EhES Listed bonds in elsewhere, at
AR B fair value (@) 7.473 7,432
ESRT A Derivative financial instruments
AR FE at fair value (d) 22 -
12,185 13,201
MENVEEE NARFE AR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss under
ZEREENGEIR imuii\%ﬁq current assets presented within the section on operating
KEEY—H2Y AEEESH activities as part of changes in working capital in the
Boz—&ne consolidated statement of cash flows.

No
—
—



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R MzE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z_—F A=1THILFE

N
N

— -t
—+I\ UAFEFA 28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
o S S > .
*ﬁ.ﬁiZﬁﬁT\ﬁE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continuea)
(&)

Htet - Notes:

(@) BBEW MRS RS RF) (a) The Investment fund with cash flows that are not solely
BREeREZREEET payments of principal and interest is classified and
A FEBER - AR FEE measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
ANB@HBERETE - the business model.

(b) ETRABSIFEEE - (b) The listed equity securities are held for trading.

(© ETESF TS RE KA (© The listed bonds do not qualify for measurement at either
AR TFER AR M EE amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
mLETEARK income.

(d) R-E-_—FxA=+H" (d) At 30 June 2021, the Group's derivative financial
AEEZITESBMIAEI instruments represented foreign currency forward contracts
BEFHEZINEREEK - denominated in GBP and the fair values are based on
DA TR MR © RS IR the quoted prices from the relevant financial institutions.
M mBEHE - ZEFRPE The notional amounts of these forward contracts are
#)2 H{& /3200,000% 7T ( = USD200,000 (2020: Nil) and the forward currency rates
ToTFE) MAAZE of all these contracts ranged from GBP1:USD1.4044 to
BHZRIEMEE R T GBP1:USD1.4047 with various maturity dates from July
EX R WV ESEN S5 2021 to August 2021.

1.4047%% 70 BIEBAR A =T
——FEAE—T=_—FN

AT
(e) PATR s/ (E518) P8 ax T (e) The following gains/(losses) were recognised in profit or
R loss:
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
Hig g W ANE#H Fair value gains/(losses) on equity
AATERTABRZ investments at fair value
BAKE 2 A FERS through profit or loss in
(E8) other operating income 1,116 (73)
Hib & WA RNE B Fair value gains/(losses) on
RNEEFHAERZ debt investments at fair value
BEHEREZ ATFERS/ through profit or loss in other
(E1#8) operating income (218) (150)
Hip &2 ARG B@ITE Fair value loss on derivative financial
SRMIAEZATESE instruments in other operating
income (332) -
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“t+h RERREEH 29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REeRBRSFHEBBEUATED

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
2021 2020
F#ET FEITL
HK$°000 HK$°000
g HASRIT 17 5K Short-term bank deposits 236,377 402,888
e MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 103,830 65,633
340,207 468,521

RITHERER T RRITERF
RFEEFUEEAE - RN -_T - —4F
NA=Z+TH EHETERZE
FEHAE—EARN(ZE=ZF:
—ZE=@ATE) EBEFMX
0.29%%0.45% (=T — T &
0.2%%=1.60% ) BRENA & -

ARBEERR HRNRITHEE
AN ST IE R NS =
FoeBIEEAER-

RZE-_—FA=+H &K
EAARBE RS RIBITHE
#:49/510,786,000/8 7T ( —F —
T4 18,771,000 7T) * B BN
BT AR B ARERTTSE F 58
FE ARBWIFTEHLB 2
B o AR AR AR B K B 2 NE B 1R
1601 R 4508 - B RASEE IR
EASERERREREET
SNEZS 2 IRITIHARKE LIRA
HNEE

The bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. As at 30 June 2021, the short-
term bank deposits are made for varying periods within
one month (2020: between one to three months) and earn
interest ranged from 0.29% to 0.45% (2020: 0.2% to
1.60%) per annum.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi ("'RMB") amounting
to approximately HK$10,786,000 (2020: HK$8,771,000),
which were deposits with banks in Mainland China or held
in hand. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

N
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“t+h RERBREEHE 29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(&) (continued)
RZE-_—FA=+H ' &F At 30 June 2021, certain cash and cash equivalents
ARE 4 %E41,0008 L (=2 =F with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$41,000 (2020:
F 1 400,000 7)) 2B KRS HK$400,000) were pledged to secure general banking
SRHEEH (EAAEEERZ facilities granted to the Group (note 32).
—MRIBITEEME 2R (T
=t=)-
=+ ESEMRE 30. TRADE PAYABLES
B 5N TR 2 Z E R E fE B The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
(B 1R 7 175 E < 1Rk T N[ terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
RpEBH EREZRHCA trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
SEE ZENRIBRE D TH on the invoice dates, is as follows:
T
2021 2020
FiET FAET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
0-30H 0 — 30 days 31,292 24,050
31-60H 31 - 60 days 13,601 3,424
61-90H 61 — 90 days 4,317 8,074
90H A Over 90 days 18,515 38,462
67,725 74,010
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31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2021 2020
F#ET FETT
HKS$000 HK$'000
HEERELEZAHA[E Contract liabilities arising from
sale of goods 720 475
HESNBESTE 2 AT FE Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
PN contract liabilities are as follows:
HEEMm Sale of goods

MBS - NEEREHE S

As noted above, certain deposit the Group receives on sale

m B zE T RNESANE of goods remains as a contract liability until such time as the
& BEELZSETKIIERBBZ work completed to date outweighs it.
SRR AL
BHEBEZEE Movement in contract liabilities
2021 2020
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEEER Balance as at beginning of the year 475 1,227
BHEBEREDZ Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
BHRBBERFENERS of recognising revenue during the
We s i 2 year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (475) (1,227)
X =N ShEEr Increase in contract liabilities as a result
i3 hn of billing in advance 720 475
FRERR Balance at end of the year 720 475

N
ul
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N
(@)}

=+=. RTREMBER 32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

RITRAMERER B 2O The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans
ONNE is as follows:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
mEafE Current liabilities
R—FEREHEEZ Portion of bank and other loans
RITREMEFE 5 due for repayment within one year
—BERF — Guaranteed 15,000 15,000
—BEEREER — Secured and guaranteed 658,583 62,291
— B N B IER — Unsecured and unguaranteed - 4,405
673,583 81,696
—FE R F|H(EEBEA  Portion of bank and other loans
%&%EjikiﬁﬁﬂKBZZZ due for repayment after one year
RITREMERELD which contain a repayable on
demand clause
—BHEARBER — Secured and guaranteed 33,427 669,967
707,010 751,663
JEMEBE Non-current liabilities
R—EEIHEEC Portion of bank and other loans
RITREMEFE 5 due for repayment after one year
—BHEARBER — Secured and guaranteed 129,200 =
KRB —F X A=+H" 1T At 30 June 2021, the bank and other loans were scheduled
REAMBERZ EREFMERLT to repay as follows:
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
RITREMEK Bank and other loans:
AR—FAEE Repayable within one year 673,583 81,696
ARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 16,733 636,604
BERE=—FFAF Repayable in the third to fifth year,
(BREEEME)ER inclusive 145,894 33,363
836,210 751,663
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=+=. RITREMBER 32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(%)

NS EUAERIGRTE 2 51 &
EFAMALE AR
?Egj:l%TAﬂ;kXZE/Lo

RZZBE-_—FRA=1TH £&E
BEABTMEZRITEFEER
&813,558,000B L (& =&
£ :719,289,0007 7T ) i 5118
BEEAER:

@ ZAXEBKERKM@AME Y
1,838,300,000%
T(ZF = F F:
1,564,100,0007 7T ) 2
LEWE (HEt+7)2
JETERD

by ZAEEBEBEREM@FMEY
6,607,000/ 70 (=& =
Z £ : 7,088,000/ 7T) 2
Y2 B R (e
+P) 2 AFERE

© AXEBKRKM@AME Y
2,539,000 T (=& =
T 4F 2,516,000/ 7T) Z
FREEE (MZE+H8)
ZIETEED

d XEBK@AMEBE Y
354,470,000/ 7T (=&
— T4 :318,763,00058
Jo) 2 ERERE (K s
ZHR)ZEERRT

(e) AR R IEFE T FAT
% 39 71,408,477,000
BT (ZE T F:
1,405,752,0007 7t ) &
241,800,000 T (==
— T4 : 241,800,000
TC) ZARER R

®) AR —EEEHE AR
ZEB

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of
any repayment on demand clause.

At 30 June 2021, the Group’s bank loans facilities
denominated in HK$ of HK$813,558,000 (2020:
HK$719,289,000) were secured/guaranteed by the
followings:

(a) legal charges over the Group's investment
properties with carrying values of approximately
HK$1,838,300,000 (2020: HK$1,564,100,000) (note
16);

(b) legal charges over the Group's property, plant and
equipment (note 14) with net carrying values of
approximately HK$6,607,000 (2020: HK$7,088,000);

(@} legal charges over the Group's right-of-use assets
(note 15) with carrying values of approximately
HK$2,539,000 (2020: HK$2,516,000);

(d) legal charges over the Group’s property under
development with carrying values of approximately
HK$354,470,000 (2020: HK$318,763,000) (note
25),

(e) corporate guarantees of HK$1,408,477,000 (2020:
HK$1,405,752,000) and HK$241,800,000 (2020:
HK$241,800,000) executed by the Company and
non-controlling interests respectively; and

() ordinary shares of an indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

N
~
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N
(0]

=+ RITREMER

(%)

“E--FXA=TH 'R

SEUETFHECRITERE
ER/&2,917,000% T (BAER
22,652,000/ L) (ZE=F
& PLEITEME 23,609,000%
7t (¥ 5527,969,00058 7T ) )
B T5IEE EERBR:

(a)

AEEEREDFELY
1,054,000 L (=& =
T4 1,191,000/ 7T ) Z
Y BE k& (B
+P0) 2 EE A

8,234,000 L (= =
T4F 18,222,000/ 7T) Z
mREE (E+N) -
55,571,000/ 7 (=Z =
T4 154,759,000/ 7T )
Z2EE(HE=1+7~)
32,659,000 L (=& =
T4 126,175,000/ 7T )
2 B 5 EU R E (K&
= +-£) A %41,000/8 7T
(ZZ == 4 :400,000
BTIZEe kB EHE
(HEZE=1+h) &

ARAFIER 731,058,800
BT (ZE T F
46,502,4007% 7T ) A Al &
fRo

32.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

At 30 June 2021, the Group’'s bank loan facility
denominated in US$ of US$2,917,000 (equivalent to
HK$22,652,000) (2020: US$ of US$3,609,000 (equivalent
to HK$27,969,000)) was secured/guaranteed by the
followings:

(a) legal charges over the Group’s property, plant
and equipment (note 14) with net carrying
values of approximately HK$1,054,000 (2020:
HK$1,191,000);

(b) Intangible assets of HK$8,234,000 (note 18) (2020:
HK$8,222,000), inventories of HK$55,57 1,000 (note
26) (2020: HK$54,759,000), trade receivables of
HK$32,659,000 (note 27) (2020: HK$26,175,000)
and cash and cash equivalents of HK$41,000 (note
29) (2020: HK$400,000); and

(c) corporate guarantees of HK$31,058,800 (2020:
HK$46,502,400) executed by the Company.
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=+=. RITREMBER 32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

(#)
RZZBE-—FA=THEHZE During the year ended 30 June 2021 and as at that date,
ZBIEFE - ARA—HRBA certain covenants of a bank borrowing of granted to a
R)ER 222,652,000 7L (== subsidiary of the Company of HK$22,652,000 (2020:
ZZ 1 :27,969,0007 7T ) iR 17 HK$27,969,000) were not met, which primarily related to a
BEZETERERREN T2 requirement to maintain certain financial covenants of that
ARt Z B AR 28 T subsidiary. No waiver has been obtained by the Group from
HHEZHRE -NEHEBREEEL the bank as at year ended date and up to the approval date
U BmERENEE BRI K of the consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of
EEEARBGRIT AR BF the directors, the aforesaid matter does not have any impact
RE LMEEWTHEMBH on scheduled repayment terms of all the others’ bank and
fth $RAT R B Ath B R 2 5T IR R other loans.
e
REEAB T EZRITEH The bank and other loans of the Group denominated in
ftb & 5%813,558,000/& 7T (=& HK$ of HK$813,558,000 (2020: HK$719,289,000) and
— T F:719,289,000/8 5T ) & US$ in the equivalent amount of HK$22,652,000 (2020:
IAETFEZRITREMER HK$32,374,000) have floating interest rates ranging from
22,652,000/ 0 (Z B T F: 1.24% to 3.09% (2020: 1.00% to 3.14%) per annum.

32,374,000 ) £5E 2 )2 B F
MENF1.24%%3.09% (==
—EE:1.00%%3.14% ) °

=+=- HEaH 33. LEASE LIABILITIES

REBREK L TE 2 AARER The Group leases various offices and plants in the
HEZEARAERKRE HES jurisdictions from which it operates. Rental contracts are
H—MEEEEHR - HEH T typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are negotiated
ERIER - B8 Bz 2 TRIER on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
KGR o 70 & 17 55 N 4 1 N A 7] terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
R EHEEERIRETFAE any covenants, but leased assets may not be used a security
BECHER- for borrowing purposes.

N
—
o)
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BE_Z_—FXA=THILFE
=+=- HE&a&E#® 33. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
REERREENK BB The present value of future lease payments of the Group's
N leases are analysed as:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
ik ) Current 4,162 3,976
FEME Non-current 15,167 15,397
19,329 19,373

AEERELBMELHEHERAR

Reconciliation of the Group's leases liabilities arising from

2 HRR financing activities:
FET
HK$°000
RZZE—NFLH—H As at 1 July 2019 1,680
NE Addition 5,736
W BE B A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 47(b))

(B EEME 4+ (b)) 14,899
FERX Interest expenses 778
HER =K Lease payments (3,505)
P 0 2 Exchange realignment (215)
RZEZFEA As at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020

=tER-ZE_EF

+tA—H 19,373
NE Addition 4,151
B Interest expenses 862
MERRK Lease payments (5,205)
PE 3 Exchange realignment 148
AZEZ—F;SA=1H Asat30June 2021 19,329
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=+=- #HE&EGE#® 33. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
AEEHE (TEREEHEER The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding
KEERE) 2 RKHAEMNKZ short-term and low value leases) were schedule to repay as
EERRARAT: follows:

RIREERHK r& FIR

Minimum

lease
payments Principal Interest
FHETT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

WZEZ—%5A=+H Asat30June 2021

TER—F No later than one year 4,162 4,935 (773)

—EME One year to two years 3,912 4,509 (597)
ERMEETERRF Later than two years but not later

than five years 10,137 11,275 (1,138)

ERAESF Later than five years 1,118 1,130 (12)

19,329 21,849 (2,520)

RZEZFERA=Z+H Asat30June 2020

TER—&F No later than one year 3,976 4,801 (825)
—EWF One year to two years 3,409 4,076 (667)
ERMFETERAFT Later than two years but not later
than five years 6,680 7,915 (1,235)
ERAF Later than five years 5,308 5,640 (332)
19,373 22,432 (3,059)
RZZBZ—FXA=THZEE The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
WA RER 2 HEBEFTE or implicit interest rate applied to lease liabilities recognised
A2 A AT L EEET in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
EHBEMERTFL45% (= June 2021 is 4.5% (2020: 4.8%) per annum.

T _TF:48%)

No
N
—
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=+ EfIEEFERS 34. DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
I INTERESTS
ENZFEAEER EENTE The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and not
RARETEARNEE (ZZE= repayable within the next twelve months (2020: repayable
TFEBRERER) o on demand).
=+h- EAEBERA 35. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
FIEH
2021 2020
F#T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
mEaE Current liabilities
& <t BA B A B FRIE Due to related companies (note (a))
(Bt3EG@)) 7,225 =
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
1<t BA B A B FRIE Due to related companies (note (b))
(Ft3E()) 33,011 30,550
Biat - Note:
(@) RZBEZ—FXA=+8" (a) As at 30 June 2021, the amounts due to related companies

&1~ B BSE A B 5KI8 7,225,000
BLTRAEERRES  HA
JE {5 VT P9 90 3 5= gk = 4 2E
ZEREABRAA (BARA
HITEZRIG LS ) B
420,000 TR =T =__4F
MAZ+—HEHEER
& < Pacific Islands Company
Limited (B AR R Al B 1T &
ERELEERE) KE
6,805,000/ T /B 1R B K&

iR o

of HK$7,225,000 were unsecured, interest-free, of which
an amount due to JIFIHEREEMEZRAR A A,
which was owned by Dr. Chan, an executive director of the
Company, of HK$420,000 was due for repayment on 21
April 2022, and an amount due to Pacific Islands Company
Limited, which was owned by Mr. Chan Wai Lap, an
executive director of the Company, of HK$6,805,000 was
repayable on demand.
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BHE-Z——

FRA=Z+TBLEFE

=+5H. EAREBEAA

I (#)

Hiat: (&)

(b)

RZZTZ—FXNA=+
=} FEHF% S/NICTIE /)
2,401,000 L (ZE=F
£:2,193,000/8 7T ) A £ K
BRkes  EPEMEMNT
EHREEFEAERAR ([MB
Al RELAEFBEEA
= )%XIEW ,801,0005% 7T ( —
T — T4 :1,645,000/5 7T)
R=—ZT=—m iﬂﬂ - +/‘*\
H(ZZE=ZZF: 2T
FRA-+/R)EHEE
REGEMNENESIERA
Al (RELTAEETEZEERA
8) 7 18600,000/8 7L (==
— T4 : 548,000 70) A =
T_MFE+LA-+=—H (=
TTF:ZF-_—F+tHA
Z+Z=R)EIHEE-

—hE+=ZA—8"
ERERFREAEEAR
¥27,250,0007t (#H % R
30,327,000/% 7T ) 2 Bl EA A
BEEEE T - —F+—
A=+H WBEKREEE
B UBREBEZZ=FF
/\ﬂ:'f’E_U:ﬁFEE?Em
e R W 251,318,000 7T °
RZZEZZFA=1+H"
EREHRRIEZ RE S
27,973,000yt Ty f A ™
5 E RN KA T5%51E - A E
BEHR REERR_T=—F
+—BA=t+RAZHEE-

(b)

35. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

Note: (continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the amounts due to related companies
of HK$2,401,000 (2020: HK$2,193,000) were unsecured
and interest free, of which an amount due to /{8
MR EBRARAF ("EH"), which Dr. Chan was a
key management personnel, of HK$1,801,000 (2020:
HK$1,645,000) was due for repayment on 26 May 2024
(2020: 26 May 2024), and an amount due to E /& A
B 5 AR A7], which Dr. Chan was a key management
personnel, of HK$600,000 (2020: HK$548,000) was due
for repayment on 22 July 2024 (2020: 22 July 2021).

On 1 December 2019, the maturity date of the principal
amount of amount due to /E# of RMB27,250,000
(equivalent to HK$30,327,000) was renewed to 30
November 2021. This constituted a debt modification
resulting a gain of HK$1,318,000 recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 30 June 2020. As at 30 June
2020, the carrying amount of amount due to 1% of
HK$27,973,000 was calculated using a market interest rate
of 4.75% per annum is unsecured, interest-free and due
for the repayment on 30 November 2021.

N
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=+ 5H. BEAREBEAA

I (#)
Kiat: (&)
(b) (&)

N\_T=ZTF+=_A—8H"
ERNERAREREEAR
#27,250,0007T (8% R
32,126,000/ 7T ) 2 El B A
EEEE T - _—F+—
B=+H - WREXEEE
BUBREE—_T=—F
ANA=ZTHILEFEEE
TR U 251,446,000 JT °
R-ZZE-_—FA=+8H"
ENERREBEZRESRE
30,610,000 Jt J4 & A T
BEMEKL T % E - A E
EHF - 2ERR_TE=-_—F
+—A=1+8%HES-

RZZE_ZTFA=1+8"
FERDIP @ R B B
BERAR (ARIELHE)
FRIE384,0008 TR — T ——
FA -+ —BEHEE-

35. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continuec)

Note: (continued)
(b) (continued)

On 1 December 2020, the maturity date of the principal
amount of amount due to 1% of RMB27,250,000
(equivalent to HK$32,126,000) was renewed to 30
November 2022. This constitutes a debt modification
resulting a gain of HK$1,446,000 recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 30 June 2021. As at 30 June
2021, the carrying amount of amount due to E# of
HK$30,610,000 was calculated using a market interest rate
of 4.75% per annum is unsecured, interest-free and due
for the repayment on 30 November 2022.

As at 30 June 2020, the amounts due to ;T P9 818 5 &
i E 2R AR A &, which was owned by Dr. Chan, of
HK$384,000 was due for repayment on 21 April 2022.

N EREBREREMZ 36. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING
B SHAREHOLDER
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,802 4,388

R-ZE-—F X A=1+A0 [FiF
T #f —2 AR %4,000,0007T
($82724,802,000i7T) (=&
—ZT4F: AR¥4,000,0007T (4
2£784,388,000% 7T ) ) 2 B
ZERBERR 2B RNZZ
—=HF+A-F+HA(ZE_F
F:-_FT-_=ZF+HF=-+HAA)
FIfEE-

As at 30 June 2021, loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,802,000) (2020: RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,388,000)) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
October 2023 (2020: 25 October 2023).
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=+t EEZEHIE(EE) 37. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

afg
T ARREBHERAZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
RIEFRB(EE)/BE UK recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
RAREERUEEE &) : the current and prior years:
mE - BE
Rath- Lt
fEREUAR
RUEREZ iz ek
NEEAE BIARE RIEEE R Et
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment,
land use
rights, Accelerated
and mining tax Provision for
right depreciation  receivables Total
FET FBT BT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-FE-NI&E Balance at
tR—Bz&& 1 July 2019 133,045 (190) (5,509) 127,346
WKt B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries
(P () (note 47(b)) 424 - - 424
b i R Exchange realignment (4,718) = = 4,718)
HBEFEREMNEE  Charged to profit or loss
for the year 4,436 - - 4,436
W_ZE_FT&ERA Balance at
=Z+ARZFZFE  30June 2020 and
tBA—HZ&# 1 July 2020 133,187 (190) (5,509) 127,488
BEE 5 828 Exchange realignment 12,545 - - 12,545
MEFNEMEE  Charged to profit or loss
for the year (15,176) - 3,034 (12,142)
RZFEZ—& Balance at
~NAZ+HHZER 30 June 2021 130,556 (190) (2,475) 127,891

No
N
Ul
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(@)}

=+t

IEERIE (BE)
ya-1 ¢ 7

TIREZEHRET 2 EER
REMBIRRARIIR

37.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

(continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2021 2020

FiET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEEHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 130,619 133,250
EIEFLIBE B Deferred tax assets (2,728) (5,762)
127,891 127,488

$%lﬁﬁlﬁ)§ﬂ%i\
273,455,000 7T ( —
& 258,623,000/ 70 ) ' ;Z S5 T
THEE N AR EEEZSEE
Z AT Z AR R E R F i o R
TR BB AR PR FE R B v ) A it
BRAZEARBAHEESSE Bt
WARFLZ Z EEEREERIBE
/EE o R E) FA §7 18 /E51890,478,000
;‘%7‘5(:;?:& :100,276,000
/’%E)Hﬁﬁ/\@z /\E(—
T oTF = Ei) (B
ZE) 2R Eﬁﬂﬂﬁ;@oﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
PR IEE R SRS

H

H?\I

A

B

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$273,455,000
(2020: HK$258,623,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$90,478,000 (2020: HK$100,276,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2026 (2020: 2025). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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=+ BAE 38. SHARE CAPITAL

BETERIRARERZ SN The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during

e the year are as follows:
LiEREE FET

Number of
ordinary
shares HK$°000
BERITERHR: Issued and fully paid:
RZZE—-NEtH—H" At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, and
—E-TFRA=THE 1 July 2020
—E-FTF+H—H 6,831,182,580 560,673
R 10 & G+ Share consolidation* (6,148,064,322) =
RZEZ—§7A=+H At 30 June 2021 683,118,258 560,673
* ARAREFTOKRE BT uJ With effect from 31 May 2021, every ten (10) issued shares
HEEHABEARTE—()KRE of the Company was consolidated into one (1) consolidated
Bty (TIRDEFE]) - BB= share of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”). Further
T —FRA=T—HE4E details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the
HMo-RIDEHE—FFE announcements of the Company dated 16 April 2021 and
ERiA /NG =R: = ey 27 May 2021 and circular of the Company dated 6 May
FOATRERZZT_—%F 2021.

AA-+EHZRAEUER
AelBEA-ZT-_—FHA
NB 2B e

No
N
~
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=th FE-EXEBER 39. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

N
(o8]

Vi /N
AEE

EEERFERNEFE 2 #B
SRLEEHNRAREEHR

25

Hith s R B A B B 12 ) 2 BESI
R an S AN 2 B B MR FE 2
EmE AEA MR R RR
FIEHEERIGEZEERABEM
BELZER-

FrpRE TR L B A SR B —
BARETHREKEIZ KELL
S HIERE AT HIE S
HEERAEME ZZH-

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the
non-controlling interests.

Special reserve represents the difference between the
consideration received for the disposal of certain Group's
interest in a subsidiary and the non-controlling interest’s
share of assets and liabilities at the date of the disposal of
the non-controlling interest.
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=t+h FHE-ETEER 39. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY

AT s (continued)
¥ NN Company
BRERE TUIREE HERE B F B
Share Non- Capital
option  distributable  contribution Retained
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FHT FHET FHET FHET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZE-NF Balance at 1 July 2019
tRA—HZz&% 6,409 273,606 22,236 1,477,908 1,780,159
RARNDBER ZFE Recognition of
(MM +) share-based
compensation
(note 40) 200 - - - 200
ZE-NERBRE 2019 final dividend
(BEET) (note 10) - - - (17,078) (17,078)
HERAZRS Transactions with owners 200 - - (17,078) (16,878)
FREA Profit for the year - - - 9,005 9,005
FAZEKHEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 9,005 9,005
RZZE-FFXA=1+HK  Balance at
—T-EFLA-HZ 30 June 2020 and
3 1 July 2020 6,609 273,606 22,236 1,469,835 1,772,286
FRER Loss for the year - - - (238,917) (238,917)
FRZAKGEE Total comprehensive
income
for the year - - - (238,917) (238,917)
RZBZ—-% Balance at
~AZtTHZ&ER 30 June 2021 6,609 273,606 22,236 1,230,918 1,533,369

NA DR GFEERR — LN E
AAaE) LBk 2  ER&K2.50
BITHDRE0 N0 TR E A 2 0%

Eo

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising

on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.

No
N
O
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M+ BERZ#ESTE 40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

N
o

RAF 2 ERETE ([ ZF—
SFFE)R=_FE—ZFTF+LA
T=HAEARRARREfE =T
—ZEFFECAERBARTF
YER-ZZT_ZTF+tA+=H
FE AL ARRERZ=ZT =
TEF+ A+ ZHHEMN A
FEREE (2= F5
gl]) -

Exe([g5g)aEZEE
ATZEE e -BR &
MR 4 8% R/ Sk B R S B AE A
KRERABZERSERLEER
BMEBREA NIEEBRAL
(IZZE_TFE/ERALTDE
X ARB AR AR

(VR I ERRRE
MR ET 2 EAREE (Bme
i%%%%% AITHRA B3

TE KB EE(8HHT
FRITRBILIFNITES) M
FEBEXBTEHARE ZE
REBERFLERM (REFER
E)°

REBEZLEBATZESS
(VAR B RMD A EIREZ 4 B H
(MWEREER)EHXAEA
WERAR2WHE: RER
ARG R EEREREZ 40 A BAA]
FEAE¥XAEBXMBABRER
FrRz FHUTE -

The share option scheme of the Company (the “2010
Scheme"”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 13 July 2010. The 2010 Scheme would be
valid for a period of ten years and expired on 12 July 2020.
Therefore, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme on 22 December 2020 (the “2020 Scheme”).

2020 Scheme

The principal terms of the 2020 Scheme are as follows:

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person (“2020 Eligible Persons”),
having regard to each person’s qualifications, skills,
background, experience, service records and/or contribution
or potential value to the relevant members of the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive director)
of the Company; any of its subsidiaries or any investee
who, as determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (i)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.
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M+ BERR#ESTE (#) 40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

“EOZEHE(A)
—F_TFEREBRALTBEARAH
2 AMER HEZ R B AN
TABARELN TRRKREESE
BR - RNEMBHOE ARAR
AARRRZMUBETERRER
B-RBRE-ZFT_ZFFHEEN
NREREMERER SR R
i ARITEE Z P B BATHESMNERX
RETEE A BERIT 2R &R
BB ARITBBRBTRDET
B0 #930% © fefiEa 8 bl fRAR -
AT RBE-_Z_ZTFFFELA
NEEREMERES SR LS
PRt o AR B R AIRR AR IR K
g LHE10%RBEETRN G
N AIEEBREHRD
FHEITERR10%RER THRE—
ToZEFEI RAR AU EM
FBRRERT 811 2 P A R A i JE
TR AR RTT 2B BBET
BITROBBEZEDL  ERE
REZBHEAHIDITETRIZ
Bk

BREMREREFENRAE
ERERNE S AR A HEZ

2020 Scheme (continued)

The 2020 Eligible Persons must accept any such offer
notified to him or her within ten business days from the
offer date, failing which it shall be deemed to have been
declined. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall
pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2020 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
No option may be granted under the 2020 Scheme and
any other option schemes of the Company if such limit is
exceeded. If the Company conducts a share consolidation
or subdivision after the 10% limit has been approved by
the shareholders in general meeting, the maximum number
of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2020 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company under the 10% limit as
a percentage of the total number of issued shares at the
date immediately before and after such consolidation or
subdivision shall be the same.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall

HARR MM R EL B BAR LA - 7R commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
TMEHBAE 24 AR T4 be more than ten years from the offer date.
REE-T=—FA=+HIL During the year ended 30 June 2021, there is no option

FE BERE_FT _TF5TE
B R -

granted under 2020 Scheme.

N
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(i) ARE - HAEA KB A F
HAEMBEIRE T Z
BE (BERmEE2RBAR
B) S&THRAERE
TKE B (BEH
17 - FE]IT RIBIL IR AT
ER)NEMR MEREE
BB EHARE ZIERE
RERELER (RES

BIRTE) 3K

(i)  AEFRIRET -

REEELARU T ZEREE
(AR RBREZL B H
(BAREER)EBRAER
BERMBWHE : RARQ
AR M E R B E 4 B HIA0
hESXAEBMXMERRER
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40.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2010 Scheme

The principal terms of the 2010 Scheme are as follows:

The Board may in its discretion, invite any following eligible
persons (“2010 Eligible Persons”) to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company;
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group; or

(ii) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.



Annual Report 2021 F iR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THILFE

M+ BERR#ESTE (#) 40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

—E-ZEHE(HE)

ZETFLERATHNAERA
TEARBRET T EEXAAE
MEEMZELN - BERELHE -
ERARRARQR 1B TIE
RBEERE BAREZT SR
Z D ERIE AR A TR M 1T 2 R
NIBE - &R TBBBOREMR
HHEZAR QBB BITRD 210% :
HNARB] TEEEITRAZ
30% © BRIFEARR RIAR R AR R
Ag L - BRIAERI12{EA
HE AR TER28EE 2BR
# (BEEITRRERITEZE
B4 ) FEAT B M B A4S R i T 31T
LR AR BECT S HRARR
AERBEETRAZ1% °

BREDRERESINREE
BRI NS S ARA X
HRAEFRELN B SRS - 75
TEHBBEEEN BT +F-

RZE_TFAA=-+=H"
AARBREBE_Z—ZF:FE M
ET-_T-—ZTFREBRALE
12,000,00017 BB A #E (AR 15 &
BtAT) - TEE AEAR0.05278 7T
(BB ABrAT) - EEEE T A HAAT
Z BT E A0.058 T (&h
B BERT) o

2010 Scheme (continued)

The 2010 Eligible Persons must accept any such offer
notified to him or her within ten business days from the
offer date. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall
pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 22 June 2020, the Company granted 12,000,000
options (before Share Consolidation) to certain of the 2010
Eligible Persons, with exercise price of HK$0.052 per share
(before Share Consolidation) under the 2010 Scheme. The
closing share price immediately preceding the date of grant
was HK$0.05 (before Share Consolidation).

N
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the outstanding share options under the 2010

Scheme held by the directors of the Company during the

years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

EhisA
Number of share options
REh W

FEARS i fred SRR  AREIE  SREER RERD  AHESE  ERRE  ERAE RER

Erercse  Adjustment Exercise Atthe  Adjustment Granted ~ Exercised At the

price upon Share price  beginning  upon Share during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  Consolidation pershare  oftheyear  Consolidation the year the year the year

2 b/ r

S HS s
m
5 Z2-RERATAR Z2-MERATARECRMERA AR 0138 1242 138 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wi Kel, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
i Z2-RERATAR Z2-MERATARECRMERA AR 0138 1242 138 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 o 18 June 2024
B2l Z3-MELAZTER CR-MELACTRRECR-MECACTRA 0 1089 121 10000000 (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-ting 25 July 2014 b Ju\y 2014024 uly 2024
58 “2-1FLALR Z2-RFEAtAZCRCRELARR 0245 2205 245 10000000 (000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wai Kel, Vicki 7y 2015 7Ju\y 201506 July 2025
i TR-TECALR Z2-RFEAtAZCRCRELARR 0245 2205 245 10000000 (000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7y 2015 7Ju\y 201506 July 2025
181 “2-1FLALR Z-RELAtAZCRCRELANA 0245 2205 245 10000000 (000,000) - - 1,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 7y 2015 7Ju\y 201506 July 2025
B2l “2-1FLALR ZE-RFEAtAZCRCRELARR 0245 2205 245 10000000 (000,000) - - 1,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7 Juy 2015 7Ju\y 2015106 July 2025
518 “3-rEr-AzR 8- 7Et-AZRERET-AZA 0149 134 149 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wi Kel, Vicki 3 Noverber 2016 3 Noverber 2016 to 2 Noverber 2026
i “3-rEr-AzR 8- 7Et-AZRERET-AZA 0149 134 149 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 Noverber 2016 3 Noverber 2016 to 2 Noverber 2026
181 Z2-7Et-AZHR 8- 7Et-AZRERET-AZA 0149 134 149 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 3 Noverber 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
B2l “3-rEr-AzR 8- 7Et-AZRERET-AZA 0149 134 149 10,000000  (9,000,000) - - 1,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-ting 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
EfEE TRCREAACTIR CECREAACTIRECRCERAACT-A 0052 0468 052 12,000,000 (10800,000) - - 1200000
Other employees 2 June 200 22 June 202010 21 June 2030

122,000,000 (109,800,000) - - 12,200000
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M+ BERR#ESTE (#) 40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BRESE (Rhat)

Number of shae options (before Share Consolidation)

, ) _ i I ‘ -
ERALS Riing fied (Rfpadt) RE EREE  EAR REX
Erercise
pice
er share
(before At the Granted Evercised Atthe
Name of Share beginning during during end of
grantee Date of grant Evercisable period Consolidation) ~~ of the year the year the year the year
&
S
2000
e “E-PERATAR E-MERATAREZECmERATIR 0138 10,000,000 - - 1000000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 r9June 2014018 June 2024
RRL SEREAATAR CE-REAATAREZRIRERATAR 018 10000000 - - 10000000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 0 18 June 2024
=ER CEMECAZTRER CE-MECACTRERECRCMECAZTRA 0121 10000000 - - 10000000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 Ji) Jvly 201410 24 July 2024
GE “E-RELALH -RELRLAERCRELAAA 0245 10000000 - - 10000000
(Chan Wai Kei, Vick 7 July 2015 u|y20 0.6 Juy 2005
REL “E-RELALH -RELALAERCRELAAA 0245 10,000,000 - - 10000000
(Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 u|y20 0.6 July 2005
ek ZE-RELALH _;*ﬁfﬂfﬁi ZRELARA 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 u|v20 0.6 July 2025
EE “T-RELALA B-REALAERCRELANA 0265 10,000,000 - - 1000000
Wong Edward Gwon-ting 7 July 2015 u|y20 0.6 July 2025
et SERE-AZE CEAF-AZRECRCAET-ACR 019 10000000 - - 10000000
Chan Wi Kei, Vicki 3 Novernber 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 November 2006
REL “EAET-RZE . CRAFr-RSRECE AR 0149 10000000 - - 10000000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 Novernber 2016 3 Novernber 2016 to 2 November 2006
is -4 EAFT-AZRE CEAFT-AZRECRET-ACH 0149 10000000 - - 10000000
Yam Tat Wing 3 November 2016 3 November 201602 November 2026
FAl ZE-RET-AZE CEnET-RZREZECAET-ACA 0149 10000000 - - 10000000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
B4 ECEERACTCE CECEEAACTIAECEISEENACT-A 0022 - 12000000 - 12000000
Other employegs 22June 2000 22 June 2020t0 21 June 2030
110000000 12,000,000 - 122000000

r‘*’rfkﬁﬁﬁ%%%zon%%ﬁ”
FEERITBT(ZE=ZF:
0.167% 7T (IR & GEAT) ) - M
8 AR 1T (68 B IR R 2 N T S |
BRENFHNRF(ZZEZ
F6%F) e

Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
options is HK$1.67 (2020: HK$0.167 (before Share
Consolidation)) and the weighted average remaining
contractual life of outstanding share options is
approximately 5 years (2020: 6 years).

ND
w
ul
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table listed the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing model, which was valued by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional
valuer, used for calculating the fair value of the share
options granted during the year ended 30 June 2020.

ZRAFE
2020
i A A Date of grant —E-FTE
NAZ+T=H
22 June 2020
f%(E (Bcfn & BFRT) Share price (before Share Consolidation) 0.05%8 7T
HK$0.05
1T1EE (B3 E FFRT) Exercise price (before Share Consolidation) 0.0525% 7T
HK$0.052
TEEDRE R (FizE@)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 62%
BN AETE HR AR R (B 52 (b)) Expected life of the share options (note (b)) 1045
10 years
R = (MIRECE)) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.68%
TEEARS Bz & (MIsE(d)) Expected dividend yield (note (d)) 3.95%
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M+ EERRHERE (2 40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Mt - Note:

(@) TEHAR IR : AR EERT (@) Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
B HART B A 10 A A 7] volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in
IR 2 Wi (B 2 BE A FE 52 the past 10 years immediate before the date of grant.
R W o

(b) FEIRETRERSE B - RitTE (b) Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of
HITEREEE A 2 the share options estimated from the expected exercising
FEARIEERR AR - time frame.

© BRI BEBIME (© Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of
ESBEF 2O Bk Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.

(d) TEHARR B R - B ER (d) Expected dividend yield: being the average of 2 years
B B HART .2 M dividend yield immediate before the date of grant.

BB -

#%1,200,00017 B& M4 (A% 19 The 1,200,000 share options (before Share Consolidation)
EHR)RXE BEE R vested immediately on the grant date and the respective
W S5 8 - M AR IE 2 AR D R share-based compensation of HK$200,000 was recognised
B 2 #{€200,0007% 7T A in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2020. Such
BHE_Z_FTFHA=1H amount of share-based compensation expenses in relation
IFEEEE=ER A% to the issue of the share option had been recognised in
TR IE Z ARt R AT 2 profit or loss and the corresponding amount of which had
HERZBEE N B E been credited to the share option reserve. No liabilities were
RMEAESBEET AR recongised as these are equity settled share-based payment
REREE- AR ENER A transactions.

NESEE ARG SER
IR MU EERE

&
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M+—- KXQARZEHH 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Rz OF THE COMPANY
2021 2020
HiF F# T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
iNINEPNGIP T Interests in subsidiaries 992,977 1,228,334
REBEE Current assets
BENFE ZERk Prepayments, deposits and
H b e U IE other receivables 1,739 1,739
JIE KBRS /B A R) R IE Due from subsidiaries 1,397,109 1,401,768
RekBReEH Cash and cash equivalents 606 437
1,399,454 1,403,944
REBER Current liabilities
Hip e FRIENEETEM  Other payables and accruals (885) (1,144)
JFEAS B B A RN IE Due to subsidiaries (297,179) (297,850)
TRIARHE Provision for tax (325) (325)
(298,389) (299,319)
REEEFE Net current assets 1,101,065 1,104,625
BEEFE Net assets 2,094,042 2,332,959
B EQUITY
i Share capital 38 560,673 560,673
f#E Reserves 39 1,533,369 1,772,286
BEAE Total equity 2,094,042 2,332,959
REBSES On behalf of the directors
PR {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
EZ Director
BREE 2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BEZ Director
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m+=- KBLA 42. SUBSIDIARIES
RZEZ—FA=+H FZ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2021
MEBA AR ZFRMT : are as follows:
ML/ EfRER/
%8 AMREERE ERTRARE FAEEREENE  FEEE
Place of Particulars of paid-up
incorporation/ registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
Ef &
Direct Indirect
Brangredi Limited B LTBRIBT - 100 HKEEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Jewellery trading
AEERRA B LERIET - 100 #MERE
Capital Luck Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
i 21N &R LRRIET - 100 W¥RE
Charm Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
EBARAR i LRRIAT - 100 #%ikE
Cheermax Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 (ZZZZ%:  Property investment
E)
(2020: Nil)
CJ. (UK) Limited* 2 1,000 S REEIRE - 7519 REEMHE
United Kingdom Lk (ZZ=Z%:  Jewellery wholesaling
1,000 ordinary shares of 100)
GBP1 each (2020: 100)
EMERERAA &R LHERI00ET - 100 #RES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company &b TE1R100,0005 7T 100 - RAER
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$100,000
BMKEEHHARA] &R £181R10,000,000% T 100 - LEAHRERME
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
HK$10,000,000 and wholesaling
EAMERRAR &R LRRVET - 100 #¥RE
Continental Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
Continental Universe Limited EBRAEHS WrEREBIETLL 100 - RAER
British Virgin LEk Investment holding
Islands 2 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

ND
w
O
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H

ML/ EREm/
&R AMREEWE ERTRAFE FAEREZENE  TEXE
Place of Particulars of paid-up
incorporation/ registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
B &
Direct Indirect
CJUSALLC ZNBATRE 1,000 SR E AT - 100 REEHES
United States of EIWA ) Jewellery trading
America 1,000 shares of
US$1 each
DCGS Management Service Limited 0 £ %1710,000,0007% T - 100 REER/
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of REEERE
HK$10,000,000 Investment holding/
providing
management services
RAERARAA i LERET - 100 W¥RE
Daily Famous Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
EEREARAA &R L131%500,000% 7T 100 - RESR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$500,000
ERARAH &R LRRAET - 100 #MERE
Diamond Bright Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Equal Glory Limited B ORSHRERIZETL - 90 RERR/MEEXE
British Virgin gl Investment holding/
Islands 10 ordinary shares of Property development
US$1 each
ARERARAR &R LRRIET - 100 #¥KE
Fortune Success International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited Bk LiBiR1,000,00587T - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Jewellery trading
HK$1,000,005
BX(RB)BRAT &R LRRIET - 100 #¥RE
Huge Sky (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
HEBRAH &R LRRET - 100 #MERE
Keen Mind Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
HEARERAA A LRRIAT - 100 #MERE
Lucky Key International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
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"ML/ BfRm/
78 AMREEWE  ERTRAFE FAAEREZENE  TEXE
Place of Particulars of paid-up
incorporation/ registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
Ef %
Direct Indirect
Master Gold Development Ltd. RBRUHS \REEIET 2 SRR - 100 ®EZR
British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 Investment holding
Islands each
mE (F8)BRAF B LERIBT - 100 #WERE
Max Creation (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Novell Enterprises Inc. EFHRERE 100 B EE - 85 HEEMZERHEE
United States of 0.01F T 2B Jewellery manufacturing
America 100 shares of US$0.01 each and selling of jewellery
Ontrack Ventures Limited BT 1005 BREE - 75 REER
British Virgin 1ETEBR Investment holding
Islands 100 ordinary share of
US$1 each
REREERRA B LERIBT - B ONERE
Pacific Gate Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
Patford Company Limited A L1000 - 100 MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Property investment
HK$10,000
Realford Company Limited B EBA%10,000 T - 100 #MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Property investment
HK$10,000
ERLFBRAA &R LMR10,000E 7T - 0 NEEE
Rich Dragon Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of Property development
HK$10,000
REERARR &R LakET - 100 REAER
Top Grace Internatlonal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Investment holding
EEERARAT Bh LRRET - 100 Rm#mES
Top Label International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Trading of food and
beverages
HaBRAH Bh LRRAT - 100 #WERE
Wealthy Joy Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
16 (BR)BRAR A TRRIET - 100 WERE
Well Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property investment
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m+=- MELE # 42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ML/ EREm/
&8 AMEEEHE  BRIRAFE FMAEGEEZENE  IEEE
Place of Particulars of paid-up
incorporation/ registered/ Percentage of
registration and issued share equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
Ei R
Direct Indirect
BRERERRAR BB LERIET - 90 MEERE
Well Century Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Property development
AEN T BEERAA TN S BARKA - 100 FRERERBRERE
Mainland China 21,000,000% ¢ Mining and exploration of
Paid up capital of mineral reserves

US$21,000,000

IMmEIREERAR" B KR BHRRAARK - 100 HEEHZTE
Mainland China 18,605,0407C Jewellery retailing
Paid up capital of
RMB18,605,040
BERMHE (1) BRA R B KR BHRRA - 100 HKESHRE
Mainland China 35,000,000/ Jewellery manufacturing
Paid up capital of
HK$35,000,000

& R R KEERM 2N B E B Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the
e Mainland China.

8 BREEAR—ABRER . Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic
NEE - investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.

* BB L EERSTAISE * Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
BRBRARNIEERZ The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
-y A= NI S by BDO amounted to approximately 6.0% of the Group's
AYEEXBZ 2B AR total net assets.

FEERELASEFEE
#{E#I6.0% °
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EERA ERASIARRE ZH
BRAREERZEFARGEIAK
AEBEEFEZERAID &
ERR RHEMHBAR ZF
BEEERREAN UK

KRB —FRZF_FF A
=+H fBARBERITEM
BES -

FEHIER

KAGHEAETS% (ZE_TF:
75% ) # z=x 2 [} B A ®lOntrack
Ventures LimitedG25% 2 & X
e HEASEN S B
ERFAEEMASENIFES
100% & #5282 &) 2 FE 2
BESFRBTERKN-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities.

Non-controlling interests

Ontrack Ventures Limited, a 75% (2020: 75%) owned
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests of 25% which is material to the Group. The
non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are
not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be
immaterial.

N
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FREHIER ()

A BOntrack Ventures Limited &2
H2ENBARARERERRA
AR B NP SR 2 IS 2
BRZ5MT :

42. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised financial information in relation to Ontrack
Ventures Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pacific
Gate Investment Limited, before intra-group elimination, is
presented below:

2021 2020
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEANAZTHILEE For the year ended 30 June
Wz Revenue = 2
FRmF, (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 48,172 (675)
FRNEEW=ETE Total comprehensive income
for the year 48,172 (675)
DT ISR 2 Profit/(Loss) allocated to
wmF, (E5iE) non-controlling interests 12,043 (169)
HEANAZTHILEE For the year ended 30 June
KEEBHEECHERE Cash flows generated from
operating activities 69,478 17,722
KEEMAZEERE Cash flows used in investing activities (222,335) (35,092)
BMEESEACRESRE Cash flows generated from
financing activities 171,102 14,946
BERA GR) F8 Net cash inflows/(outflows) 18,245 (2,424)
RANA=+H At 30 June
JEMENE EE Non-current assets 1,660,000 1,389,000
MENEE Current assets 22,403 3,780
nBeE Current liabilities (1,112,110) (870,659)
JEREBEE Non-current liabilities (72,388) (72,388)
FEE Net assets 497,905 449,733
ZEtoEEtlER Accumulated non-controlling
interests 206,258 194,215
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43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital

AAEAYET commitments as follows:
2021 2020
Fi# T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEEFS:TEE Contracted but not provided for:
WEMZE Investment properties 106,853 318,551

m+m- AERH
fER A

RZZBZ—FRA=1TH &&
ERBEHERHEREE TYE
(MFeE+75)  KrEmmg 2 HE
B=F -ZEMETREXRANR
o ASEEREBEBLFTLL
A BEHEE 2 KRR R(EAEfE
WRTa 5 B BB R T

44, LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

As at 30 June 2021, the Group leases certain properties
(note 16) under lease arrangements, with lease negotiated
for a term of three years. None of the leases include
contingent rentals. The Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

2021 2020

F#ET FAET

HK$000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 7,720 4,999

—FRERFNRN After one year but within two years 4,669 2,227
MERE=ZFN After two year but within

three years 412 678

12,801 7,904

N
Ul
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m+f- EBARS

BRAER A B SR E b BB D PR
BEN AEERFARAEFILT
5l BARsE 5 XX 5 o

@ REE-_Z-—F,xA
=THIEFE REEH
—HHFELTE2ERE 2
B AR EEEERN B
Eﬂ;ﬂ 442,000/ 7T (=
T T 4F 1,321,000
JL) °

SAARERARAS TR
EEABHERRETIIE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, during the year, the Group entered into the

following related party transactions.

(a

During the year ended 30 June 2021, imputed
interest expenses of HK$1,442,000 (2020:
HK$1,321,000) were incurred to a related company
of which is wholly-owned by Dr. Chan.

Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and comprise

H: the following:
2021 2020
FTiERx FAET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RHESRH Short term employee benefits 8,742 10,911
BER IR A Post-employment benefits 375 427
PARR () A 2L 2 f 12 Share-based compensation - 33
9,117 11,371

© RZEZ—FA=+
B - T IEEEfl R s 5 IE
REE—FEMN—HA
PRI - B0/ k22 4 R BR
BUEREHRB BB A
A2 FJA23,425,00078 T
—Z = F 4 :5,200,000
BIT) °

B RAMT R + T (a) K2 (o) 2 BRES
RHTMER EHHRAE HHAE
FTAE 2 BER S

As at 30 June 2021, included in due to non-
controlling interests, an amount of HK$23,425,000
(2020: HK$5,200,000),
company which is owned by Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin, Shirley and Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor.

was due to a related

The related party transaction in respect of notes 45(a) and

(c) also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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> 46.
KRz

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

/7,

op Kt

Except as disclosed in notes 35, 36, 45(a) and (c), no

(@)X

(OFTEBEIN RAFERF

B ARRBERARR]ZEE
AIVARRESERURENE
TREAEAES ZEFAEAR
7 ZHREH TEEAHH
XG5 THEAENTFE-

M+t XM B

(a)

RZEZ—FHA=ZTN
B AEEE—FEE
AB=F (BRI
— Ok ([ZHE]) -
NEBEERRAD A
(TEE]2HDHITR
AREEHERBEHZK
63,687,000 T (4% T
AR) - EEZEEEE
LR NBER Y B EE
19— 235 E A EH T AR
MBI A AR — AR
HSRIE AR Rzt 2
R RG22 EBIERKIE
REKEER -_T-—%F
SNA—HEK-

BRI AT EEHE
HZEE BREXD A
ARIEB E W - Pl B
BELAERBLTE
X —IRETS - R P ARSI
ERAEEYRERH
ZABEBBETZMFE
Wb

47.

transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in

relation to the Company’s business to which the Company

was a party and in which a director of the Company had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered

into or subsisted during the financial year.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a

On 28 May 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent
individual third party (the “Seller”) to acquire the
entire issued share capital of Cheermax Limited
(“Cheermax”) and shareholder’s loan owing by
Cheermax to the Seller at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$63,687,000 after certain
adjustments. Cheermax principal assets are located
in Shop A & B on the G/F and Office A to H on 1/F,
Hart Avenue Court, 19-23 Hart Avenue, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon. Having satisfied all the terms and
condition of the Agreement, the acquisition was
completed on 1 June 2021.

This transaction had been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets as the acquisition does not meet
the definition of a business combination. The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed do not constitute a
business. The transaction was accounted for as an
acquisition of properties in the ordinary course of the
Group's property investment business.

N
~
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47. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a) (continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

NEE
Fair value
FET
HK$000
FriiE S8 & Net liabilities acquired
KEMZE Investment properties 65,000
HER Deposits 12
G -E-N Shareholder’s loan (86,165)
H th & 1~ KIA Other payables (430)
FES IR Tax payables (895)
HEE Net liabilities (22,478)
ERARENBRARZ Net cash outflow in connection with the
IR & FHER - acquisition of a subsidiary:
BARE Consideration paid 63,687
FETL
HK$'000
REZHAR: Consideration satisfied by:
LIRS ENZBENRE Purchase consideration settled in cash 63,687
BERREER Purchase of the shareholder’s loan (86,165)
FrisE FaE 2 AFE Fair value of net liabilities purchased 22,478
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RZZE—NFRHH B
AEEEZEBIE=F
I —fhERGE (B
Bzl REBEIR
FR B IR 10 2 2 IR R R
i fEl £ B 2R 2 A &) Novell
KNP Enterprises, LLCZ
85% M A BIRER
5,100,000 7T (FHE R
#939,829,000/ 7t ) ° K
B KRR EEE
MEME RBREER
ZET-AEFENAERARE
}ijo

47. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

On 6 May 2019, the Group had entered into a stock
purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”) with
independent third parties relating to acquisition
of 85% of the equity interests in two US jewellery
companies, Novell and NP Enterprises, LLC at a
total consideration of US$5,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,829,000) in accordance with
the terms of the SP Agreement. Having satisfied all
the terms and condition of the SP Agreement, the
acquisition was completed on 7 August 2019.

N
©
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47. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b) (continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

NTE
Fair value
FAET
HK$'000
FrUiE 5 & = Net assets acquired
ME - WE R&E Property, plant and equipment 1,436
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14,899
B EE Intangible assets 8,292
FE Inventories 56,809
B 5 rEW 8 Trade receivables 18,351
FENFIE ke & Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
H & W R IR 3,071
REMREEHE Cash and cash equivalents 23
H A ERRIB R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (21,187)
HEBE Lease liabilities (14,899)
RIT M EMER Bank and other loans (29,071)
EEN I B & Deferred tax liabilities (424)
FEE Net assets 37,300
2 (ME++) Goodwill (note 17) 8,124
FEPE B Non-controlling interests (5,595)
REZAFEE Fair value of consideration 39,829
BHEAKERBARZ Net cash outflow in connection with the
IR FEE acquisition of subsidiaries:
P 2 3 Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired
BeEmman (23)
BERRE Consideration paid 39,829
39,806
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(b)

(%)

(%)

(i)

(iii)

B 5 Kk H i E I
KIER W E R
BMZzZRFEES
18,351,000/ 7T

8,124,000/ Jt 2
R (TAHE)
B 15 B U B T
EAREEIE A&
BE O EAUE
ER KT 3% & &
LEREKZE
'fﬁo

5,595,000/% 7T
Z FF & &l B =
R E fh I RE
77 Z Novell NP
Enterprises LLCR]
Rl E & E R
BRHZAYTAE
LEflEH = -

47. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i)

(iif)

The fair value of trade and other receivables
as at acquisition date amounted to
HK$18,351,000.

The goodwill of HK$8,124,000, which was
not deductible for tax purposes, comprises
the value of the acquired management team
for its future market development from the
combination of the acquired business with
the existing operations of the Group.

The non-controlling interests of
HK$5,595,000 was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair
value of Novell and NP Enterprises LLC net
identifiable assets as at acquisition date.

N
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(b)

(%)

(%)

(iv)

B S EET
LA PR - 5% 5 BT /B
N Al A S EE
E-TTER
A=+HIL#F
B 2 8 &= 5 B
95,588,000 7T
I %5 % 8,281,000
TS TTE 1R R o

fis] Y & IR =
T-NFEA—
HE4 - AIASE
HE_ZT_ZF
NA=Zt+HLEF
EiReWE Rk
BEFEED R
£430,429,00078
7t 19,969,000
BIC HEMEE
BHEMHARE -
I —FE R AR
SEEWRESIE
RZTE—-NF+
A—BZEKZIE
il Al &
EEE  TREIER
BRI R PR A8 & %
B E%E

2,115,0005% T 2
WERBEKAD
X8 - WEt ATTIR
BER-%ERS
ZHE—BHBE
i N/NCII =R
—E— ¥ A
—t+ERZEX-

47. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

(iv)

Since the acquisition, these subsidiaries
contributed HK$95,588,000 to the Group's
revenue and net loss of HK$8,281,000 to the
Group's profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July
2019, the consolidated revenue and net loss
of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2020 would had been HK$430,429,000 and
HK$19,969,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information was for illustrative
purpose only and did not necessarily reflect
the Group's revenue and operating results if
the acquisition had been completed 1 July
2019 and could not serve as a basis for the
forecast of future operation result.

The acquisition-related costs of
HK$2,115,000 had been expensed and were
included in administrative expenses. Further
details of this transaction were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 27 June 2019.
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48.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group disposed
of its 100% equity interests and inter-company loan of Ming
Xiu Diamond Cutting Factory Limited and EAF#EG (&
M) B R A7), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
to an independent third party, at a total consideration of
HK$13,134,000. The net liabilities being disposed of at the
date of disposal were as follows:

FEEZFBERT :
FAET
HK$'000
FrH & 2 /FafE: Net liabilities disposed of:
EREEE Right-of-use assets 216
HENRIERETE A Other payables and accruals (1,608)
NAEIEER Inter-company loan (13,404)
FEE Net liabilities (14,796)
LERARHEER Disposal of inter-company loan 13,404
I B RR B A 2 BCZR Cost incurred during the disposal 2,049
HEMB AR Z W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 12,477
REXHAHR: Consideration satisfied by:
R Cash 13,134
HESHEMEELEZ Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
REMANFEE:
ReRE Cash consideration 13,134
HERE & Z A Cost incurred during the disposal (2,049)
FRALESEZRE R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ReFERAFHE respect of the disposal 11,085

N
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M+ MEERHELEZ 49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
BEHER ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
TREFMARNEEREEDEEZ The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
BEZY pRREERIFREF from financing activities, including both cash and non-
FopEFRSEAZABIIHIR cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
BRARRESMEENER ZER liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
EHRERERTEARETE be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
AR flows from financing activities.
FEf B FTR Ef&E BREE FEf 385
ARAHE Hib R TEFE R ZEH BHFE BEEE
Due to Loan from a Due to
related Bankand  Amount due to controlling  non-controlling Lease
companies other loans joint ventures shareholder interests liabilities
FET FET FET FAT FAT FAT
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(WE=+1)  (WF=+2)  (WEF=+2) (F#=+s) (WEE+m) (BEE+2)
(note 35) (note 32) (note 22) (note 36) (note 34) (note 33)
RZF-AELA-B At 1July 2019 31,669 743,575 - 4,549 2,67 1,680
RemeRy: Changes from cash flows:
FEHERER Advance from non-controlling interests = = = = 7,669 =
RELEBR Advance from joint ventures - - 696 - - =
TERIEE New bank borrowings = 250,100 = = = =
BEBIRE Repayment of bank borrowings - (270,521) - = = =
REREAEZAS Repayment of principal amount of
lease liabilities - - - - - (2,727)
HEREMELDUE Total changes from financing cash flows - (20,421) 696 - 7,669 (2,727)
B3R Exchange realignment (1,122) (562) = (161) = (215)
SEER—MBBATZEES  Gain on debt modification on amounts due to
B2 W a related company (1,318) - = - - _
U B8 — A 20 &) (PRI (b)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 47(b) - 29071 - = = 14,899
HEitEH: Other changes:
ARG Addition of new lease - - = = = 5736
FERX Interest expenses 1321 24,59 - - - 778
BRFE Interest paid - (24,592) - - - (778)
Hitg8ER Total other changes 1321 - - - - 5,736
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m+h - BHERIHEEZ 49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
BEHER @ ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (continued)

FE BB RTR Ef&E BRER e
ARFE EH &K TERE REHEZER BERE HEER
Due to Loan from a Due to
related Bankand  Amount due to controlling  non-controlling Lease
companies other loans joint ventures shareholder interests liabilities
FET FET FET FAT FAT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(WE=+51) (WE=+2) (HE=1+2) (HE=17%) (HzE=+m) (HE=+2)
(note 35) (note 32) (note 22) (note 36) (note 34) (note 33)
RZF-FEXAZTHR At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020
ZRI25ER-B 30,550 751,663 696 4,388 29,340 19373
Reney: Changes from cash flows:
FEGIRRET Advance from non-controlling interests - = = - 19,445 -
AELERN Advance from joint ventures - - 340 - - -
BEHEX Advance from related parties 6,805 - - - - =
MERITHE New bank borrowings - 186,988 - - - -
BERITHE Repayment of bank borrowings - (102,493) - - - -
ERREREZAS Repayment of principal amount of lease
liabilties - - - - = (4383)
HERERELHAR Total changes from financing cash flows 6,805 84,495 340 - 19,445 (4,343)
X 8% Exchange realignment 2,885 52 - 14 - 148
SEF BB ATBEER  Gain on debt modification on amounts due to
b e a related company (1,446) = = = = o
Hip#e: Other changes:
HERE Addition of new lease - = - - - 4151
MR Interest expenses 1,442 12,987 - - - 862
BRFIS Interest paid - (12,987) - - - (862)
Ef2HER Total other changes 1,442 - - - - 4,151
RZFZ-4XA=1+A At 30 June 2021 40,236 836,210 1,036 4,802 48,785 19,329

N
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, debt investments, derivatives, financial
instruments, long-term receivables, amounts due to joint
ventures, trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank and other loans, amounts due to non-controlling
interests, lease liabilities, amounts due to related companies
and loan from a controlling shareholder. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

statement of financial position relate to the

following categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities. See note 3.14 for explanations about how

the category of financial instruments affects their

subsequent measurement.

2021 2020
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000
EHMEE Financial assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
AR EEF AEA Financial assets at fair value
FHWEZEHBEE through other comprehensive
income 37,945 15,750
AT ERTABRZ Financial assets at fair value
TRIEE through profit or loss 11,370 =
MENEE Current assets
IAAFEEGTABZZ Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 12,185 13,201
REHK AT EZ Financial assets at amortised costs:
TRIBE
— & F WA — Trade receivables 99,943 92,687
— H fib fE R IE — Other receivables 5,755 6,479
—RERRESEH — Cash and cash equivalents 340,207 468,521
445,905 567,687
507,405 596,638

N
ul
~
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

(&) liabilities (continued)
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
EREE Financial liabilities
mBaR Current liabilities
RESHK AT E 2 Financial liabilities measured at
%Eﬂﬁfi : amortised cost:
E S FRIE — Trade payables (67,725) (74,010)
—ﬁm%ﬁﬁ EH R — Other payables and accruals
fEEtE (114,773) (35,566)
—RITREMER — Bank and other loans (707,010) (751,663)
—HEBE — Lease liabilities (4,162) (3,976)
— P B A Al IE — Due to related companies (7,225) =
— A **ﬁ%m — Due to joint ventures (1,036) (696)
— P RIS RE 2R 5K 0B — Due to non-controlling interests = (29,340)
(901,931) (895,251)
ERBAMRE Non-current liabilities
B SHK AT EZ Financial liabilities measured at
TERAE: amortised cost:
—IRITREMER - Bank and other loans (129,200) =
—-HER®E — Lease liabilities (15,167) (15,397)
ARl NGIE L] — Due to related companies (33,011) (30,550)
—ERRERIR Gt 2 B — Loan from a controlling
shareholder (4,802) (4,388)
— P IEIE HIRE 2 5K 0E — Due to a non-controlling interests (48,785) -
(230,965) (50,335)
(1,132,896) (945,586)
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, UK,
US and the Mainland China with most of
the transactions denominated and settled
in HK$, United States dollars (“US$"),
British Pounds (“GBP"), Canadian Dollars
("CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB and US$, which are the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in the Mainland
China and US respectively to which these
transactions relate. The Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arises
from certain financial instruments including
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, trade receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, cash and cash equivalents and
trade payables which are denominated in
US$, Euro, British Pounds and CAD. During
the years, the Group did not have foreign
currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure.

N
O
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
companies as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

F# TR
Expressed in HK$'000
ET Bt 3 mx
Us$ Euro GBP CAD
RZFZ—-£XA=+H At30June 2021
MATEEFALMEA  Financial assets at fair value
BaeHBE through other comprehensive
income 11,093 - - 3,632
B HEYGIE Trade receivables 38,757 = = =
NATEABRZ Financial asset at fair value
CPREE through profit or loss 18,864 - = =
ReRkReEE Cash and cash equivalents 242,103 69 7,984 12
B ENFE Trade payables (36,704) (234) = =
iRk Overall net exposure 274,113 (165) 7,984 3,644
WZEZTERXA=+H  At30)June 2020
MAEEFALMEA  Financial assets at fair value
BazeHEE through other comprehensive
income - - - 1,143
B HEYGIE Trade receivables 59,773 - - 375
NATEABEZ Financial liabilities at fair value
eRAR through profit or loss 7,432 = = =
BeRBReESR Cash and cash equivalents 351,889 535 5,462 2,509
EU) e Trade payables (9,450) (1) = -
BEEER Overall net exposure 409,644 534 5,462 4,027
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuec)

miZ Rk (&) 50.2 Market risk (continued)
() sMEE B (42) ) Foreign currency risk (continued)
B € T B T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
2 N S not expect any significant movements in
ﬁ%}%ﬁZET’T@ the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
EEFERNENE analysis in respect of the Group's financial
HREERA Eiﬁ assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
LHEETHAABTZ disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
IZT“@JTK Y B sensitivity analysis does not give additional
REEAERTEEZ value in view of insignificant movement in
PREERBEEH the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
Z B E O T I date. The following table indicates the
RELFEIMEE - R approximate change in the Group's profit
BRBZEHRED (2020: loss) for the year and equity in
o TRBRERER response to reasonably possible changes
E B HAAR S [E A in the foreign exchange rates to which
X EARE g2 SN [E the Group has significant exposure at the
K2 EIRA R # reporting date.
K& HE l 2 F A A
(ZZE=ZF BA)
MR A Re IR 2 B
2021 2020
BEEE  ERET BE NBEX FREE R
L/ #m/  #m/ R/ RS/ EN/
(P8 (B9)  GEY) (TR (Em)  (RD)
Increase/  Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)  Decrease/
inforeign inprofit Increase/ inforeign  (Increase)  Increase/
exchange forthe (Decrease) exchange inlossfor  (decrease)
rates year in equity rates  theyear inequity
FExT  FéEn AT FEr
HK'000  HKS$'000 HKO00  HK$000
BT Euro +5% ®) ®) +5% 2 27
-5% 8 8 -5% (27) (27)
RE GBP 5% 399 399 +5% 273 13
-5% (399) (399) -5% 273) 273)
iy CAD +5% 1 182 +5% 144 201
-5% (1) (182) -5% (144) (201)

N
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

() sMEmERE (&) (@

Foreign currency risk (continued)

N
N

Bk bt &5k R

Other than the above, the Group held

RZTEZ—F XA several foreign currency forward contracts
=tHRBEFEE denominated in USD which were recognised
BRETESRT as derivative financial instruments (note
A (M= 1+/\(d)) 28(d)) as at 30 June 2021. Upon the maturity
L PAZETTRHE 2 INEE dates, these contracts will be settled in GBP.

EHEK N BB
B ZEAHBIAR
FrE-Hitt 2F

Accordingly, the fair value and the future
cash flow will fluctuate because of the
change in the foreign currencies of USD and

ERARHKIEERGE GBP.
FEITHE R GE 2 INEE B
B)mEE
TRETEMBEM The following table indicates the
BEHIE BT approximate effect on the profit for the
lfgﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬂﬂilﬁ year in response to reasonably possible
BEEMITESRT changes in the foreign exchange rates, with
,E:%/V\ZW%E%Z all other variables held constant, to which
SIEARED K& the Group has exposure in respect of the
2 F N A 7] g2 derivative financial instruments at the end
5‘%2*3% BB ETT of each reporting period. The appreciation
REEEEAER and depreciation of 5% in USD exchange
Ei B5% D EREY rate against GBP represents management's
HMEHRINEE R 2 assessment of a reasonably possible change
SEAEER 2T in currency exchange rate over the reporting
fiio periods.
2021 2020
Fi#T FE7T
HK’000 HK'000
FHE5% Appreciation by 5% 1 -
B2 (5% Depreciation by 5% (1) =
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuec)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

Price risk

Price risk related to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities,
unlisted equity securities and investment
funds which are classified as at fair value
through other comprehensive income or
fair value through profit or loss. The board
of directors manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group is not exposed to

commodity price risk.

N
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2021, if prices had increased by
10% (2020: 10%) and all other variables
were held constant:

- the Group’s profit for the year
would increase by approximately
HK$1,606,000 (2020: loss will
decrease by HK$577,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair
value of investment fund and listed
equity securities included in the
Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; and

— the Group’s equity other than
retained profits would increase by
approximately HK$2,685,000 (2020:
HK$1,575,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed and
unlisted equity investments included
in the Group's financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

(i) Price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2021, if prices had decreased by
10% (2020: 10%) and all other variables

were held constant:

the Group’s profit for the year
would decrease by approximately
HK$1,606,000 (2020: loss would
increase by HK$577,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in
investment fund and listed equity
securities included in the Group's
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

the Group’'s equity other than
retained profits would decrease by
approximately HK$2,685,000 (2020:
HK$1,575,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed and
unlisted equity investments included
in the Group's financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and

are considered to be effective.

N
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

(iir)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Floating interest rate
instruments will result in the Group facing
the risk of changes in market interest rate,
and fixed interest rate instruments will result
in the Group's fair value interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to investments in listed
bonds under financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (note
23) of HK$11,093,000 (2020: Nil) and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (note 28) of HK$7,473,000 (2020:
HK$7,432,000). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. The
Group's fair value interest rate risk exposure
is not expected to have a significant impact
on its fair value given the changes of the
underlying interest rate is not expected to be
material.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily arising from bank balances and
bank and other loans. Majority of the bank
and other loans are arranged at variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The interest rates and
repayment terms of the bank and other loans
outstanding at reporting dates are disclosed
in note 32.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

N
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the profit/(loss) for the year and retained
profits to a change in interest rates of +100
basis point and —100 basis point (2020:
+100 basis point and =100 basis point) with
effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group’s bank
balances and interest-bearing bank and other
loans held at each reporting date which are
subject to variable interest rates. All other
variables are held constant.

2021 2020
F#T FET
HK'000 HK'000
fis 7 ?tfHOOME%ﬁ If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ2=FF: (2020: 100 basis point) higher
100{E £ )
FRLEF (ERFE) Net profit/(loss) for the year
BB RIRE decreased/increased and retained
S )R A profits decreased by 670 (939)
fiw 7 tTEﬂOO“%%ﬁ If interest rates were 100 basis point
(Z2FF: (2020: 100 basis point) lower
1001EE2h)
FRLEF (BRFE) Net profit/(loss) for the year
@,/ W kIR increased/decreased and retained
gl profits increased by (670) 939

NEBBEBEFEMN
R—EETEEME
Rz HK R E
ZEBRA M -

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
are considered to be effective.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. As at 30 June 2021, the
carrying amount of these financial assets as disclosed
in note 50.1 best represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from grating credit to customers in the

ordinary course of its business.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates
this information into its credit risk controls.
Where available at reasonable cost, external
credit ratings and/or reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used. The
Group's policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. The credit policy has been followed

by the Group since prior years.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

1+ BHBERE]
E#%&Haﬁ (,,f,,s)
503 f=ERM (&) 50.3 Credit risk (continued)

Elfr iz BRI T B A E

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

B 5 EWRIE Trade receivables
AEEZREEREET The Group measures loss allowances for trade

BHRHBEEBENS
B(ABRBEME) T
EEHRIFEERRE
H-AREEMNBEEE
BRERIBBRRTRE
Fo#fBEREZENER
TRE - BURB AR E
MEEBRERBEEAEE
TRZEFHZHEE— TR
e
T%Tﬁrfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\:
—FR-ZZT-F f|5/\
)51 ‘T‘ETJE 2 5 MR
Pk < EE =R &ﬁﬁﬁ

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group's historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables as at 30 June 2021 and 2020:

FEEEBBEZER:
TEHE R E AREARR BEiEE IR
Gross

R-BZ—F Expected carrying Loss
~A=+H As at 30 June 2021 loss rate amount allowance
(%) FiExT FiExT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BNER Current 0.00% 64,512 -
A Hi0-30H 0 - 30 days past due 0.19% 16,699 31
A HI31-60H - 60 days past due 1.50% 8,825 132
# H161-90H — 90 days past due 22.96% 4,696 1,078
#1H191-180R 91 — 180 days past due 31.18% 4,464 1,392
#8181-365H 181 — 365 days past due 71.26% 8,375 5,968
#HA365H A Over 365 days past due 97.22% 15,173 14,751

BRERRBEZ Credit impaired for specific
{18 731 & W 0 7R debtors 97.61% 23,051 22,500
145,795 45,852
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51+ HMBERER 50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
E*%&E% (#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
503 fSERMK (&) 50.3 Credit risk (continued)
E 1= B B % 2 Financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)
(#&)
B S EWGRIE (&) Trade receivables (continued)

EHIR AR FR AR ER EiEEE

Gross
AT _TF Expected carrying Loss
~NA=+H As at 30 June 2020 loss rate amount allowance
(%) FAT FAT
HK$000 HK$°000
BIEA Current 0.51% 33,726 173
# HA0-30H 0 — 30 days past due 3.45% 7,770 268
@ Hi31-60H 31 - 60 days past due 5.74% 12,659 726
# H161-90H 61 — 90 days past due 25.51% 8,527 2,175
A HA91-180H 91 — 180 days past due 53.42% 6,608 3,530
# H3181-365H 181 — 365 days past due 77.70% 2,233 1,735
#HA365H MA £ Over 365 days past due 97.60% 12,151 11,859
BEERBEZ Credit impaired for specific
18 71| F& Wk IR debtors 43.29% 51,979 22,500
135,653 42,966
TEARIE R R ABEEF 2 Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
BERBERER AR Z experience over the few years. These rates are
ERAESELRAE AU adjusted to reflect differences between economic
R R SR 5 BUR AR 2 conditions during the period over which the historic
BB ARD ~ B RTAR S IA K data has been collected, current conditions and
N EH RN RIBTREATE the Group's view of economic conditions over the
BHRNGBERR B2 2 expected lives of the receivables.
MH =2

N
~
—
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.3 Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of

trade receivables is as follows:

2021 2020

Fi#ET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

REF) 2 587 Balance at the beginning of the year 42,966 29,754
BRI EEE Impairment losses recognised 2,389 13,234
AU E Mmiss 2 &%  Amount written-off as uncollectible (34) =
PE X A== Exchange difference 531 (22)
RERZ R Balance at the end of the year 45,852 42,966

eI P Uy e et
43 DASEEAR 2 S LA 5 P
AL

B2 31N =

AEBEMIZE R AT
BEZoRMEERRRAE
YOk IR ~ E At UL R IR A
KR K"I[EEFRE IR
ERBEEFREME AR
EERBRBREEM
Bt - R EF A FER Z (Ef
BRBERNI12(EAE
HEEBER -EERR-
BHRRXSEFHRERS
EERSBERTZE
BEE MREEHRE
HIBE R o

None of the Group's trade receivables are secured by
collaterals or other credit enhancement.

Other financial assets measure at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
of the Group include long-term receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents. In respect
of cash and cash equivalents, since there is no
significant increase in credit risk, any loss allowance
recognised during the year is therefore limited
to 12-months ECLs. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high
credit rating or with good reputation.



Annual Report 2021 F iR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8R FRHizE

For the year ended 30 June 2021
HE_Z-_—FX A=THILFE

i+ HBERER
BERBSR @)

50.3

50.4

=ERR (&)

B i B iE A B2
EHEE (&)

R HEF I ZE LR
BRAK - B3 AT RE AR
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ERRMEER2(EA &
HEEBBE Rt
mRNZEEHMBRER
BRES\IA - W ERE
RIEERE-

RRHBEWRIEMNS -
im) A 1E 22 45 #23,621,000
BL (DT - T F:
11,449,000 ) B & R
BEF Et 25/
BEBLEARE R
E-—FXA=+HE
{E ) /&5 18 1% #£3,621,000
BIL(ZEZF F:
11,449,000/ 7T ) °

REESER

MBETRRTIENAS
BAREETTESBMAER
B R - NEER
EERDECRARE &
ERREREEERS
RIKF 2R RAEE
BORAAEEEE
RHEES  WRIEEHI KL
RHRERKB 2 E -
EEEERRITAEME
R B ER L FERE ST
BEREL -

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.3

50.4

Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets measure at amortised cost
(continued)

Other receivables measured at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk as the
counterparties have a low risk of default and does
not have any past due amounts. Impairment on
these balances has been measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs. No loss allowance is
recognised as the amount of ECLs on these balances
is insignificant.

In respect of long-term receivables the outstanding
balances of HK$3,621,000 (2020: HK$11,449,000)
had been defaulted for years, and hence these
financial assets are credit impaired of which loss
allowance of HK$3,621,000 (2020: HK$11,449,000)
was made as at 30 June 2021.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank and other loans and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

N
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay.

Specifically, for bank and other loans which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the lender’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights

to call the loans with immediate effect.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

BHRMR —ERNg —FRE
RELE RENELE REXEE BIRWE MEME
Total Within ~ More than
contractual Tyear  1yearbut
Carrying undiscounted oron lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZF--£xA=+H As at 30 June 2021
FiTEEMER: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BN Trade payables 67,725 67,725 67,725 - -
At ERFEREER Other payables and
accruals 114,773 114,773 114,773 - -
HERR Lease liabilities 19,329 21,849 4,935 4,509 12,405
BAREMER Bank and other loans 836,210 840,115 708,89 13,059 118,160
ERGERERA Due to joint ventures 1,036 1,036 1,036 - -
FEER A=A Due to related
companies 40,236 40,236 7,225 30,610 2,401
ARNE Zakil E g Due to non-controlling
interests 48,785 48,785 - 48,785 -
BRIRRERZER Loan from a controlling
shareholder 4,802 4,802 - - 4,802
1,132,896 1,139,321 904,590 96,963 137,768
RZFEZFERAZTH As at 30 June 2020
FiTELmER: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BHENTE Trade payables 74,010 74,010 74,010 - -
At EfERETER Other payables and
accruals 35,566 35,566 35,566 - -
HERR Lease labilities 19,373 22432 4,801 4,076 13,555
RITREMER Bank and other loans 751,663 751,663 751,663 - -
EREELERA Due to joint ventures 696 696 696 = =
ERBHARTE Due to related
companies 30,550 32,468 - 30,823 1,645
FER FE R R 3R Due to non-controlling
interests 29,340 29,340 29,340 - -
BRIRRRRZER Loan from a controlling
shareholder 4,388 4,388 - - 4,388
945,586 950,563 896,076 34,899 19,588

N
ul
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank and other loans with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not consider that
it is probable that the bank and lender will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank and other loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

HMANH-
REREEXAHEIMEREXERRLRITREMES
Maturity analysis - Bank and other loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

AHXRUR —ERE —-ENE
FELE REFE4E REREE AORWE MENE
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 2 years
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZEZ-£xA=1H As at 30 June 2021
RAREMER Bank and other oans 836,210 840,115 708,896 13,059 118,160
RIEZEEXA=1+H As at 30 June 2020
FAREMER Bank and other oans 751,663 770,167 95,136 640,055 34976
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I+ MBEREE 50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
E*%&E% (#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.5 MRS RERZ 50.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
DNEEFE consolidated statement of financial position
LR BEIRBTE2ME The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
ERAEZAFEMRZ into three levels based on the relative reliability of
FE2H ABBE A ER significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
E #HZEemEERE of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
BEID A=K - AF hierarchy has the following levels:
BEBZERNAT :

—F1E: HRABENE — Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
PR T % 2 B markets for identical assets;
(REEFEE)

—F2E: RE—EWE — Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
LAGN - B At B included within Level 1 that are
# (B ERK) observable for the instruments and
sk A (B¢ derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
ERHENT) A prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
ERCTITAR prices); and
PMETAEZE
AE: &

—%F3E: WIHREAE — Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
=7 G EUE not based on observable market data
ZITEZ&8 A (unobservable inputs).

B (EEHER
ZEBAE) °

N
~J
~
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position
are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

BT

#18 %28 #3E @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(FiteEGa)) (WizH(b) (M)
(note (a) (note (b)) (note (c))
RZFZ-EXAZ+H As at 30 June 2021
NATEFAEMEENE Financial assets at fair value through other
CREE comprehensive income
—hEE LM RARE - Listed equity investments in Hong Kong 23,076 - - 23,076
—Te Bt £z RARE -~ Listed equity investments in elsewhere 3,632 - - 3,632
—Hiti 73 EmRARE ~ Unlisted equity investments in elsewhere - 144 - 144
~TE Rt £ EH - Listed bonds in elsewhere 11,093 - - 11,093
NATHEE AR Financial assets at fair value through
CREE profit or loss
—EEB LM RAES - Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 4,690 - - 4,690
TRt L2 ER - Listed bonds in elsewhere 7473 - - 7473
—EREB REES ~ Investment fund in Hong Kong - 11,370 - 11,370
—{TEERTA - Derivative financial instruments - n - 2
49,964 11,536 - 61,500
RZE=ZE A=+H As at 30 June 2020
NATEFAEMEENE Financial assets at fair value through other
SRAE comprehensive income
—hEE LM RARE ~ Equity investments listed in Hong Kong 14,463 = = 14,463
~TERN M BARE ~ Equity investments listed in overseas 1,143 = = 1,143
—BINE EIIRARE ~ Unlisted equity investments in overseas - 144 - 144
NATEANERZ SREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
B L RAES - Listed equity securities in Hong Kong 5,769 - - 5,769
—FEMS EhzER - Listed bonds in elsewhere 7,432 - - 7432
28,807 144 - 28,951
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

50.5 MRS RERZ 50.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
RNEEFE (F) consolidated statement of financial position

RARFERFEZITER
BT B8 1 i s B

(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

HE Eb 7 4 i o compared to the previous reporting periods.
Htat - Notes:
(@ EMIRAFHFK EME (@) Fair values of listed equity securities and listed

HFZRFEIRZER
RIERRZHERE
E - WEERHREHR A
HASNES BE R (i 38
F)

bonds have been determined by reference to their
market prices at the reporting date and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency rates at
the end of the reporting period where appropriate.

(b) FEMBRERES ZATF (b) The fair value of the unlisted investment fund
BEEELESEEF is the share of the net assets value of the funds
B D2REESREE which has been determined with reference to
REBEERBEBHRZA the fair value of the underlying financial assets
TAEEEE © I EmRAE and liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
BERTEEMIAZA The fair values of unlisted equity investments and
FEDEFENEAGE derivative financial instruments are determined

il (BRat e
RIS BIERAN T 5 A
KRB AE) BEEE -

BAFRIEZERMEER
Rz (B » ThER I
FUARBRTSHIES
HEEZBRPANE - AE
REEAEM SR AFRIEZ

FA-FIEEFE2E M
WA FEFEEE IR
#2780 B B\ 8 SE3E

;E_Eﬁqfﬁi\> o

—= =

directly or indirectly based on valuation techniques
with market observable inputs including
observable market data.

Financial assets classified in Level 3 use valuation
technique based on significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data. The Group does
not have any financial assets classified in Level 3
during and as at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

N
O
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51.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio was
maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The
gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

ZEEABLENT:
2021 2020
F#ET FAET
HKS$000 HK$'000
nBaE Current liabilities
RITREAME R Bank and other loans 707,010 751,663
JEfT& & RIE Due to joint ventures 1,036 696
JE A< FE 42 i i 2 SR IE Due to non-controlling interests - 29,340
HEBE Lease liabilities 4,162 3,976
FE 1~ BaEsE A R 5RIE Due to related companies 7,225 =
EREBAE Non-current liabilities
RITREME R Bank and other loans 129,200 -
HEAE Lease liabilities 15,167 15,397
FE 1~ BAEsE A R 5RIR Due to related companies 33,011 30,550
2R AR R AR it Zfﬁm Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,802 4,388
FE A FE 1R Sl BE 25 TR Due to non-controlling interests 48,785 =
EIRERE Total debts 950,398 836,010
woIReNIREER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (340,207) (468,521)
BIRRE Net debts 610,191 367,489
T 75 AR R Total equity 2,446,508 2,366,275
AR R BT Total equity and net debts 3,056,699 2,733,764
EE&RBILE Gearing ratio 19.96% 13.44%

N
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52.

53.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 1 September 2021, the Group entered into six
Preliminary Agreements with five independent third
parties relating to acquisition of six properties located at
(i) Ground Floor, First Floor, Second Floor and a portion
of the Roof, No.164 Boundary Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; and (ii) Ground Floor, First Floor and Second Floor,
No.164A Boundary Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
total consideration of HK$183,500,000 (the “Boundary
Acquisition”). The Boundary Acquisition constitutes a major
transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and
completion will take place on or before 22 December 2021.
Details of the Boundary Acquisition was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 September 2021.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2021 were approved for issue by the directors on 27
September 2021.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

a4 3]
WERE it 3 BapRER BEEER B ikt THER fhatH EE Ef
Estimated Attributable
Approximate approximate Stage of Estimated interest of
Lot No. Location sitearea  gross floor area Use Lease Term completion Completion date the Group
(Er%) (3 %K)
(sq ft) (qtt)
BEWREURBTHS B EFEE35 5798 86,970  BE R4 LERETRERD 200 75%
The remaining portion of Marine Lot no. 124 232 Wan Chai Road, Wan Chai, Commercial Long Superstructure in
Hong Kong progress
HNENBEREI96%A B CRRBE NERDEEZET TA IRIAK 3,240 9141 BEREE  0H LERETRERR 202 90%
HNEARE97THA B CRRBEMAR  Nos7,7A 9and 94, Commercial and  Medium Superstructure in
FNEAMRE21985A B CRRHE Cheung Wah Street, residential progress
Section A, B, C and the remaining portion of New Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
Kowloon Inland lot 2196, Section A, B, C and
the remaining portion of New Kowloon Infand
lot 2197, and section A, B, C and the remaining
portion of Inland Lot No. 2198.
HEEREZWE PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
735
B SE 1S bk EfEE RE HEH
Attributable
interest of
Lot No. Location the Group  Use Lease Term
LENM A E120%: 53689 AB R CE MRTAB ARG ERHERE 100%  H# Gk
Section A and section C of Lot no 3689 in D.D. 120 o 1088 1112 1218 - 1318 - 1518 -
1618 178 1912 - 2012 - 2118 k2218
9/F, 10/F, 11/F, 12/F, 13/F, 15/F, 16/F, Rental Medium
17/F, 19/F, 20/F, 21/F and 22/F,
Glassview Commercial Building,
No. 65 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories
NEEZHEREARIRR NEAHBEL- AR RREE 100% (£ i
NEBZHEREARHERE1 DB 185 sl TR L = PR
Section | of Kowloon Marine lot No. 40 and Unit P 1st Floor, Kaiser Estate Rental Medium
sub-Section 1 of section H of Kowloon Marine lot No. 40 3rd Phase, Nos. 9-11A
Hok Yuen Street,
No. 18 Man Lok Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon
NENIERE 104205 EAER - LB AR NELDBHEEI9-23REET 100% i
F104325% 1B RN BE I3 ER 8104315 B R AR RBRBAR—BAZHER AR
The remaining portion of Kowloon Inland lot No. 10429, the  Shops A & B on the G/F and Rental Medium

remaining portion of Kowloon Inland lot No. 10432 and the
remaining portion of Kowloon Inland lot No. 10431

Office AtoHon 1/F
Hart Avenue Court, 19-23 Hart Avenue,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

N
[0}
W



Other Information m Eftt &%l

2]

hFMBHE

AEEBERABETBRFREZREENUR
BE BEMEEGZEME (FiE
HHAE AMEEZVBRE LB
(RN ) ) EFINT LA 2 I AR
REREAMBHRERZ 8-

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

£ RESULTS
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FAT FET FETL AL FEL
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HK$000
Yngs Revenue 536,267 420,315 440,967 391,882 627,293
BRETERANER/ (E18)  Profit/Loss) before income tax 22,310 (13,673) 26,424 429,833 102,549
FEREe,/ (L) Income tax credit/(expense) 11,959 (4,209) 22,188 (75,078) (4,098)
FREF/ (BE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 34,269 (17,882) 48,612 354,755 98,451
IR Non-controlling interests (14,384) 2,541 (4,933) 4 (145)
AREERAER Net profit/(Loss) attributable to
wH,/ (BEFE) the owners of the Company 19,885 (15,341) 43,679 354,759 98,306
BE - BERIEEH#ER ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FAT FET FET FETL FETL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BEE Total assets 3,718,277 3,456,478 3,475,287 3,474,725 2,314,865
BEE Total liabilities (1,271,769)  (1,090,203)  (1,052,856)  (1,230,442) (470,400)
JEE Non-controlling interests (202,257) (186,692) (183,638) 6,402 6,398
2,244,251 2,179,583 2,238,793 2,250,685 1,850,863
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